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REY DEritnous

Annual Report and Accounts
The annual report of M&C Saatchi plc and its consolidated financial statements in relation to the year ended 31 December 2019.

Billings

Biifings comprise ail gross amounts billed, or billable to clients in respect of commission-based and fee-based income, whether acting as agent or principal, together with the
total of other fees earned, in addition to those instances where the Group has made payments on behalf of customers to third parties and is stated exclusive of VAT and sales
taxes. This is a non-statutory number and is unaudited.

Company
M&C Saatchi Pic, a company incorporated in Engiand, listed on the AIM Market of the London Stock Exchange plc.

Headline
The Directars believe that the headline resuits and headline earnings per share provide additional useful information on the underlying performance. The headiine result is used
for internal performance management, calculating the value of subsidiary convertible shares and minority interest put options. The term headfine is not a defined term in IFRS.

Headline results represent the underlying trading profitability of the Group, excluding all accounting charges related to equity and investments. The specific items that are
excluded from headline results (note 1 of the financial statements) are the amortisation or impairment of intangible assets (including goodwill and acquired intangibles, but
excluding software) acquired in business combinations; changes to deferred and contingent consideration and other acquisition related charges taken to the income statement;
impairment of investments in associates; profit and loss on disposal of associates; revaluation of acquired investments and their related costs; and the income statement impact
of put option accounting and share-based payment charges.

Minority Interests and non-controlling interest

Within the Group, there are 62 subsidiary companies and partnershins in which employees hold a direct interest in the equity of those companies. These employees are referred
to as minority shareholders. Cfthese 62 subsidiary companies and partnerships, 55 companies account for the sharehoiding of their minority shareholders as a management
incentive (through the award of conditional shares) and are 100% consolidated in the Group’s financial statements. The remaining seven subsidiary companies (including one
without a put option) account for their minority shareholders as non-controlling interests, a defined IFRS term, with their share of the Group’s profits being shown separately on
the income Statement.

Group
The Company and its subsidiaries.

Net revenue
Net revenue is equal to revenue less project cost / direct cost. It is not an IFRS defined term. It is, however, used as a key performance indicator by the Group.

Restatement
2018 profits have been restated for historic accounting errors described in the Annual Report and Accounts and note 2 of the financial statements. The 2017 and 2018 balance
sheets have also heen restatad. The adjustments made in respect of 2017 and 2018 accounting periods are management’s best estimates using the available evidence.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

Singe we began in 1995, we have started 95 new companies. We have closed 29, Our enthusiasm for harnessing the potential of entrepreneurial talent in a
creative world is undiminished. The idea is to attract people who want to join in rather than get out; to build rather than maintain.

There will be some good changes coming out of this crisis, companies will need less central cffice space, child rearing responsibilities will be split more
equitably between parents, clients will be less governed by procurement, more by results, and having tasted the freedom of self-discipling, the younger
generation will be less keen on returning to the traditional desk chained economic model.

Retail too, will never be the same. In the UK, digital platforms now account for 14% of grocery sales, up from 7% before the Covid-19 pandemic. The
Covid-19 pandemic has brought the future closer.

in times like these, winning new business never fails tc cheer. In the last few months, the Group has won assignments from the Iceland Government, the
UK Government and the Australian State Government of Victoria.

More and more, governments are relying on communications to help govern their countries.

The Board, together with senior managers, recently began a review of the Group’s strategy, and, importantly, its implementation. The cutline will be
presented to investors early next year.

We are encouraging every single Group company, every single M&C Saatchi persen round the world to fear no change. Change is the unchanging
constant.

Finally, a few words on some outstanding creative work our teams are producing. Two examples spring to mind, both from overseas:

In Australia, the Australian Tourism campaign, usually aimed at persuading foreigners to taste the wonders of Australia became the campaign aimed at persuading
Australians to taste the wonders of Australia, with the Holiday Here campaign. | suspect this will be a model followed the world over. Domaestic tourism will lead the
hospitality sector to recovery.

The South African team won the TikTok business. The world's video sharing social network wanted to expand its audience. Despite the national lockdown
restrictions, the agency managed to produce an award-winning film cut entirely from users’ short- form mabile videos, all asking one guestion: What makes you Tig?

Doing work like this makes us Tic.
This is not the 25™ M&C Saatchi anniversary we had planned or hoped for, but its lessons will not go unheeded.
Jeremy Sinclair

Chairman
7 December 2020

9 M&G Saatchi plc
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

Europe
Net revenue in Europe decreased by 11% with the largest declines arising in Germany. Headlire operating profit was reduced by 44%, with the
headline operating profit margin decreasing to 10% (2018:; 16%).

Our Berlin office lost Ferrero Rocher as a client, but retained DeLonghi and Lidl. Qur Milan office had a successful year having won new client
assignments with DeLonghi and OVS.

In a highly competitive market, Paris strengthened its key client accounts. Client wins of Lindt, Club Med and the Agence Frangaise de
Développement are the outcome of its strategy of expanding into new digital centric markets.

Our Madrid office won client assignments frem EuromillonEs, Union Pay and Mattel.

Middle East and Africa
Net revenue in the Middle East and Africa was up 5% with good new business performance across the region.

South Africa had great success in winning Standard Bank.

Qur UAE office had another strong year, picking up assignments for Pizza Hut and Nespresso. Notable other new business wins included the Saudi
Arabian telecoms provider Mobily, the mabile phone manufacturer OPPO, and another PepsiCo brand Poppables.

The headline operating profit in the region was up 20%, with the headline operating profit margin increasing to 9% (2018: 7%).

Asia and Australia
In Asia and Australia, net revenue was fiat,

Qur Austrafian offices performed well. The M&C Saatchi Sydney agency was a key performer within the region; strengthening its business with
imprassive work on new clients TAB, and Tourism Austraiia, while at the same time consolidat ng long-established relationships with
Commonwealth Bank Australia, Big W, and BWS, amongst others. The Sydney agency saw significant growth in delivering bespoke agency models
for Optus in Yes Agency, extending its relationship with the Woolworths Group by opening Greanhouse New Zealand in January 2019, and bringing
its media and creative offering even closer together through integrated new business wins in News.com and Plush.

In Asia, the Kuala Lumpur office retained Celcom gained the bank, CIMB, and launched The Source, the UK-based one-stop research agency, in the
region. Singapore won Telekom Brunei and Singapore Turf Club, Hong Kong won Smartone, Indonasia won Axiata and Redbus, China retained
American Standard and won Jaguar Land Rover, and Mumbai won projects with Reliance and Swisse.

The headline operating profit in the region was up by 9%, with the headline regional operating profit margin increasing to 9% (2018: 8%),

4 M&C Saatchi pic
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

NEW BUSINESS

BEKO

CELI0
CHRISTIE’S
DREAMS
DRIVE SHACK

DUBAI ASSET
MANAGEMENT

DURASEIN

EBAY

EUROMILLONES
FRUIT OF THE LOOM
IBIS

JACKSON INSURANGE
JD SPORTS

LIDL GERMANY

8

LINDT

MASERATI
MATTEL

MTV

NESPRESSO

OPPO

PIZZA HUT
SKADDEN
SOUTHAMPTON FC
STANDARD BANK
SUPERSPORT
THRIFTY CAR HIRE
TOURISM AUSTRALIA
UNIONPAY
WHATSAPP

WORLD HEALTH
ORGANIZATION

LOUND INDUSTRIES

M&C Saatchi plc
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

Qutlook
2019 proved to be a very difficult year for the Group as a result of the historical accounting errors. It forced the Company to re-gvaluate, rethink
and fine-tune many aspects of its business and operations, including its corporate governance and strategic direction.

There has been a wholesale change of Non-Executive Directors and a concerted effort to substantially reduce costs and take painful, yet
necessary, action in closing and restructuring loss-making and poorly performing operations. The Board has also undertaken a comprehensive
review of the Group’s strategy and taken steps to enhance the Company’s governance structure.

A major internal project was commissicned in April 2020 by the new Board to review and make recommendations on the future strategy of the
Group. This project is well underway and already extensive work has been undertaken in the following areas: firstly, in redefining our corporate
vision, business and brand strategy; secondly, in analysing and making recommendations as to where the Group can best focus in terms of both
geographies and disciplines. This will be dependent on where we believe client demand is heacing and where we are best placed to enjoy
competitive advantage. We will then be able to decide which businesses we should invest in, which new business areas we should enter and those
areas from which we should divest.

These strategic conclusions naturally dictate an equally fundamental review of the Group’s operating structure. The Group originally expanded and
was, and still is, managed on a geographical basis. However, the founding and growth of other disciptines has become the driving dynamic and
therefore merits the Board’s review of how the Group should be structured. We have already decided that we need a much-simplified structure
with clarity on what should be done by the operating companies and those support functions which can best be centralised. This will not only result
in more consistent controls, but also cost reductions.

The Board will, with the guidance of the newly constituted Remuneration Committee, seek to review and revise the winning principle of establishing
businesses with minarity-owning founders. We believe this entrepreneurial model remains key to the future success of the Group, but that it must
be reconfigured to protect the value to the Company’s shareholders.

Trading in 2020 promised to be good. However, the Covid-19 pandemic has affected the entire Group. We have acted very quickly to mitigate the
effects of the Covid-19 pandemic. The efforts undertaken to reorganise and restructure the Group’s operations during 2018 which have continued
into 2020 have meant that when the Covid-19 pandemic struck, we were in a far stronger position to cope with its effects than we would otherwise
have been.

Our cost base in 2020 is substantially lower than it was in 2019. Although headline profit before tax will be lower in 2020 than 2019, the balance
sheet and, in particular, net cash position remain fundamentally strong. The recent transformation of the Group’s cash management systems and
processes means we do not anticipate any scenario where we will face a liquidity shortfall. Furthermore, our base case models and performance
so far through the Covid-19 pandemic indicate we will be able to manage the business within the existing financial covenants under our third-party
financing arrangements.

Looking forward, with a fresh strategy, structure and controls harnessed to the core M&C Saatchi spirit of creativity and entrepreneurial energy, we are
very confident of a successful next chapter.

8 M&C Saatchi plc



6 Oid 1yoees JPW

"s1Seq Aep-01-ABp B UC paJoluow
pue pageurw S S53UISNQ Y3 UDIYM U SISBQ 8y 8pInoJd pue uoigaJ yoes jo s1nsa. all $$a8sse o] 8iseq ajelidoudde Le apiaodd slapisuos paeogd
3y eyl SaJNSesW 8aURLWIC.ISd SANBUIS][E 248 SBUNJ|) aulpEaY 9Say] "SIUBWISaAU| aAIsSed pue suoido Ind 'Aunba psJinbae 01 paje|ad sagleys

guijunoooe |1 Suipnioxa &g suop S| syl "dnoJto ayi jo Aungeigoad Suikllapun ayj ssasse 0) pJeod aul Ag pasn 8Je saansesll ,aulpesl, $.dnoJn ay]
s)nsad aulpeay

*1800 103JIp / 1509 198[0.4d $53( anuUaAsJ 0 [Bnba S| anuaaa. 1aN g
2uage ue se
108 M 8JayM 3UI0IUI JO BJBYS N0 puk [ediduild SB 108 &M 818UM SWOOUI JOUI0 AUR PUE PASE]-33) ‘CASRG-UQISSILWIOD Jo 199d5aJ U] SU30 01 3|q2(IIq Jo ‘Pa|liq SIUACWE 803 ||2 JO [B10] 8Y) SBSIIdWO9 ‘snusasy ,
"[ediouiid Jo Ju9Fe $B JuIIR J2U1aLM ‘GWODU) 1210 AU pUR PasE]-88) ‘Paseq-UoISSILLIOD 40 139dsaJ Ul SJUaia ©F SIEI] JC 'PaJIIG SIUNOWE 55048 |2 J0 1810] ay) asldwos SBug ¢

*$93.8Y0 JuswAed paseq-aJeys pue Buijunooae uondo ind Jo 1oedil JUSWSTERLS SUIGAUI AU} PUR S1500 PAIE|SS JIBY) PUB SJUSW]SAAUI PAJINDOR JO LOIEN[BA (53]RID0SSE

40 [esodsIp UD §50| PUE Jy0.d ‘SBIRID0SSE LI JUSLUISBAUI JO JuaWedwl JUSWS]B)S BLICIUI 8] O} Uaye] Sa8Jeyd pajelad LoISINhIE JaYl0 puB UOIEJSPISUCD JUSELILOT PUB Pa.Is)ap o} SadueyD SUONBUIqWos
s53UISNG U] paUNbae {2JBMY0S SUIPNIEXE NG ‘siqiuelul paJInkar pur |PCOE Supnioul) S1asSe B|QIEUEIL) JO JUSWJIECW] PUB LOKESILIOWE 5] 3J8 S)|NS3J SUlPesy WoJ) papn|oxs aJe Jeyl swall ayj
*SJUSLUSIBIS [elOUBUY BYL JO ¢ 310U 9aS PaleISaY |

sidy'g- %P6 %060 51dgz01+ %80V - %0°8¢- aled xe|
%6°5¢- degl de'g %SGl d(g'g) d(Ler) gJeys Jad sguiuses/(sso)
%E'8¢- eLl '8 %66 LeL- gLL- sguJe]
%E'vL- g'Gl gl %8°8- oel- gL~ Jeaf 8y} Joj 10Jd/(s807)
% 'GE- 6'ea gl %169 ¥a- 98- UoITeXe] 810J3q Woud/(s507)
%2 P ¢le 9’03 %6'L30 ge- 0Li- WoJd/(ssol) fuieadg
%ir'e 2062 1953 %S 2062 7’950 s8NUBABJ 18N
%.'8- AN 0'L8e %.L'8- iy 0'Lge +aNnUaAaYy
%0°L- 1'209 A ] %0°.- L'?09 AL SEuIlE
juBLIBAOW 8L0% 6103 JUBLWBAOW '8L0g 6103 wy
BUIIPEAH Kaoimelg
§]InsaJ Jo Auewiung

*Jeak uo Jeaf wo'sLy dn ‘yseo 10U U 9seasay|  w

pue ‘ug'7e Ag paseadoap aJeys Jod suluiea aulpesy =

‘aAB8aU suUlewad [|138 pue dy'g Ag paonpad aJdeys J4ad ssoj AJOINlelS =
WETg LT 01 WGGZT WO UMOD SEM XE] J0jaq 11oJdd aulpeay =

940°8 01 %Q9°g WOoJ) UMOp ‘Suldlew gunededo su|pesy =
YpgdnanusrlllaN =

‘6107 Ul PaUIIUEPI 84aM Y21um SJodus §unnunoaoe pollad Jolid syl 19384 01 palsnipe g|0g Joj SJ01BDIpU| BoURLLLI0LBT £BY aAleJedwod
3U] YliM M0|9q PolBIS aJr 9S8y "SJ01edIpul souewoLIad A8y [BIOUBUY SO JAGWNU B Yy8noJdyl aouewloLad (euoelado 1 sefeuew dnodg ay)

$.07B91pul 8ouBWIOLIed A3 [BloUeUl{

M3IA34 40133410 JINVNI



FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

Historical accounting issues and restatement of prior period financials

Following |ast year’s audit and my appointment, we initiated an internal raview of the Group’s financial and accounting systems and an assessment
of the balance sheet, with particular focus on the Group's UK companies which had undergone a difficult audit in 2078. The initial findings indicated

that certain balance sheet items had been very materially misstated. The findings were immediately announced to the market and at the same time
the Board initiated an independent accountant’s review to be conducted by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP’s forensic group.

The scope of this review comprised:
i, Understanding how the issues identified through the Group's internal review materia ised;
ii.  Undertaking a targeted, risk-based analytical review of the rest of the Group to assess whether these same issues may exist in other
areas of the financial statements of the Group; and
. Making recommendations concerning the control environment to prevent similar issues from happening again.

Following the completion of the independent accountant’s review in December 2019, the Company announced it had identified £11.6m of
adjustments to headline profit before tax, the precise amount of the adjustment to be determined on completion of the audit of 2019, Following the
conclusion of the audit of 2019, we can now confirm that the total adjustment to historical (2018 and prior years) headline profit before tax is
£14.0m, the adjustment to statutory profit before tax is £28.1m (note 2(c) of the financial statements), with net assets reduced by £20.0m (note
2(d) of the financial statements). Given the scale of the accounting issues identified last year, the Company’s new auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have conducted an extensive and detailed audit of 2019. Following the completion of the audit of 2019 and having
now identified the material historical accounting errors, the Company is finally able to draw a line underneath these events and move forward with
confidence.

We faced a number of difficult challenges in finalising the 2019 financial statements, most of which are directly attributable to the historic
accounting misstatements. The delay in publication of the 2019 financial statements is, in part, due to the difficulties we faced fully validating the
2018 closing balance sheet. The combination of relatively poor accounting records coupled with the departure of senior finance personnel has
made this exercise and the 2019 audit all the more difficuft and time consuming. Based on all the available evidence and accounting recards, the
Group has now restated its 2018 income statement, cpening balance sheet and closing balance sheet.

The adjustments are split between the two following periods, resulting in the restatement or 2018 income statement:
i.  ltems which arose in 2018 and whigh, therefore, require the 2018 closing balance sheet te be adjusted; and
ii.  Iltems which are considered to have occurred in the period or periods before 2018 znd so require the 2018 opening balance sheet to be
adjusted.

10 M&C Saatchi pic
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FINANGE DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

The key movements between statutory to headline results

Statutory Headline
- Dividends  Adjustments _— Sale
o axcoptiona EXCEPtOnal o Cb ) Care AteGo OB et g Taoquras SO rorg
Em | items items awards shares liabilti intangibles Media
Net revenue 266.4 - 256.4 - - - - - - - 256.4
Onperating (loss)/profit -11.0 6.2 -4.8 10.6 b8 - 5.9 0.6 2.5 - 20.6
(Loss)/profit before taxation -8.6 6.2 -2.4 10.6 5.8 2.8 1.1 0.8 2.6 -13.0 18.3
(Loss)/profit for the year -11.8 5.2 ~6.6 10.6 5.8 28 1.1 0.7 1.9 -13.3 13.0
(Loss)/earnings -11.8 5.2 -8.6 10.6 1.1 28 13 0.8 1.6 -13.3 8.1
Statutory Headline
- Dividends  Aqjustments _— Capital
Hrestaled exceptional  DXCBRUONAl o Gty e dlett TR AN oy oracgured BB 1o
£m items items awards shares liabilit intangibles issue
Net revenue 250.3 - 250.3 - - - - - - - 250.3
Operating {loss)/profit -3.3 - -33 17.2 31 - 1.3 -1.1 4.5 - 21.7
(Loss)/profit before taxation -5.4 - -5.4 17.2 3 3.1 19 0.9 45 - 235
(Loss)/profit for the year -13.0 ~ -13.0 16.8 3.1 31 1.9 0.7 3.5 0.5 15.2
{Loss)/earnings -13.1 - -13.1 16.8 0.3 31 19 0.7 25 05 1.3

Full reconciliation can be found in note 1 of the financiat statements.
Restatement of 2018 numbers ¢an be found in nate 2 of the financial statements.
Regional split and constant currencies in note 5 of the financial statements.

Conditional share awards, dividends related to conditicnal shares and adjustments to put option liabilities all relate to transacticns with minority interests. Headline profit shows the minority interest share of
profit, rather than these accounting effects. Capital gains tax on share issues relates to a sale of shares in 2018 to minorities that caused a capital gains tax charge in local books. impairment charges,
amortisation of acquired intangibles, revaluation of investment and profit on the sale of 24.9% of Walker Media, all relate to the Group's corporate investing activities, rather than the trading activities reflected in
headline results.

12 M&C Saatchi plc
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FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

Tax

Headline Tax

The headline tax rate is a function of the Group's tax charges globally. The headline tax rate has reduced from 35.4% in 2018 to 29.0% in 2019. The
restated 2018 profits reflect disallowable cost and asset impairments, offset by a reduction in low tax UK profits after exceptional costs, and an
ingrease in income from higher tax locations.

Statutory Tax

There continue to be large swings in the statutory tax rate caused by the significant level of accounting charges which are capital in nature. Such
accounting charges relate to put opticns, contingent payments, goodwill impairments, and un-téxed disposals which are all capital items from a tax
paint of view. Furthermore, the £13.0m profit on the disposal (before tax) of the Group’s 24.9% shareholding in Walker Media received no tax

charge (due to utilising exempticns under the UK substantial shareholding exemption {SSE)), which had the effect of reducing the statutory tax rate
in 2019,

The Group’s headline tax rate is different to the UK’s corparate tax rate:

2019 2019 2018 2018

£m % £m %

Headline profits at UK corporation tax rate (3.5) 19.0% (4.5) 19.0%
Headline adjustments:

Group tax rate mix (1.5) £.1% (1.6) 6.7%

Expenses not deductible for tax (0.4) 2.3% (2.3} 9.8%

Other 0.1 (0.4)% 0.1 {0.17%

Headline tax and Its tax rate (5.3) 28.0% (8.3) 35.4%

2018 numbers have been restated.

Non-controlling interests (minority interests)
On a headline reporting basis, the share of profits from non-controlling interests increased to 24.9m (2018: £3.9m) as a result of an increase in the
share of profits derived from subsidiaries with the highest minority shareholdings.

However, for statutory reporting, certain costs that were charged to non-controlling interests in headling reporting are required {under IFRS 2) to
be accounted for as staff costs, as the share option charge is accrued and subsidiary dividend is paid. As part of the extensive audit review, along
with a change to accounting practices for limited liability partnerships, most of the minorities’ share and rewards from local equity have been
redefined as staff costs. The effect of this has been to decrease the non-controlling interest ctarge from £2.7m in 2018 to £6.1m after adjustment
in 2018, with a contribution of £0.1m in 2019,

14 M&C Saatchi plc
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FINANGE DIRECTOR'S REVIEW

The Group’s net cash flow from operating activities was £33.6m. In February 2019, we received £23.3m from the sale of the Group’s remaining
24.9% sharehaolding in Walker Media. Out of these proceeds, £8.9m was used to settle management options which as an exception were paid in
cash that would otherwise have been settied through issuing shares in the Gompany. In addition, part of the proceads were used to pay Company
dividends of £9.8m. The Group’s improved cash collection procedures helped drive the improvement to working capital in 2019.

The Group extended its revolving credit facility (RCF) with National Westminster Bank plc (Natwest) in April 2020. The RCF was reduced from
£36.0m to £33.0m from 1 December 2020 and matures on 30 June 2021. As at 31 December 2019, the full amount of the RCF was drawn.

In addition to the RCF, the Group has a £5m overdraft facility with NatWest, which remained un-utilisad as at 31 December 2019.

The primary purpose of both the RCF and the overdrafi facility is to support the Group’s working capital requirements which are capable of
significant movement within any given month and from one month to the next.

In addition to the RCF and the overdraft facility, the Company recently received approval for £7m of funding through the UK Government's
Coronavirus Large Business Interruption Loan Scheme {CLBILS). Given the current cash balance and existing headroom, securing this additional
funding is an entirely precauticnary measure aimed at ensuring the Company has sufficient cash balances to continue to operate under any
plausible trading scenario. The additional headroom from the CLBILS facility is not expected to be drawn.

As a prudent and precautionary measure, in August 2020, the Company amended its financial covenants under the RCF which provide for a relaxation
of the financial covenants for the final quarter of 2020 to the maturity of the RCF thereby mitigating potential risks that could arise under an extremely
severe scenario. The RCF does provide that where the auditors qualify the audited annual gonsclidated financial statements of the Company in a
material way there is an event of default. However, the bank has confirmed that it has no intention of giving notice to the Company of an event of
defauit nor taking any action as a result of such qualification and therefore the Company does not consider this to be a risk.

The Group has made good progress in improving its cash management function. We appointed a Group Treasurer in January 2020 and are in the
process of depfoying a global cash management platform ta enable global cash pooling with the aim of reducing net borrowings.

Key balance sheet movements

The identification of the historic accounting misstatements and the change in key judgements has resulted in a number of material changes to the
way we account for certain key items and the way we now present the balance sheet compared to previous years. Key areas driving the change in
presentation include how the Group accounts for subsidiary minority hofdings, the Group’s accounting palicy for revenue recognition and the
implementation of the new leasing standard (FRS 18.
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FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

Share-based payments

The Group’s business model is founded on entrepreneurialism. A key component of that has been ownership by senior management in the
subsidiary companies they operate, through share-based incentive arrangaments. Accounting for share-based payments is a complex area, with
different accounting treatments applicable depending on the nature of the share scheme in place. To increase clarity in this area we have indicated
the potential dilutive effect in note 26 of the financial statements, providing an estimate of the total number of shares issuable in each of the next
five years through the various share-based payments schemes.

This is summarised in the table below:

Shares issued and % dilution at different share prices

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Shares total by year 000 '000 '000 000 '000
At 62p (-50%) 26,973 5,580 16,881 5,318 8,263
At 124p (unadjusted) 15,349 3,607 9,870 3,755 4,405
At 1860 (+50%) 11,445 2,949 7,605 2,073 3,950
Dilstion of 31 December
2019 shareholders 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
At 62p (-60%) 29% 6% 18% 7% 9%
At 124p {unagjusted) 16% 4% 1% 4% 5%
At 186p (+50%) 12% 3% 8% 3% 3%

This analysis has been calculated using budgets and valuations which were determined before the start of the Covid-19 pandemic. Current valuations may
now be lower with the result that the number of shares to be issued and the dilutive impact may be lower than stated above.

The Company has experienced a significant decling in its share price over the last 12 months, from a peak of 394p per share in March 2019, In many of the
share schemes, the consideration is calculated at a fixed multiple of the relevant subsidiary company’s profits. The consideration is typically paid in shares
of the Company, with the result that as the Company’s share price has fallen a greater number of shares are needed to be issued as cansideration under

the schemes. This has a very significant dilutive effect.

A number of share schemes which will shortly fall due to be exercised are now being renegotiated with the intention of reducing the number of shares in the

Company to be issued during 2020. The discussion with the share option holders is ongoing, but we anticipate that as a result of these negotiations, dilution
will be significantly lower than the 29% referred to in the table above.

18 M&C Saatchi plc
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RISK REVIEW

Risks and uncertainties

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and system of internal controls, and for reviewing their effectiveness. It
operates a policy of continuous identification and robust agsessment of pringipal and emerging business risks. This includes identifying principal
and other emerging risks, determining risk control strategies and considering how those risks may affect the achievement of business objectives,

taking into account risk appetite.
The principal risks are:
Risk

Loss of clients

Loss of clients and reductions in expected revenue from
clients. Given the size of the Group, we expect to lose
some clients over time, Qur aim is always to minimise
these losses. We lose clients for a number of reasons,
including: negative global or local economic conditi
directly impacting clients’ businesses; clients running out
of funding after they have commissioned with us; clients
redirecting their marketing and other budgeted
expenditure elsewhere.

20

Mitigation

Ws continue to develop our offerings to reflect clients’ changing marketing
requirements and actively seek cross selling opportunities with those clients. In
particular, we are conducting a client-focused strategic review to enable us to
deliver what our clients nead in the future. Providing we get our offerings right,
we will continue to convert new clients on the basis of our creative excsllence,
our strategic wisdom, the commitment and brilliange of our staff and our diverse
portfolio of services.

Change In Risk

No change pre Govid-19; There was a
continuous change in client needs.

increased post Covid-19: The sudden
economic impact of the Covid-19
pandemic has meant some of our clients
have either delayed, reduced or pulled
their marketing spend. The Covid-19
pandemic has also increased the pace of
change in service delivery and clients’
needs.
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RISK REVIEW

internal controis

The risk that cur muitiple accounting platforms, lack of
common financial control policies, reliance on manual
processes, the ability for controls to be overridden
without knowledge or review by others, and cultural and
historical habits do not reflect the Board's direction.

GCentrai control

Due to the large number of businesses in the Group and
the refatively decentralised management of those
businesses and complexity of the Group structure, the
risk exists that significant business decisions that should
be decided and/or approved centrally are made locally
without central oversight.

Reputation risk

Qur name has brand value and recognition and helps
our pitch and win clients. As our name is well known, aur
actions are subject to public scrutiny, despite our
relatively small size. Many of the risks identified in this
risk review section may damage our brand and
reputation.

Fundging

The Company could experience a breach of its financial
covenants under its revolving credit facility agreement
with National Westminster Bank plc leading to cash
restrictions, loss of shareholder confidence and less
favourable terms when refinancing in the future.

22

As set out in the Audit Committee Report and Governance Review, we are
rearganising the Group’s finance function, creating standard Group accounting
policies and procedures, implementing a ¢loud-based accounting and forecasting
system to be deployed across the Group, as well as performing a governance
review, improving whistie-blowing systems and identifying any cultural changes
needed.

Ag part of the strategy and governance review, the Group is reviewing those
areas of the Group that may require greater central control, including finance,
legal, HR and IT, as well as simplifying the Group’s structure and reinforcing and
enhancing existing governance rules.

We accept reputation risk management is at the heart of managing all the other
risks set out here. We accept its importance and actively engage in due diligence
and effective communications to manage this risk.

We closely monitor and forward test to ensure compliance with the financial
covenants in the facility agreement. We nurture the long-term relationships we
have with our current bank and have strong relationships with other banks. We
perform forward covenant testing on a monthly basis which applies sensitivity
and stress modelling

Increased: Accounting errors and
misstatements have highlighted this as a
key area of concern.

Increased: Accounting errors and
misstatements have highlighted this as a
key area of concern and resulted in an
acceleration of the mitigating actions.

Increased: The accounting errors
identified have increased the scrutiny on
the Group.

Increased: We have relaxed our
financial covenants under our existing
facility agreement to allow for any
decrease in revenue.
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RISK REVIEW

Financial

Changes to exchange rates, interest rates and the
Company's share price can affect our profitability, cash
flows and future liquidity

Investment

The risk that businesses that the Group acquires or
invests in as start-ups fail to deliver their anticipated
results.

Litigation risk

As a services business that continuously interacts with
all its stakeholders and clients, there is a residual risk of
litigation.

24

We monitor and model fikely and actual changes. The global implementation of a
cloud-based accounting and forecasting system will improve our decision making
as well as enabling the better utilisation of locally held cash. We maintain ciose
relationships in the banking sector and the wider capital markets to enable us to
access future liquidity.

We monitor our businesses’ performance regularly and give them assistance
where required. Where acquisitions or start-ups have not performed as well as
expected, we act quickly in either fixing the problem, divesting or terminating the
business.

The Group reviews and updates its quality control process, employs staff with
knowledge and expertise and seeks legal advice where necessary. The Group,
where it can, insures against this risk, and regularly engages with its insurer via
its broker,

Increased: Brexit, the Covid-18
pandemic, and our accounting errors and
misstatements have increased our
volatility in markets and potentially the
cost of capital and may impact our cash
flows.

Increased: The effects of accounting
errors and misstatements, as well as the
Covid-1§ pandemic have reduced the
Group’s ability to support
underperforming offices, that may under
improved market conditions have a iong-
term future. Conversely these
circumstances have also meant that
there have been no acquisitions or
investments made during the year.

No change: The accounting errors, and
the potential future consequences of
regulatory investigation increases this
risk.

In other areas this risk has remained the
same.
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GOVERNANCE REVIEW

At the Board meeting held on 18 September 2018, the Board formally adopted the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 {the
Code), with the agreement that we would not comply due to our size and history in those areas set out in the compliance table within this
governance review. Previous to this, as a company listed on the AIM Market of the London Stock Exchange, the Quoted Companies Alliance had
been the guiding code in respect of the Company’s corporate governance standards.

Given the Company’s decentralised business model, the journey in adopting the principles of the Code has taken some time and the international
spread of the business has provided some problems that are still in the process of being resclved. However, to reassure our stakeholders, the
Board fully understands and believes that good corporate governance is an essential element in helping to build a successful business in a
sustainable manner. The Beard is reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s governance framework and the Board is fully committed to
achieving full compliance with the Code during 2020,

The accounting errors and misstatements announced to the market in 2019 were discovered by our own staff after the departure of some key
members of the finance team in early 2019. As soon as the errors were discovered, the Company appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP’s
Forensic Services Group to conduct a full scope forensic investigation. The report ensuing from that investigation produced by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP set out the steps that the Augit Gommittee and the newly appointed Finance Director needed to take to eradicate
the control risk that led to those errors.

Following the resignations of one Executive Director and three Non-Executive Directors, the remainder of the Board then initiated the process of
recruiting new Non-Executive Directors who the Board would consider to be independent and who could assist with the changes required to
corporate governance, serving the needs of all stakeholders and thereby allowing the business to grow.

As mentioned in the Chief Executive’s Review (page 3) alongside the strategic review, the Group is reviewing its governance standards and
remuneration policy, which will result in the evolution of the business mode! described in the Directors’ Report (page 55).

We have set out the steps and measures below that, at the time of writing, have already been taken or are a work in progress with expected
completion by the end of 2020, despite the difficulties in working patterns posed by the Covid-19 pandemic. The Board, of course, accepts and
believes there is more to do.

The new finance systems and policies introduced across the Group, as mentioned in the Finance Director’s Report on page 9, will allow the
management and the Beard to monitor the effectiveness of internal controls, risk management policies and ensure compliance with statutory and
regulatory obligations across the Group.

Further we have set out how we have applied the principles of the Code with additional detail found in the Directers’ Report, and elsewhere in the
Annual Report and Accounts.

1) Board Leadership and Company Purpose

The Code provides that a Board shoufd estabiish a company's purpose and values as well as its strategy and that ifs directors should lead by
example and promote the desired culture.

08 M&C Saatchi plc
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GOVERNANCE REVIEW

The Non-Executive Directors now comprise: Gareth Davis, Deputy Chairman; Lisa Gordon, Sen or Independent Non-Executive Director; Colin
Jones, Chair of the Audit Committee and Louise Jackson, Chair of the Remuneration Committee. Each of these Non-Executive Directors are
considered by the Board to be independent, none of whom have any connection or previous relationship with the Company having not been
employees or shareholders or had material business relationships with the Company amongst other things. Each Director has the necessary time,
skifls and resources to discharge their Board responsibilities.

The Board engaged Inzito Partnership Limited (Inzito), an external search consultancy practice, to find the new Non-Executive Directors. The Board
informed Inzito of the skilis and experience required for each of the positions and instructed them to put forward a range of candidates with a
focus on skill set and diversity. Inzito led an extensive search pracess, with a number of very high quality candidates shortlisted and then
interviewed by the Board, resulting in the varicus appointments.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and are able to gain access to external independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense should they wish to do so in the furtherance of their duties.

It is the intention of the Board to conduct a formal and vigorous evaluation of the performance of the Beard and its committees. In 2021, it is the
Board’s intention to commission an external Board evaluation exercise conducted by a leading board evaluation expert. The 2019 evaluation did
not happen due to the resignation of half of the previous Board at the end of 2019,

The Nomination Committee did not meet between January and December 2019. Following the resignation of half of the previous Board on 10
December 2019, the Nomination Committee was reconstituted and consisted of all members of the Board of the Company at the time. The
Nomination Committee then consisted of the Chairman, the Chief Executive and all of the Non-Executive Directors. From May 2020, the Nomination
Committee has been chaired by the Deputy Independent Non-Executive Chairman and it is responsible for all executive and non-executive
appointments and has oversight of the executive committee that reports to the Chief Executive. The Nomination Committee has used and continues
to use independent search consultancies for all of its appointments.

5) Audit, Risk and Internal Control

During 2019 (until his resignation on 10 December 2018) the Audit Committee Chair was Sir Mizhael Peat, who had recent and relevant financial
experience as required by the Gode.

As of 3 February 2020, Colin Jones was appointed as Audit Committee Chair - see his biography on page 39. With Colin’s appointment, the Board
was further strengthened with financial and accounting acumen. As a result, the Beard considers that he has recent and relevant financial
experience as required by the Code.

The raport of the Audit GCommittee describing the issues considered in the year under review, as well as how the new Audit Committee has
educated itself on the issues, is on page 40.

To improve internal controls and financial risk management we are reorganising the Group’s finance function, creating standard Group accounting

policies and procedures, implementing a cloud-based accounting and forecasting system to be deployed across the Group, as well as performing a
governance review, improving whistie-blowing systems and identifying any cultural changes needed.
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GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Diversity and employees

The Board is sommitted to promoting diversity. The Board has a diversity of relevant skill sets with varied and balanced experience, knowledge
and skills that are highly relevant to the Company’s needs and challenges. The Company is committed to a merit based system for both its Board
composition as well as talent recruitment for the Group within a diverse and inclusive culture which seeks outward multiple perspectives and views
and is free of conscious or unconscious bias and discrimination.

The diversity and inclusivity of our entire team are important for us to bring out the best in our business and understand and reflect the needs of
our clients and other key stakeholders. We are fully committed to respect and deliver fair treatment for everyone whatever their background,
race, ethnicity, gender or other protected characteristics (as defined within the Equality Act 2010) and deliver opportunity and development for all
of our clients, team members and stakeholders.

The Group’s equal opportunities policy is not to discriminate on any grounds other than somecne’s ability to work effectively. To deliver this we
continually review our application process, make reasonable adjustments to working arrangements and to the physical aspects of the workplaces,
as well as offering any necessary training.

The Company has recently developed a new diversity and inclusion strategy incorporating the above aims and commitments with & view to rolling it
out Group wide.

Under the strategy, the key aims for diversity and inclusion are:

« Toensure our business is representative of the countries in which we operate.

« To champion representation of under-represented groups at Board and management level (as well as throughout the business).

« Toensure all our people are treated with equity and respect.

+ To support all our staff (particularly those from under-represented groups) and to prevent anyone feeling isolated or excluded.

« To connect to and support the communities and networks around us, working with businesses and suppliers led by under-represented
groups.

- To be transparent about what we need to do and hold ourselves acccuntable for change.

Our commitment is to:

« Increase the diversity in our workforce particularly at senior level,

« Challenge our culture, insisting on inclusivity and more equitable leadership identifying and tackling unconscious bias.
»  Create an inclusive workspace which includes a safe space for all employees to feel comfortable and valued.

»  Open our doors to other cultures and use our power and influence for good.

Diversity of thought is important to the Group and its clients. The Group is working globally and locally to improve its future talent pool and to
enhance our ability to attract and nurture the best talent regardless of background, ethnicity or any disabilities. We recognise there is a lot to be
done; however, we are committed to take action to ensure we are a fair and equitable organisation, representative of the global societies in which
we operate by prioritising our commitment to create a more diverse and inclusive workplace and to be intentional in our actions. From the lived
experience of our employees, 10 the commitments we make to discriminated communities as well as the influence we have on culture through our
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GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Compliance with the UK Gorporate Governance Code 2018 (the Code)

The table below sets out those areas of the Code that the Company has not complied with during the relevant period. ltems marked with an X
demonstrate non-compliance with the Code. This table is reflective of the resignation of all of the Non-Executive Directors on 10 December 2019,
the appointment of two new Non-Executive Directors on 3 February 2020, and the appointment of two further Non-Executive Directors on 17 March
2020. On 6 May 2020, the Gompany’s Renumeration Committee and its Nominations Committee were reconstituted with the Non-Executive
Directors. Following the annual general meeting to be held in 2020, the Chairman will be a Non-Executive Director and the Non-Executive Directors
will form a majority on the Board.

to be appointed who acts as an
intermediary for other Board
members and annually appraises
the Ghairman’s performance.

there was no Senior Non-Executive Director o7 the
Gompany.

Provision of the Code 1Jdan 10 Departure from the Code Future Compliance with the Code
2018~ 10 | Dacember
December | 2010-3
2019 February
2020
5) Engagement with workforce X X The Company did not have a director appointed from the The intention is that one of the Non-Executive Directors
using one of the prescribed workforce, a formal workforce advisory panel nor a will represent the employees on the Board.
methods. designated non-executive director. There was no formal
meghanism for engagement with the workforce save for The Company will comply with the Code by 2021.
non-formal engagement.
9) The Chairman should be X X The Company departs from this praovision, the Chairman | Gareth Davis is a Non-Executive Director and will replace
independent on appointment. being an Executive Director and, therefore, not | Jeremy Sinclair as Chairman. He will be independent
independent. Upon the Company's listing t0 the A!M market | upon his appointment.
of the London Stock Exchange, the Chairman was appointed
for an indefinite term subject to re-electior. The Board | From Gareth Davis’ appointment at the annual general
considered the depth of knowledge that the Chairman brings | mesting in 2020, the Company will comply with the Code.
to the Board to be of significant value fo~ a creative
business.
11) At least half the Board, X X The Company departed from this provision as during the Upon Jeremy Sinclair's departure and excluding the
excluding the Chairman, should be year the Board comprised the Chairman, four Exécutive Chairman, the Board will have an equal number of Non-
Non-Executive Directors whom the Directors and three independent Non-Executive Directors. | Executive Directors who the Board considers to be
Board considers to be independent. independent.
The Board believed that the diversity of skills end
experience which the Executive Directors brought to the Following the annual general meeting in 2026, the
Board was more valuable to the business’s development Company will comply with the Code.
than having Non-Executive Directors comprising at least
half the Board.
12} Senior Non-Executive Director J X During the periced 10 December 2019 to 3 February 2020, Gareth Davis became the Senior Independent Non-

Executive Director on 3 February 2020 and subsequently
Lisa Gordon on her appointment on 17 March 2020
became the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director.

The Company now complies with the Code.
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GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Provision of ths Code 1Jan 10 Departure from the Code Futura Compliance with the Code
2019-1¢ | December
Dacamber | 2018-3

2019 February
2020
40) and 41) Remuneration policy X X The Company intends to formulate a new remuneration The revised policy will be put to shareholders for
and disclosures aligned with the poiicy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors approval at the annual general meeting te be held in
Code which will reflect the Code. The policies and practices 2021, which will allow more full disclosure in next year’s

indicated in Provision 40 of the Code {which underpins the | annual report.
disclosures recommended in Provision 41) were not
previously formally considered

Section 172 of the UK Companies Act 2006

In accordance with the Code which incorporates section 172 of the UK Companies Act 2006, and as a matter of good governance, in our decision
making, the Board considers the interests of the Group’s employees and other stakeholders and understands the importance of taking into
account their views. We regularly engage with our employees and shareholders. The Board is accountable to the Company’s shareholders. It is
important for the Board to appreciate the aspirations of the shareholders and equally that the shareholders understand how the actions of the
Board and the short-term financial performance of the Company relate to the achievement of the Company’s longer term goals. The Board reports
to the shareholders on its stewardship of the Company through the publication of interim and final results each year. Press releases are issued
throughout the year and the Company maintains a website (mcsaatchiplc.com) on which press releases and the Annual Report and Accounts are
available to view. Additionally, this Annuaf Report and Accounts contains extensive information about the Company’s activities. The annual general
meeting provides an opportunity for communication with all shareholders and the Board encourages shareholders to attend and welcomes their
partigipation. Directors attend the annual general meeting and are available to answer guestions.

Qur key creditor is National Westminster Bank plc with whom we actively engage. Our client needs are at the heart of all our decisions, and they
are the centrepiece of our strategic review and commitment to gocd governance. A large proportion of our waork for clients is helping them with
their impact of their operations on community and environment; this creates a drive in our own decision making and ways of working in these
areas. With regulators, where there is a direct engagement, we aim to work with them in a positive and helpful manner, often allowing our staff to
sit on their committees.

Our business model creates a flat, delegated organisation structure that allows its core concept of shared ownership, shared objectives and
shared ambitions and enables engagement with stakeholders across the entire Group. The delegated structure has meant that most operational
decisions are taken by local management at a local subsidiary level, rather than centrally from head office and has enabled the business to get
closer and have greater engagement with its stakeholders. Whilst this delegated structure has the benefit of enabling the business to be mare
closely engaged with stakehoiders, it results in reduced control and oversight from the Group. As part of the ongoing strategic review, we will be
examining the balance between local stakehclder management and Group stakeholder management, with the objective of improving controls,
becoming more efficient and reducing risk. The strategic review will take account of all stakeholders in accordance with section 172 of the UK
Companies Act 2006.

34 M&C Saatchiple
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JEREMY SINCLAIR

CHAIRMAN

=><_= KERSHAW

GHIEF EXECUTIVE AND ENECUTIVE GIRECTUR

Jeremy Sinclair is a founding director of the Company.
He was one of the founders of Saatchi & Saatchi in
1970, became Chairman of the UK agency in 1982 and
was appointed Chairman of Saatchi and Saatchi
International in 1986. He later became Executive
Creative Director of Saatchi & Saatchi Advertising
Worldwide and Chairman of Saatchi & Saatchi plc.

David Kershaw is a founding director of the Company.
He joined Saatchi & Saatchi in 1982 after obtaining an
MBA at London Business School. He became Managing
Director in 1990 and was made Chairman and Chief
Executive of the UK agency in 1994,

M&C Saatchi plc
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GARETH _===m

HOR-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR-

LISA GORDON

HON-ERECUTIVE DRgECTOR-

Gareth Davis joined the Board on 3 February 2020.
He has been Ghairman of DS Smith Plc, a FTSE 100
packaging business, since 2012, having joined the
company’s board in 2010. Gareth is also a Non-
Executive Director of Gresham House Plg, the asset
manager. Previously, Gareth sat on the board of
Ferguson Plc, the FTSE 100 building materials
business, between 2003 and 2019, spending the last
nine years as Chairman. He was Chairman of William
Hill Plg, the FTSE 250 betting and gaming company,
between 2010 and 2018. Gareth was Chief Executive
of Imperial Tobacco Group Pic (now Imperial Brands
plc), between 1996 and 2010, having joined the
business in 1972,

**Gareth Davis was appointed as a Director on 3 February 2020.

Lisa Gordon joined the Board con 17 March 2020. She
has almost 25 years’ board experience, in both
Executive and Non-Executive roies, with specialisms in
TMT and finance. She is currently a Non-Executive
Director of Alpha FX Group Plc, a listed foreign
exchange specialist, and Magic Light Pictures, a
children’s film and television production company. She
was recently appointed as Chairman of Cenkos
Securities Plc, a securities firm focused on growth
companies. Until recently, Lisa was Non-Executive
Chairman of Albert Technologies Plc, an online
advertising software business. She was also a founding
Directer of Local World Plc, which was acquired by
Trinity Mirror in 2016, Prior to this, Lisa was Chief
Operating Officer of Yattendon Group, a private
conglomerate, for six years and Corporate
Development Director at the media group Chrysalis
Group Plg for ten years. Previously, Lisa has also
served as a Non-Executive Director of Future Plg, the
magazine group.

***Lisa Gerdon was appointed as a Director on 17 March 2020,

M&C Saatchi plc
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Qverview

This report covers the activities of the two Audit Committees which served the Board during the period covering the audit of the 2019 financial
statements. The former Audit Committee, which comprised the then three independent Non-Executive Directors, chaired by Sir Michael Peat,
served until 10 December 2019 when all members of the committee resigned as directors of the Company. The principal activities of the former
Audit Committee were the aversight of the 2018 audit and the initial investigation into the accounting misstatements identified during 2019,

A new Audit Committee was formed on 3 February 2020 when Gareth Davies and | were appointed to the Board as independent Non-Executive
Directors. Lisa Gordon and Louise Jackson, who were appointed as independent Non-Executive Directors on 17 March 2020, joined the new Audit
Committee on 6 May 2020. The Board asked me to chair the new Audit Committee on the basis of my recent and relevant financial experience. The
pringipal activity of the new Audit Committee has been the oversight of the 2019 audit including the adjustments requirad to the 2018 financial
statements as a result of the prior year accounting misstatements.

The Audit Committee’s mandate is to provide effective governance over the appropriateness of the Group’s financial reporting and the
performance of both the internal and external audit functions. The Audit Committee also oversees the Group’s internal control systems, business
risks management and related compliance activities. Committee meetings are attended by the Finance Director and the Company Secretary, and by the
external auditors, the internal auditors and key members of the Group’s UK based central finance team as required. The committee also meets with the
external auditor and the internal auditor without the Executive Directors present.

The key responsibilities of the Audit Committee are set out in the 2018 Board Responsibilities document published at:
www.mcsaatchiplc.com/governance and reflect the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 (the Gode).

The Audit Committee works to a programme aligned to key events in the financial reporting cycle. Agendas also include key audit, accounting and
reporting issues as well as standing items required by the Audit Committee’s terms of reference.

Activities of the former Audit Committee
The former Audit Committee met $ix times during 2019 and the principal matters considered in these meetings were:

« Completion of the 2018 audit
The key considerations in preparing the 2018 financial statements are set out in the 2018 Audit Committee Report and included going concern;
revenue recognition; put option accounting; ‘headling’ earnings; goodwill carrying value; acquisition accounting; and recommendaticns for
improvements in the Group’s accounting systems and internal controls. Following completion of the 2018 audit, the committee also reviewed the
effectiveness of the external audit and the need for the audit to be put out to tender.

« Audit tender
Prior to the discovery of the accounting rmisstatements, the committee decided to hold an open tender for its audit services. KPMG, as the
incumbent auditor, was invited to participate in the tender, but declined and resigned as auditor in September 2019 on the grounds that it had
been unable to agree a satisfactory commercial outcome for the additional audit work required to complete the 2018 audit.

a0 M&C Saatchi ple
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Activities of the new Audit Committee
| was appointed Audit Committee Chair on 3 February 2020. Since then, the newly constituted Audit Committee has held nine meetings to address:

« Significant accounting matters and judgements, including prior year adjustments, going concern, revenue recognition, put option
accounting assessment of goodwill, valuation of investments in associates and unlisted equity investments lease accounting, and
alternative performance measures (see below);

s The progress of the 2019 audit and amendments to the audit plan; and

+ Approval and signing of the Annual Report and Accounts.

These meetings were also attended by the Chief Executive, the Finance Director, the Gompany Secretary and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Gompletion of 2019 audit
The 2019 audit has been conducted against a background of significant accounting misstatements identified by management earlier in 2019 and has
taken significantly longer than expected to compiete. This reflects a number of factors including:

« Additional audit work to verify the prior year misstatements and determine the pericd to which they relate;

« Chalienges for the auditors with obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidenge for the restated 2019 opening balances because of an
absence of, or poor, underlying documentaticn and an inability to obtain explanations from the former Finance Director and other
members of the finance team who are no longer employed by the Group (which has led to a disclaimer of audit opinicn on the profit and
cash flows for the year and a qualified audit opinion on the comparability of the state of affairs with the 2018 year-end),

« Additional audit work around going concern as a result of the uncertainty over future forecasts created by the Covid-19 pandemic;

« Significant additional audit work on revenue recognition as a result of poor documentation and inconsistent application of the Group’s
accounting policy under IFRS 15;

« A reassessment of the accounting treatment of the many share-based incentive schemes and deferred censideraticn arrangements in
operation across the Group, and poor documentation of these schemes;

« The need for the Board to address impravements in corporate governance and the disclosure of the many instances of non-compliance
with the Code;

« Significant structural, control and reporting issues across the Group’s finance function, exacerbated by excessive decentralisation to, and
autonomy of, local and overseas finance teams.

All of these issues have been discussed at length with the auditors. All of the issues are in the process of being addressed including significant
investment in new people and systems. Monitoring these improvements will continue to be a focus of the Audit Cemmittee through the rest of 2020
and into 2021.

The most significant accounting issues and judgements considered by the new Audit Committee, and discussed with the external auditor, are set
out helow.

49 M&C Saatchi plc
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Going concern

As explained on pages 56 to 57 and page 63, the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis. In this context the
Board and Audit Committee considered the Group’s ability to meet its obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future, with
particular reference to the economic downturn caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, the support of its lenders, and the credit which it
extends to some of its clients. Management prepared a set of cash flow forecasts, assessing different scenarios, covering the period to
the end of 2021. The Board and Audit Committee reviewed these forecasts under each scenario and the key assumptions on which they
were based and are satisfied that they are appropriate.

The Board concluded that under all scenarios the Company will continue to have sufficient liquidity to operate. However, under a severe
but plausible scenario there is a risk of breaching the Company's financial covenants under its revolving credit facility agreement with
National Westminster Bank plc (NatWest), unless a further waiver agreement is reached within the going concern period. There are also
further mitigating actions the Company could take to eliminate any risk of the Company breaching its financial covenants, should these be
required. Itis aiso noted that the revoiving credit facility is due to expire on 30 June 2021 and, the Company is in discussions with NatWest
to extend the term and/or refinance the facility.

Under the terms of the revolving credit facility agreement the bank could give the Company notice of an event of default given that where
the auditors qualify the audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Company in @ material way an event of default arises.
However, the bank has confirmed that it has no intention of giving notice ta the Company of an event of default nor taking any action as a
result of such qualification and therefore the Board does not consider this to be a risk.

Based on these forecasts and assumptions, the Board and the Audit Committee believe that it remains appropriate to prepare the
financial statements on a going concern basis. Only the severe but plausible downside scenario and the two areas mentioned ahove would
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt abaut the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
without any mitigating action. The financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Group was unable to continue
as a going concern,

Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition is a key accounting and risk area for the Group. The Group adopted IFRS 15 from 1 January 2018, but only at a Group
level. Local subsidiaries did not apply IFRS 15 until 2019, and even then, not on a consistent basis. A significant amount of time has
therefore been required for management to get all subsidiaries accounting correctly under IFRS 15 for 2019, particularly around the key
judgements of:

(i) The number of performance obligations within a contract;

(i) Determining whether the contract was entered as a principal or agent;

(i) Calculating the percentage of contract completion at the period end.

The Audit Committee has devoted considerable time to reviewing these matters. It is satisfied that the Group’s revenue is not materially

misstated. The Audit Committee has requested that revenue accounting should be a particular area of focus for the ongoing developments
of the Group’s accounting systems and future internal audit work.

44 M&C Saatchi plc
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accounting of dividends paid 1o members of the Group’s LLP entities from 2017 and earlier has been made to statutory profit before tax.
This adjustment has no impact on 2018 headline profit before tax.

Goodwill carrying value and impairment

The carrying value of goodwill as at 31 December 2019 was £33.6m, full details of which are set out in note 16 to the financiai statements.
The recoverable amount of goodwill is determined by management by reference to a value-in-use calculation for each cash generating unit
(CGU), based an the Board’s forecasts for 2020 and 2021 and a long-term growth rate of 1.5% for all material CGUs. Management also
prepare sensitivity analyses for each CGU, for which the key variables are the forecast profits for 2020 the expected future growth rates,
and the discount rate used to measure the present value of the forecast cash flows. This exercise has identified the need for an
impairment charge of £56.9m across a number of CGUs as weli as a prior year adjustment of £2.7m for goodwill impairmant which should
have been charged in 2017.

The Audit Committee has reviewed management’s assessment of the recoverability of this goodwill and the potential for any impairment,
taking into account the key judgements and sensitivity analyses, particularly in view of the uncertainty over net revenue and cash flow
forecasts arising from the Covid-19 pandemic. The committee has also reviewed the disclosures relating to goodwill carrying values and
impairment in note 16 to the financial statements. The committee is satisfied with the impairment conciusions reached and the
presentation in the financial statements,

investments in agsociates and unlisted equity investments

The Group has traditionally held a number of investments in entities where it holds significant influenge, where an initial interest is taken
with a view to serving a strategic market or obtaining critical mass in a larger organisation. These investments are treated as associates
and are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

Management assess the carrying value of these investments at the balance sheet date, including the need for any impairment. During
2019, the largest of these investments, a 24.9% interast in Walker Madia Limited in the UK, was sold, generating a pre-tax profit on disposal
of £13.0m (see note 35 to the finangial statements). The carrying value of the other significant investment, a 40% interest in M&C Saatchi
{Hong Kong) Limited, has been impaired by £5.2m to reflect the significant reduction in its activities. As a result, the carrying value of the
investments in associates has fallen to £3.8m (2018: £22.6m).

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting for the disposal, the impairment calculation for the Hong Kong investment, and
management’s assessment of the carrying value of the remaining investments in associates, and is satisfied that these have been
appropriately treated and disclosed in the financial statements.

The Group also invests in early stage, uniisted businesses for the purposes of gaining access to new technologies and digital media trends.
The partfolic of more than 20 investments is managed independently by experienced investment managers who are remunerated based on
the performance of the investments, During the year the Group invested a further £1.2m in new and existing businesses and the net
revaluation adjustment at the end of the year was a decrease of £0.3m, giving a portfolio value of £15.6m (see note 20(a) to the financial
statements). Because most of the investments are smal! (the biggest accounts for just 11% of the portfolio) and early stage, valuations
are inhgrently judgemental, other than when there have been recent funding rounds.

M&C Saatchi plc
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External auditor

PricawaterhouseCoopers LLP were appointed auditors of the Group and Company in September 2018, following a competitive tender process.
The PricewaterhouseCGoopers LLP partner responsible for the audit is Nigel Reynolds (Senior Statutory Auditor).

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the external audit process to ensure high standards of quality and effectiveness. Since its
appointment, the new committee has assessed the effectiveness of the external audit process using a number of measures, including:

« Revisiting the audit plan, scope and materiality, approved by the former Audit Committee, In view of the discovery of further accounting
misstatements;

+ Monitoring the independence and transparency of the audit (see below);

» Obtaining feedback from the Finance Director and his team on the quality of the audit team, their business understanding and audit
approach;

» As Chair of the Audit Committee, | have had weekly calls with the PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP audit partner since the audit began, in
particular, to discuss the audit challenges arising from poor accounting processes and documentation, and to understand the reascns
for delays to the audit completion timetable and the resulting increase in audit fees. Feedback from these calfs has been provided to the
Audit Committee and the Board as appropriate.

These measures have enabled the committee to be satisfied with the effectiveness of the external audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP confirmed their independence in accordance with auditing standards at the time of their appointment.
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ’s report to the Directors and to the Audit Committee has confirmed that they continue to remain independent
throughout the 2019 audit, and the committee concurs with this view.

To help safeguard the external auditor’s objectivity and independence, it is excluded from providing any non-audit services that individually, or in
aggregate, could impair its independence. Prior approval from the Audit Committee is required for any audit-related or other services
permitted in accordance with the auditing regulations.

During the year, the only significant non-audit service provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was the independent review by its Forensic
Services Group of the accounting misstatements and misapplication of accounting policies first identified by management. This forensic work
commenced before the audit tender process had been concluded and, as part of the process for engaging PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the
former Audit Committee confirmed that the ferensic work would be undertaken by an entirely separate PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP team, and
that the PricewaterhouseCaopers LLP audit team would remain independent for audit tender purposes. This forensic work did not include
anything in the nature of an audit and the results of the work have not been relied on for the purposes of the 2019 audit, The fees paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in respect of non-audit services are shown in note 8 of the financial statements.

The fee for the 2019 audit of the Group and its subsidiaries is £3.2m (2018: £0.8m). The significant increase in the fee from the previous year
reflects the complexities of conducting the audit foiiowing the identification of the prior year accounting misstatements and the challenges for the
auditors in obtaining adequate audit evidence. One of the Audit Committee’s objectives for the 2020 audit is a significant reduction in the audit
fee as a result of improvements in financial controls, processes and reporting.

48 M&C Saatchi pic
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Remuneration Committee Report

Under its terms of reference, the Remuneration Committee advises the Board on an overall remuneration peficy and meets as and when required.
The Remuneration Committee also determings, on behalf of the Board, the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors. The Board as a
whole determines the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors.

Throughout the period covered by this report, the overall remuneration policy was to attract and retain high calibre executives whitst seeking to
reward them in a way that encourages the creation of value for shareholders, through long term incentive plans and the issue of share awards in
the Company thereby aligning executive pay with the strategy and the fong-term sustainable success of the Company.

Up and until the resignation of one Executive Director and three Non-Executive Directors on 10 Dacember 2019, the Board had astablished a
Remuneration Committee composed of the three Non-Executive Directors which was chaired by Lorna Tilbian. The Remuneration Committee met
twice in the year, once ta discuss the departing Finance Director’s long-term incentive plan, and once to discuss the new Finance Director's bonus
and long-term incentive plan.

At the Board meeting held on 6 May 2020, the Board re-established the Remuneration Committee, consisting of all four of the Non-Executive
Cirectors, with Louise Jackson appointed as Chair.

The Executive Directors’ salaries are on average 6 (2018: 6) times the average Group salary, which is commensurate with their experience,
contacts and responsibilities. Variable consideration for three (and while Maurice Saatchi was a member of the Board, four) of the Executive
Directors is by way of the dividends they receive from their shareholdings in the Company and in the case of the Finance Director, the long term
incentive plan, further detailed below.

None of the previous Directors received any payments from the Company and/or the Group as a result of their loss of office.

The newly appointed Remuneration Committee has initiated a fulf review of the incentive arrangements of the Executive Directors and the share-
based incentive arrangements in operation throughout the Group. The Company has appointed Korn Ferry as an independent external
remuneration advisor {which has no connection to the Company nor to any Director). The Gompany intends to formulate a new remuneration
policy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors which will integrate the principles of the Code and which will be put to shareholders for
approval at the annual general meeting to be held in 2021. The new policy will include equity linkage and performance conditicns for the third and
fourth years (2021 and 2022) of the long-term incentive plan for the new Finance Director, Mickey Kalifa.

No member of the Remuneration Committee has any personal financial interest in the matters to be decided by the committee or involvement in
the day-to-day management of the business of the Company.

Annual Report on Remuneration (unaudited)
Directors’ pension arrangements

The pension contributions, if made, are to the Dirgctors’ money purchase pension schemes.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Non-Executive Directors (unaudited}
The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is determined by the Board. Fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors are reflective of skills and
experience and the time required 10 undertake the role. No element of pay is performance related.

Other benefits (unaudited)

No Director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than a fixed salary as an employee of the Company, the options indicated
in the Annual Report and Accounts, or a benefit included in the aggregate amount of remuneration shown in the financial statements) by reason of
a contract made by the Company or a related corporation of which the Director is a member or with a cempany in which the Director has a
substantial financial interest.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

By order of the Board
Louise Jackson

Chair of the Remuneration Committee
7 December 2020
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Going Goncern

The Directors have adopted the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements after assessing the principal risks and having considered
the impact of several different downside scenarios including a severe but plaugible downside scenario arising from the Covid-18 pandemic. The
Directors have formed their opinion after evaluating these different scenarios for the remaining months of 2020 and for 2021 and have based their
opinion on a downside scenario which assumes net revenus falling substantiaily below 2018 levels.

The major variables are the depth and the duration of the Covid-19 pandemic. The Directors considered the impact of the current Covid-19
pandemic on the Group’s business for the period up and until the end of 2021, taking into consideration the Group’s forecast cash flows, liquidity,
the revolving credit facility agreement (RCF) with National Westminster Bank plc and the recently refaxed financial covenants under it. The models
ty as it is a repayable on demand facility or the newly approved additional £7m Coronavirus Large
Business Interruption Loan Scheme (CLBILS) given that the Company is in the process of agreeing terms. Both forms of financing would
substantially increase the liquidity of the Group. It is also noted that the revolving credit facility is due to expire on 30 June 2021, however, the
Company is in discussions to extend the term and/or refinance the facility. The RCF does provide that where the auditors qualify the audited annual
consolidated financial statements of the Company in a material way there is an event of default. However, the bank has confirmed that it has no
intention of giving notice to the Company of an event of default nor taking any action as a result of such qualification and therefore the Company
does not consider this to be a risk.

We have considered numerous impacts on net revenue, profits and cash flows. The models all assume that the Group will continue to operate and
service clients, albeit at substantially reduced levels to those forecast at the start of the year. We have assumed in the models that the Covid-19
pandemic will result in reductions in net revenue and so will require us to take action in reducing cperational cost in addition to the actions already
taken.

Overall, we scenario planned several outturns, modelling three specific scenarios: a base case scenario, downside scenario and a severe but
plausible scenario. In all three scenarios, the models indicate the Company will continue to have sufficient cash to continue to operate. It is only in
the severe but plausible scenario where there is a risk of breaching the Company’s financial covenants under the RCF.

In our downside scenario, net revenue is assumed to fall by 19% against the previous year, with the impact lasting the entirety of 2020, with a
partial recovery in 2021 {but net revenue still being 12% down against 2019). The net revenue and operational leverage impact of such a net
revenue drop would have a major negative impact on the Group’s profitabifity and cash. However, the scenarie modelling would indicate that
despite this, the Group would remain profitable and cash generative over the next 18 months and we would anticipate a recovery in the following
years.

Throughout this downside scenario, the Group continues to have headroom on its RCF and continues to operate within the boundaries of its
financial covenants under the RCF. To the extent, there is further downside beyond this scenario, the Group can continue to manage its financing
and other business risks satisfactorily, but in a severe but plausible scenario would need to take mitigating action to remain within the boundaries
of its financial covenants under the RCF.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Viahility

The Directors assess the prospects of the Group and appropriateness of the period used for the assessment by taking into account various
factors, including the Group’s current position, the nature of its business, its business model and strategy, its pringipal risks, its liquidity and its
expected performance all of which have been considered in the going concern review.

Time horizon

The Directors have reviewed the period used for the assessment and determined in light of the Covid-19 pandemic that a two-year period (from 31
December 2019) remained suitable and such two year period was also adopted in the going concern review. Given the risks that the Group faces
and the need for continuous change and investment in our client offerings, a two-year time horizon is the maximum length of time the Directors can
reasonably be expected to assess the Group’s viability at the present time. The specific risks in this time horizon are economic impacts of the
Covid-19 pandemic; regulatory risk, including Brexit; the historic accounting misstatements reducing the validity of historic trend analysis; and the
Group’s ongoing governance and strategic reviews.

The Group is currently in the process of developing a new long-term strategic plan, the output of which will include a five-year financiai plan. The
finangial plan will be used to manage and assess the Group’s business and its risks into the future.

Stress test

As per the going concern statement set out on pages b6 and 57, we scenario planned several outturns, including a severe but plausible case where
net revenue drops significantly (in the range of 20%) and the impact lasts the whole of 2020 and into 2021, We have assumed that we will be able to
refinance the revolving credit facility along with the overdraft facility prior to their expiry on 30 June 2021.

Statement
Based on the assessment explained above, the Directors confirm that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will continue to operate
and meet its liabilities, as they fall dus, until at least 31 December 2021.

However, the impacts of a new or recurring pandemic; regulatory risk, including Brexit; the historic accounting misstatements, any additional unforeseen
risks, such as policies on data handling or staff welfare not being followed; a banking crisis; or a major client suddenly and unexpectedy failing, which results
in additional financial burdens on the Group, may change the Board’s expectation of the Group’s viabifity.

Principal risks and uncertainties

On pages 20 and 22 we describe the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties. We provide information on the nature of the risk, actions to mitigate risk
exposure and an indication of the significance of the risk by reference to its potential impact on the Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operation and/or the likelihood of the risk materialising. Not all potential risks are listed on pages 20 to 24. Some risks are excluded because the Board
considers them not to be material to the Group as a whole. Additionally, there may be risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Directors, or which
the Directors currently deem immaterial, that may also have an adverse effect upon the Group.

Financial instruments

Details of the use of financial instruments by the Group and their risks are contained in the financial risk management note 31 of the financial

statements. ‘
|
!
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Whistle-blowing

Employees are encouraged to report any potential, or apparent, malpractice or misconduct in confidence, in accordance with the Group’s internal
whistle-blowing policy. We continue to look at innovative ways to allow our empicyees to report any potential, or apparent, malpractice or
misconduct in confidence. We have introduced a new mobile app, Vault Platform, that gives employees a safe space to repart any form of
misconduct in the workplace, including but not limited to harassment, bullying, discrimination, and racism, through to fraud and corruption. This
has been launched in the UK during 2020 and we are monitoring its usage and effectiveness and will make any necessary amendments prior to
rolling it out to the Group. This is ong of the new system enhancements and will aid with the overhaul of governance.

Engagement with employees and other stakeholder engagement

Ensuring that we create close collaborative and mutually beneficial relationships with mcmu_.ma who adopt standards consistent with our own helps
us to streamline processes, increase savings and protect our reputation. Information about our engagement with our employees can be found at
pages 28, 30, 31, 34 and 35 whilst the consideration of other stakeholders’ views by the Company can be found at page 29 and pages 34 to 35.

Governance
The governance review (including Section 172 of the UK Companies Act 2006 and compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018) explains our
governance arrangements further details can be found www.mcsaatchiplc.com/governance.

Slavery and human trafficking statement

The Group continually monitors its supply chains and operates a zero-tolerance policy to slavery and human trafficking as reflected in its Modern
Slavery Statement, (www.mcsaatchiplc.com/governance)

Directors’ conflict of interest

Under the UK Companies Act 2006, Directors are subject to a statutory duty to avoid a situation where they have, or can have, a direct or indirect interest
that canflicts, or may conflict, with the interests of the Company. Directors are required to notify the Company of any conflict or potential conflict of interest
under an established procedure and any confiicts or potential conflicts are noted at each Board meeting.

Directors’ liability Insurance and indemnity
The Company purchases insurance to cover its Directors and officers against costs they may incur in defending themselves in legal proceedings
instigated against them as a direct result of duties carried out on behalf of the Company.

Change of control
Depending on the cirgumstance, some of the put option agreements with subsidiary companies vest on change of control.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

local opportunities and threats will result in the carrying values of our investments and goodwill potentially being different as at the year ended 31
December 2020 from those as at the year ended 31 December 2019.

We have undertaken a restructuring programme across the entire Group which will result in the closure of a number of businesses in 2020.

As part of our restructuring programme in the second quarter of 2020 the Group closed its Los Angeles subsidiary due to a deterigration in that
subsidiary’s business in 2019 which worsened in 202¢. The estimated Group revenue deriving from the Los Angeles subsidiary declined from 2.8% in
2018 to 1.9% in 2019 whilst the share of Group net revenue deriving from the Los Angeles subsidiary declined from 2.4% in 2018 to 1.4% in 2019.
During this same period, there was substantial turnover of finance staff based in such subsidiary which resulted in poor record keeping and a lack
of finangial information for 2019. The Group finance team has adequate information to confirm the 2019 closing balance sheet for the Los Angeles
subsidiary, including revenue cut-off between 2019 and 2020, but is unable to confirm the opening balance sheet for 2019 given the lack of financial
records.

The Company's shares were temporarily suspended from trading at 7.30am on 1 October 2020 as the Company did not publish the Annual Report
and Accounts by 30 September 2020 which was the last day permitted for publication of the audited results under the AIM Rules (as modified by
the three month extension granted in connection with the Covid-19 pandemic pursuant to the Inside AIM Guidance of 26 March 2020). Upon
publication of the Annual Report and Accounts, the Company expects the suspension to be lifted, and the Company’s shares to be reinstated to
trading.

The Directors are not aware of any other events since the end of the financial year that have had, or may have, a significant impact on the Group’s
operations, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group in future years.

Treasury shares

At the annual general meeting held in 2019, the Directors were given the authority to purchase up to 8,930,000 of the Company's ordinary shares.
At the date of signing of this report this authority had expired and the Directors will seek to renew this authority at the next annual general meeting.
At the year end, the Company held 485,970 of its ordinary shares as treasury shares. The Directors will use them to fulfil option obligations.

Directors’ power to issue shares

At the annual generai meeting held in 2019, the Directors were given the authority to issue up to 59,400,000 of the Company’s ordinary shares of
which 4,480,000 were approved to be issued for cash. During the year, the Company issued 5,993,207 shares to fulfil options and to acquire equity
(see note 29 of the financial statements). The Company did not issue any shares for cash. At the date of signing of this report this authority had
expired and the Directors will seek to renew this authority at the next annual general meeting.

Auditor

The current Directors have taken ail the steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any information needed by the
Company’s auditor for the purposes of their audit and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information. The Directors are not aware of any
relevant audit information of which the auditor is unaware.

A resolution proposing re-appointment PricewaterhouseGaapers LLP as auditor of the Company will be put to the shareholders at the annual
general meeting to be held in 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors’ report and directors’ responsibility statement has been signed by order of tre Board
by:

),
25
Do SR T

_p\zaw Blackstone
Company Secretary
7 December 2020
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PREPARATION

Preparation

Basis of preparation

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going congcern basis, as
discussed in the Directors’ report on page 56, and in accordance with EU-endorsed International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS.

Golng concern
These financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

The Board have concluded that under the most likely going concern scenarios which have been
modelled and they have reviewed, the Company will have sufficient liquidity to continue to
operate.

Given the uncertainty over the duration and economic consequences of the Covid-19 pandemic
and the risk that the economic downturn may continue for a longer period, and/or that the
recovery profile is slower than is considered likely, the Directors have prepared a severe but
nlausible scenario that models a material reduction in revenue. In this scenario, there is ne
recovery in 2021, with revenue remaining 20% below the 2019 level.

Under this severe but plausible scenario, there is a risk of breaching the Company’s financial
covenants under its revalving credit facility (RCF} agreement with National Westminster Bank plc
(NatWest), unless the terms of the RCF are amended or a further waiver agreement is reached
within the going concern period. There are further mitigating actions the Company could take to
eliminate any risk of the Company breaching its financial covenants, should these be required.
Furthermore, the RCF provides that where the auditors qualify the audited annual consolidated
financial statements of the Company in a material way, there is an event of default. However,
NatWest has confirmed that it has no intention of giving notice to the Company of an event of
default nor taking any action as a result of such qualification and, therefore, the Company does
not consider this to be a risk. It is also noted that the RCF is due to expire on 30 June 2021 and,
the Company is in discussions with NatWest to extend the term and/or refinance the facility.

Based on the above, the Board, therefore, believes that it remains appropriate to prepare the
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Board acknowledges that there is a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern without any mitigating action being taken. This material uncertainty arises in a severe but
plausible downside scenario where the covenants could be breached within 12 months of the date
signing this report, due to the refinanging requirement of the RGF prior to 30 June 2021 and a
qualification leading to an event of default albeit that the Company is in discussions with NatWest
to extend the term and/or refinance the facility and NatWest has confirmed that it has no
intention of giving notice to the Company of an event of default nor taking any action as a result of
such gualification.

The financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Group was unable
te continue as a going concern.

Further details are discussed in the Finance Directors review (page 15,16), Audit Committee
Report (page 44) and Directors Report {page 56,57)

g6

Foreign exchange

The consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds sterling and, uniess stated
otherwise, rounded to the nearest thousand. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the revaluation of certain financial instruments.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date, with the resulting exchange differences
recognised in the income statement,

Change In presentation of the consolldated Income statement

In this year's Annual Report the presentation of the income statement has been amended such
that, in the mind of the Directors, it more appropriately reflects the manner in which the business
operates. This revised format has been applied to both the current year result and the
comparative outturn for 2018.This new format in no way changes the Group’s result for either the
current or prior year when compared to the previous form of presentation.

Gonsolidation

The financial statements of the Group consolidates the resuits of the Company and its subsidiary
entities, and includes the share of its joint ventures' and associates' results accounted for under
the equity method.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls a subsidiary when it is
exposed, or has the rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the subsidiary.

The results of subsidiaries are included from the date of acquisition. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies inte line with those of the Group. Intra Group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Where a consolidated company is less than 100% owned by the Group, the treatment of the non-
controlling interest share of the results and net assets is dependent on how the equity award is
accounted for. Where the equity is accounted for as a share-based payment award under IFRS 2,
all dividend outflow is taken to staff cost, and there is no non-gontrolling interest charge. In ali
other cases, the non-controlling interest share of the results and net assets is recognised at each
reporting date in equity separately from the equity attributable to the shareholders of the
company.

The assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries (which comprise the Group's net investment in
foreign operations) are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date, The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity within the foreign exchange reserve.
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PREPARATION

Significant accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the course of preparing financial statements, management necessarily makes judgements and
estimates that can have a significant impact on the financial statements. Estimates and
Judgements made are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the financial statements in next financial year are outlined below.

Slignificant accounting Judgements
Management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect in terms
of the amounts recognised, and their presentation, in the consolidated financial statements.

Leasing judgements

There are no significant judgements made relating to leases. This is reflective of the straight
forward nature of the leasing arrangements entered into by the Group, being principaily
leasehold property rentals for a fixed pericd of time.

Revenue recognition judgements

The Group recognises three critical judgements in terms of revenue which relate to (1) agent
versus principal considerations;

{ii) the impact on the number of performance cbligations in a contract which has integrated
services; and

(iii} recognition of supplier discounts and rebates as revenue from contracts with customers.

Agent versus principal considerations

The Group enters into contracts with customers which include arrangements where it purchases
services or goods from third parties on behalf of the client. In these instances, the Group
considers the substance of the overall contract in order to assess whether such arrangements
constitute the Group acting as either an Agent or as Pringcipal.

The key judgement the Group makes when assessing whether it is acting as an Agentin a
contractual relationship relates to whether it controls either the goods or the service prior to
transfer to the customer. This assessment includes consideration of the following indicators of
gontrol:

« |5 the Group responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the goods or services in an
acceptable format or to a satisfactory quality to meet the customer reguirements?

« Does the Group direct the activity of the other party performing the service?

« Does the Group provide a service of integrating or combining the third-party goods or services
with other goods or services?

68

In addition, certain of the Group's contractual arrangements where the Group is acting as Agent
{specifically for Talent) have a significant time lag between the Group's involvement in arranging
for services to be provided by a third party to a client, and the actual point at which these
se-vices are provided by the third party. In these instances, it has been concluded that the
performance obligation related to arranging the services to be provided is completed once the
se-vices have been performed (as cpposed to when they have been arranged to be performed).

Where the Group does not treat the income as an Agent it is treated as a Principal.

Identification of performance obligations for integrated services and their recognition as revenue
Tha Group often enters intc contracts with customers which include the provisien of an array of
se-vices which are judged as reprasenting a single performance obligation. Such instances arise
wrere the overarching objective of the contract comprises a number of discrete activities which
arz integrated into the provision of a wider overall service. An example would be where the
Group has been engaged to produce a client's media strategy. The formulation and delivery of
this strategy is comprised of a number of individual services, but the delivery of the strategy is
assessed as being the enly performance obligation resident in the contract as the discrete
se~vices being supplied are not distinct in the context of the contract as a whale.

Management consider the following features of contractual arrangements entered into with
customers when assessing whether a contract has a number of services which are not distinet
and is thus comprised of a combined performance obligation:

« Can the client benefit from the individual goods or services promised in the contract on their
own (or in combination with resources readily available to the client)?

« Can a single method of measuring progress of satisfaction of the combined performance

obligation be applied which faithfully depicts the economics of the arrangement?

15 there a single payment mechanism for the combined performance obligation?

» Does the Group perform a significant service of integrating the services provided and are
these promised services highly interdependent?

L
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PREPARATION

Fair value measurement of fnancial instruments

The Group helds certain financial instruments which are recorded on the balance sheet at fair
value at point of recognition and remeasured at the end of each reporting perigd. At the year end
these relate to:

(i) Equity investments at FYTPL in non-listed limited companies (note 20); and

(i) and certain contingent consideration (note 15).

The equity investments include, but are not restricted to, small equity holdings in particular clients
in exchange for services rendered in lieu of monetary based remuneration.

No formal market exists to trade these financial instruments and, therefore, their fair value is
measured by the most appropriate valuation techniques available, which vary based on the
nature of the instruments. The inputs to the valuation models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, judgement is required in establishing fair values.

The basis of calculation of the estimated fair value of these financial instruments in addition to
sensitivity analyses on the estimates salient inputs are detaited in note 30.

Share-based incentive arrangements

Sharg-based incentives are valued at the date of the grant using stochastic Monte Car'o pricing
models with nan-market vesting conditions. Typically, the value of these awards is directly related
to performance of a particular entity of the Group in which the employee holds a minority interest
in the equity. The key inputs to the pricing model are interest rates, share price volatility and
expacted future performance of the entity to which the award relates. Management apply
judgement to these inputs used various sources of information, including the Group's share price,
experience of past performance and published data on risk-free interest rates (government
gilts).

Details of awards made in the year are held at note 28.
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Leasing estimates

The adoption of IFRS 16 Leases creates a significant change to our balance sheet. Within IFRS 16
thare are two estimates with regards to leases, such items are significant this year as it is the
first time these estimates have been made. These relate to (i) determining the interest rate used
fo~ discounting of future cash flows, and (i) the length of lease term,

Derivation of the interest rate ysed for discounting future cash flows

Tte discount rate used in the calculation of the iease liability involves estimation. Discount rates
are calculated on a lease by lease basis. This involves estimate of incremental borrowing costs.
Trese will depend on the territory of the relevant lease and hence territory risk (which comprises
bath the currency used and the risk free rates of that country); the date of lease inception; and
tha lease term. The spread of interest rates used to derive the appropriate quantum of asset and
liability to be recognised at the inception of each lease is reflective of the diversity of the Group's
lease portfolios.

Anticipated length of lease term

{FRS 16 defines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease together with the options
to extend or terminate a lease, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option. Where
a ease includes the option for the Group to extend the tease term, the Group takes a view at
inception as to whether 1t is reasonably certain that the aption will be taken. This will take into
account the length of time remaining before the option is exercisable; current trading; future
trading forecasts as to the ongoing profitability of that aspect of the business; and the level and
type of any planned capital investment. This view of if the option will be taken i reassessed at
each reporting period. A reassessment of the remaining life of the lease could result in a
recalculation of the lease liability and a material adjustment to the associated balances.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2019 2018#
Year ended 31 December £000 2000
Loss for the year (11,829) (12,975)
Other comprehensive Income*
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations (3,281) 869
QOther comprehensive {loss) / Income for the year net of tax (3,281) 869
Total comprehensive loss for the year (15,110) (12,106}
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Group {15,077) (12,221)
Non-controlling interests 33) 121
Total comprehensive loss for the year (15,110) (12,106}

# Rasult for the year ended 31 December 2018 has been restated, see note 2,
*All items in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income will be reclassified to the income statement

The notes on pages 66 to 70 and 78 to 143 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

2019 20184 20174
At 31 December Note £000 2000 2000
Equity
Share capital 29 936 876 813
Share premium 44,607 41,734 32,095
Merger reserve 33,400 30,150 30,150
Treasury reserve (550) {792) (792
Minority interest put option reserve (4,953) (15,082) (15,661)
Non-controlling interest acquired (32,258) {22,081) (21,040)
Foreign exchange reserve 1,181 4,462 3,593
Retained earnings 8,854 28,718 30,383
Equity attributable ta shareholders of the Group 48,238 67,085 59,541
Non-controlling Interest 365 932 1,609
Total equity 49,801 68,917 61,150

# Restated, see note 2.
Reserves are defined in note 37.

These consolidated financial statements pages 66 to 143 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

&. R&, a

Mickey Kalifa

Finance Director

M&.C Saatchi ple

Company Number 05114893

The notes on pages 66 to 70 and 78 1o 143 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Shars Share Marger Treasury Mi put nczqh___n_ﬁw Farsign Retained oc:ﬁ.od_n_ﬁm
capital premium resarve reserve ontlon Interest exchange aarnings Subtotal Interest In Total

resarve acaulred reserves equity
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £060 2000 £000 £000
At 31 December 2017 813 32,095 31,592 (792) (13,958) (21,040) 3,593 25,235 57,638 6,532 64,070
Restatement 2 - - (1,442} - (1,703} - - 5,148 2,003 {4,923 {2,920)
At 31 December 2017# 813 32,095 30,150 (792) (15,661) (21,040) 3,593 30,383 59,541 1,609 61,150

Adjustmant an initial appfication _ _ _ _ B _ _ _
of IFRS 15 % 28 28

Adjustment on initial application _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
of IFRS 9 2,91 2,871 2971
At 1 January 20184 813 32,095 30,150 (792) (15,661) {21,040) 3,593 33,582 62,640 1,609 64,149
Acquisitions 18 6,484 - - - - - - 6,602 - 8,502
ons of minority interest - - - - - {319) - - (319) - (319)

Exercise of minarity interast put _ _ _ _ -
options 27 1 2,697 722 (129) 2,708 2,708

Exercise of share-based _ _ -
payment schemas 28 3 - - - - (141) (108) (108)
Exchange rate movements - - - - 31 - - - 31 24 55
Deferred consideration 1 458 - - - - - - 459 - 459
Issue of shares to mincrities - - - - (174) - - 87 (87) 5 {82)
Share cption charge 28 - ~ - - - - - 16,864 16,864 - 16,864
Dividends 12 - - - - - - - {8,378) (8,378) (827) (9,205)
Total transactions with owners 63 8,638 - - 579 (1,041) - 8,432 17,872 (798) 18,874

Total comprehensive loss for _ _ _ _ _ _

the year 869 (13,096) (12,227) 11 (12,106)
At 31 December 2018# 876 41,734 30,150 (782) (15,082} (22,081) 4,462 28,718 67,985 932 88,917

# Restated, see note 2.

The notes on pages 66 to 70 and 78 to 143 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES

1. Headline results and earnings per share
The analysis below provides a reconciliation between the Group's statutory resutts and the headline results.

Statutory Impalrment
Exceotlonal Amortlsation of non- Gainon FVTPL Revaluation Dividends  Put option
it un t of acquired current disposal of Investments  of contingent  paid to IFRS2  accounting Headline
2019 ms (na mm Intangibles assets  assoclates under IFRS  considaratlon put holders (note 27 results
} (note 16) (note ._.ﬁm (note 35) 8 (note 20a) (note 15) {note 7)* and 28)
and 17)
Year ended 31 Decomber 2019 Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Billings (unaudited) 561,426 - - ~ - - - -~ - 561,428
Revenue 381,025 - - - - - - - - 381,026
Net revenue 256,435 - - - - - - - - 258435
Staff costs 7 (183,984) 4,241 - - - - - 5,841 10,608 (173,334)
Depreciation - non lgase*™* 18 (3,380) - - ~ - - - -~ - (3,390)
Depraciation - lease*” 19 (9,059) - - - - - - - - {9,058)
Amortisation 16 (2,865) - 241 - - - - - - (394)
Impairments 16 (5,874) - - 5,874 - - - - - -
Dther operating charges (52,110) 1,955 - - - 82 1927 - - (49,936)
Other gains/losses (96) - - - - 346 - - - 250
QOperating (loss) / profit {1G,853) 8,186 2411 5,874 - 438 127 5,841 10,608 20,672
Share of results of associates and JV 17 13,210 - - - (12,980) - - - - 230
Impairment of associate investment 17 (5,210) - - 5,210 - - - - - -
Finance income - non lease™ 9 522 - - - - - - - - 522
Finance income - lease** 9 a1 - - - - - - - - 91
Finance expense - non lease** 9 {4,396) - - - - 279 - ~ 2,821 (1,208) |
Finance expense - lease™* 9 (1,830 - - - - - - -~ - (1,837)
{Loss} / profit before taxation (8,573) 8,166 2,471 11,084 (12,880) 717 127 5,841 13,429 18,282
Taxation 10 (3,256) (1,012) (620) - (281) (139) - ~ 8 (5,302}
(Loss) / profit far the year (11,826} 5,154 1,851 11,084 (13,281) 578 127 5,841 13,435 12,980
Non-controliing interests 33 - (247) - - - - (4,683} - (4,807}
(Loss) / profit attributable to equity (11,796) 5,154 1,804 11,084  (13,261) 578 127 1148 13435 8,073

holders of the Group™

* Details of this breakdown can be found in nota 7, Staff costs. The non-controliing interest charge is moved to operating profit due to underlying equity being defined as a conditional share award.

** The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 (note 4) with regards to additionai depreciation and interest charges relating to leases is shown by separate line items in order to improve comparability to the 2018 result presented overleaf,
*** Headline earnings are profit attributable to equity holders of the Group after adding back the adjustments noted above. The increase is calculated as the difference between 2019 and 2018 measures. Headline operating margin is
calculated as: Headline operating profit divided by net revenue.

78 M&C Saatchi plc



6. 9jd 1yorees OB

“anuanaJd Jau Ag papiaip Jjoad Buielado aulpesH :Se paleng|es

S{ UIgJew Sune.sdo aulpesH 'S3UNSeALL §|0F PUB 107 USSMISN S0USISHIP BY) SB PAIBINS[ED SI @SBALOUI 8| "3A0QE Pajou Sluaunsnipe syl yorq SUIPPE Jole dnoJn 8yl Jo SJapoY AINba ¢l 3|geIngLIIE Woad aJe SBUILIED BUIPRSH ...
‘(2Z 810u) (%G| L ‘2%) saniiqey uondo 1nd Ayouiw 01 SuswWISNpE anfea Jiey pue (87 210U) (M160°L1T) SPIBME 2JBUS [RUOIIPLOD SE J0) paluncade sualdo ind wasaldad sanfea asay| ..,

"PJEME BJBYS [BUCINPUOD B SB pauyep Suiag Aunba SuiAluspun 01 enp 1o0ud Suijelado 0y parow S| #8JBYD 15818IU1 §U[0JIU0D-UCL 8Y] °/ BICU Uj PUNO) 8Q UBZ UMOPYEaJ] SIY3 JO S|IBJeq] ..

"PRACLUA 0S UBaQ 10U SBY 108)J8 158487U1 Fuljj0J1u02-Uou

pue xe) SUEd [eldes ay) ‘seasmoy {(£Z°61 SH4I) PATBUILLIS Uaaq SBY [BSOdSIP Uo 1yoLd BUY UOIEPNOSUOD U “[esodsip uo 140Jd [BOG) B PalRalD YoIyMm JO pasodsip sem Aunba AJRIpISGns ‘e)eJisny Ul sawayos Aunba dn uipes Jo Led sy ,
'Z 210U Ul pa|IR1aq "UOHIWE’ |F 0} UCH|IWZ ZE WOJj UchiWg 03 AG Buonpad sjuawaedu ajqigusul jo }oBg PPe &yl 0] UCKIPPR Ul Pa)EISal Uaaq SeY §10Z Jaquiada(] |¢ papus Jeak Joj )|nsa. AJ0INTeIS 8y #

e GN04D 8Y] J0 SJBPJOY

LTINS 06861 11214 219 A4 (692) 719 892°1 69¥'Z (96021} Aynba 03 a|qeINGIIE 140dd / (SSOT)
(668'0) - (1b87) - - - - - (26) (12) S150J81UI BUII0.AUOO-UON
851Gl 06861 90L'¢ L1 fAY (892) ¥19 682°L aov'e (546'G1) JeaA 8y3 Joj Jjoud / (s807)
(515°8)  (50) - 115 - 6L - - (120D 85D 0 UOYeXe |
oltv'ee £62°02 80L'g - 18 (8v6) $19 B8T°L ey (882'®) ue|1exe) aJdojaq Hjoud / (s807)
(8z1'1) GlLl'e - - - 608 - - - (219 8 1500 a0uBul4
212 - - - - - - - - £z G 8Woou| 8oueul
- - - - - - 19 _ _ o) I 1USWISAAU) 3]RID0SSE JO 1Al Iedw|
G%8'c - - - - - - - - 6z8'g I Al PUE S91e150888 JO §)|nSaJ JO aJEyS
00812 8Lkl 8018 0 L8 (2’ - 882°L vy (ovg'e) Ho4d / (sso)) Bufredadg
ooy - - - T} QD - - - p85'L $85501/5UIER Ja410
@z - - - - - - - - (922'L1) safleyn BujeJado Jayig
(868°2) - - - - - - 69zl - (291'%) 9l spuaLedu|
(¢0g) - - - - - - - Lr'y (0e2'h) 9l uonesiJouy
(ge0e) - - - - - - - - (2£0°8) 8l uolte|oaudeq
(y8L'GL1) 8111 aoL'e - - - - - - (890°961) L 81500 Jels
08082 - - - - - - - - »02052 anuaAa. 3aN
89221y - - - - - - - gagsLy anuanay
$69'209 - - - - - - - 359'209 (peupneun) surig
0003 0003 0003 0005 0003 0008 0003 000 0003 0003 210N #8105 J9qWagaq 1 PIpUS JEEA
~@EPUE P (g sw0u) (0zeIW)  (Lejow)  (gLeow) (g1 BI0W)
81IN558d 1% 910U) W“.m—u_oz nd zgH4l anss Lo UoilBJdaRIsudd  §SH4| JApUN  S8BISOSSE solq/Fueiul so|¢iFueiu| #8103
sujjpesyq  HujuUNoooB 03 prad SPUBDIA xe3 ufed jusBuuUO Jo  SjuBWSeAlu]  Jo paJinboe jo  pasinboe Jo Kuoimelg
uopdo ngd pi pugpiAlg _wu_nm_u uoneneaay I1d1Ad uawdredw)| JuawJjeduw) uo1es|lJowy

*S)NSaL aulpeay 3yl pue sYNsad AJ0INTRIS $,dn0Jg) 8yl USaMIaq UOITe)|Igu03J B S3pInoJd mo|aq sishfeue ay|
aJeys Jad sgu|uJea pue s1NSad auljpeaH °|

S310N



NOTES

1. Headline results and eapnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing appropriate earnings metrics of the Group by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 01 the assumption of conversion of all potentially difutive ordinary shares, Anti-dilutive potential
ordinary shares are excluded. The dilutive effect of unvested outstanding options is calculated based on the number that would vest had the balance sheet date been the vesting date.

mxnmuw_wﬁwdm 2019 Headline
2019
2018

Year ended 31 December 2019 £000 £000 £000
(Loss) / profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Group (6,642) (11,788) 8,073
Basic earnings per share
Weighted average number of shares (thousands) 80,253 90,263 80,253
Baslic EPS (1.38)p (13.08)p 8.95p
Diluted earnings per share
Weighted average number of shares (thousands} as above 90,253 80,253 90,253
Add
- Conditional shares - - 3,650
— Put option - - 2,516
- Contingent consideration - - 281
Total 90,253 95,253 96,500
Diluted earnings per share (7.38)p {13.08)p 8.37p

80 M&.C Saatchi plc
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2. Ppigp Yyear samamﬂmam:ﬁm

Ag Explaineq n 18 Finange Directars Revigw, the ocsvma. EXpariencegy Significant difficulty in
<m§m§m S0Mme of jtg m%a:::.:m Fecords for Periods prigr 2519, The ECMbingtion af elatively
poor ACCoUnting "EGOrdS for the Beriod prigr 208, Soupled wirh the departypg of senipp
finange Personngi Made thig EXercise ang the augit ali the Morg diffiouir and time no:m__ssw. As
Such, the macﬁaga Made jn espect gr Edrliar mmno%%m Periods myst be taken ag
amzmmmsmaw best 8stimates using the Wgiiahia 8vidence,

As detailag O page 14 Of the mqmﬁmma mmno:_ the Group has amaama acgoun ting errors
r&lating 19 :mammsaam récogniseg in Periogs Prior to . i

forensig Teview Garrieg gyr by P And a further internal Fevigw Performag during the last
Quarter gr 2018, wa have idantifiag £14.6m of m&_,_m“amim ‘.3825_“ the heg

tax for the year ended 33 omnmswmﬁ g g garia- Periags, Rad suoh fitading 8:3.8%3 o

e wmmm__,g_zm mono,sz:m 28 0pposeq o the
Brrongops ACC0Uling which triggorad the £14.0mition headiing Profitability Overstatamen;

. y,mqsm adjustments ;b&emssﬁm Esan&? arising from 3%&33%8 of aceryeq
incomg and amoynig réceivaple which wWould haye arisen gg 5 result of Services
Brovigeq 1o Our chiants but for which ng XS¥ision pr SUEh seryipg is helieyag 0 have
begy Performeq. Thus sugh TeGeivaplpg required elimination from the finangiaj
Statements.

. zg._.w_..mq_% adustmants »b&cﬂamam arising from Emmmﬁmﬂmsmaw in terms of not
anomamsm certain staf and ouma:.:m COSts which are not Q__wmn% related tg the

82

Alf mgcwﬂamam E__mgm to put Options ang fihanoiqs reh6rting m%.ﬁamaa Were ahlg to ba
mnn%m»me attributed 10 the Sorragt financiy Periag,

»&:ﬁﬂ%& 8lating to 10n-curran a888ts (fiyey assets, 50Ttwarg gng mooas_.s Were ablg 1o be
altributed 1 the corragy "eporting Period, with the EXception gf Certain of the fixgd 3356ts, Thig
Was as 5 Fesult of 4 Matariag fiimber of fixeq 2358¢g having Inadeqyate Qmwnzbz.gm 10 be ahyg to
identify what they relate to.

There are alsp 5 materiaf Mmber gf items relating 1o trading ang :oa.:masm activitiag which
Werg Unable tg pa atiribytey toa Specifig Eua:_‘zm Periog, Thig Wasag g result of g fack of
recards, 5%8&.8 am%_%%% and tha 08partyrg from the busingss of smzmmmsma who were
Nvolvag in the mnoe::q.zm aCrass g Numbar o¢ years,
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NOTES

Total adjustment to squity:

Consolidated balance sheet - as at 1 January 2018

Non-
As financtal

. Trading Non-trading current Put option Total As
uﬂmmﬁmﬁm agjustmants  adiustments adjust -MMMMM aglustments m&wwmﬁﬂﬁm adjustments restated
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Minerity interest put option
reserve (13,958} - - - 4,418 (6,122} (1,703) {15,661)

Non-controlling interest
asquired (21,040) - - - - - - {21,040)
Non-controlling interast 6,532 - - - {4,923) - (4,923) 1,609
Retained earnings 25,235 (1,464) (640) (4,880) 15,427 (3,295) 5,148 30,383
Merger reserve 31,592 - - (1,442) - - (1,442) 30,150
Other reserves 35,709 - - - - - - 35,709
84,070 (1,464) (640) (6,322) 14,923 (9,417} (2,920} 61,150
84
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NOTES

2¢c) - Al Income statement adjustments to clarify overall impact upon Profit before
tax

[n aggregate the prior years’ adjustments identified as being required are split between 2018 and
prior to 2018 as follows:

Total PBT £'000 Tax £'000 PAT £'000
Pre 2018 Adjustments (5,158) 475 (4,683)
in year 2018 Adjustments (22,866 (952) (23,938)
Total profit impact (28,144) 477 (28,621)
The aggregate of the prior year adjustments in terms of categories presented are as follows:
Durin
Pre-2018 mc._mm Total
£000 £000 £000
Trading (1,793) (3,859) (5,658)
Nan-trading (463) (1,179) (1,642
Non-gurrent assets impairment (2,441) (2,307) (4,748)
Financial reporting (505) (1,483) (1,988)
Headline PBT impact (5,208) (8,828) (14,036)
Financial reporting (2,790) - (2,790)
Put options 6,536 {15,084) {8,548)
Goodwill and intangible {3,696) 926 (2,770
Statutory PBT impact (5,158) (22,986) (28,144)
Tax 475 {952) {477)
PAT Impact (4,683) (23,938) (28,621)
Pre-2018 adjustments
Pre 2018 AdJustments
Item £'000 Description
Revenue {1,989)  Revenue recognised with no support
Project cost (313)  Costs not recognised
Staff costs 305  Add back of 2017 staff bonus expense
Staff costs (2,790)  Incorrect accounting of LLP dividends
Other cperating charges (770} Operating costs not recognised
Impairments - tangible fixed assets (2,441)  Impairment of non-current assets identified as not existing
[mpairments - intangible assets (3,696)  Gaodwill impairments and other intangibles
Put option adjustmants 6,036 Judgement change relating to put options accounting
PBT effect (5,158)
Tax - add back 475
PAT effact (4,683}
86

The cifference between the pre 2018 profit adjustments abave and the increase in retained
garnings of £5,148k is largely due to put option adjustments i.e. the release of share option
charges to retained earnings.

Profit Impacting adjustments

Revenue adjustments relate to instances where a number of UK businesses had recognised
reve e which had no support as to its validity to be so recognised.

Project ¢ost and operating charge adjustments relate to expenses and their corresponding
liabiiities which had not been recognised during the course of normal business which should have
been so recognised.

The add back of staff costs arises as a result of a timing issue relating to the recognition of a 2017
bonLs expense in 2018 (and consequently requires reversal).

The incorrect accounting of LLP dividends relates to the incorrest accounting of dividends paid to
merr bers of the Group's LLP entities from 2017 and earlier has been made to statutory profit
before tax. This adjustment has no impact on 2018 headline profit before tax.

The additional impairments (exclusive of gaodwill) relate to both plant and equipment and
intar.gible assets. A total net book value of £2.4m plant and equipment was identified as not
existing as at 1 January 2018 and £0.1m of intangibles was identified as having been
inaporopriately capitalised due to the lack of future economic benefits arising at the point of
capi-alisation.

The Goodwill impairments reiate to write downs of goodwill attached to the PR and LIDA UK
businesses. A CGU reallocation was not performed when the UK business was reorganised in
20186. If this had been carried out at the time these impairments would have been recognised at
the end of 2017, Note, £926k impairment of Goodwill ascribed to LIDA was originally recognised
during 2018, As this has now been taken as a pre-2018 charge it is consequently added back to
the 2018 Income Statement (described below).

The add back of put option charges relates to changes in the interpretation of judgements
orig nally made at the point of inception of the awards.

Balance sheet only adjustment

One significant non-profit impacting adjustment is also relevant to the understanding of a user of
the financial statements. This item reiates to a put option award made to senior management of
an Australian subsidiary. This is considered a financiai reporting adjustment due to its
marifestation as not relating to judgements around put option accounting and in fact being a
result of it never having been previously accounted for.

The adjustment requires recognition of a minority shareholder put options liability of £6.1m, with
the corresponding entry being taken to reserves. This has been recognised due to a significant
management incentive scheme awarded in 2017 having not been previously included within the
Anrual Report.

M&.C Saatchi plc
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NOTES

Financlal reporting adjustments

Item £000 Description

Revenue (1,189) UK sub-group consolidation journals with no support
Project cost (41} Pricr year audit unadjusted error

Staff costs (273) _ Prior year audit unadjusted error

PBT effect (1,483)

Tax - add back 105

PAT effect (1,378)

These items principally relate to two types of profit-impacting identified accounting errors:

Those relating to a number of adjustments which were posted to a subsidiary
consolidation of a number of UK corporate entities. Due 1o the poor quality of
accounting records available for subseguent review in the latter part of 2019 these
sonsolidation adjusting journals have been concluded as incorract and thus eliminated.
This correction has resulted in a £1.2m gharge to the income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Also included are the prior year unadjusted audit misstatements identified by the
previous auditors which were concluded as not being material to the 2018 Annual
Report, and accordingly not adlusted for as permitted under International Standards
of Auditing. These unadjusted items represented a £0.3m charge to the income
statement and was nat previously recognised subsequent to discussions between the
then incumbent auditors and the then Audit Committee. These items have now been
adjusted due to the material nature of the other adjustments described within this
note.

Finally, £1.1m of trade and other receivables have been redefined on balange sheet as financial
assets at FVTPL, as these relate to equity received in return for services supplied and £0.7m of
impairments relating to the Group's Asian Associates have been reanalysed to share of results of
associates. The halance shest has been grossed up to reconcite other debtors and accruals of
£12.9m in relation to third party media spend where the Group is an agent. These adjustments
are not profit impacting.
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NOTES

Consolidated balance sheet - for the year ended 31 December 2018

As Pre 2018 Nom® byt option Financfal

T e et R QTSI i P .-

Total adjustment to equity: £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Share Premium 46,667 - - - - (4,933) - (4,933) 41,734
Minorty nterest put option (12,954) (1,703) - - - (952) (173) (2128)  (15,082)
um“__%wﬁaw_am Interest (22,484) - - - - 259 131 383 (22,081)
Non-controlling interest 1,207 (4,923} - - - (1,352) - (6,275) 932
Retained earnings 34,196 5,148 (3,986) (1,021) (2,530) (1,7110) {1,378) (5,477) 28,718
Other reserves 36,269 {1,442) - - - - (131) {1,573) 34,698
88,920 (2,920) (3,986) (1,021) (2,530) {1,995) {1,6581) (20,003) 68,917

The greater impact of the prior year adjustments on the income statement than on the balance sheet is due in most part to the change in valuation of variable share-based payment charges (FRS 2), that

have no effect on the balance sheet.
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NOTES

The adjustments required to be made to the Group's put option accounting can be categorised as
follows:

*  Change in classification of the schemes as representing from as future obligations held
on the Balance sheat as liabilities (IFRS 9) to share-based payments recognised in the
Income statement (IFRS 2}).

* |dentification of certain share-based payment schemes as requiring revaluation at the
end of each reporting period due to the presence of non-market performance
cenditions.

»  |dentification of certain put option schemes as being in substance cash-settled share-
based payments.

*  Mandatory change to the approach for accounting for LLPs share of profits.

The Group’s put option accounting is dependent on each award.

Reclassification from change in category (IFRS 2 or to IFRS 8)- As noted above, schemes may be
accounted for under either IFRS 2 (recognition of an expense each period) or as a liability held at
the fair value of the future expected reward in line with IFRS 9.

We have reviewed the method of application of our significant judgements in categorising
between IFRS 2 and IFRSY. This new method of application of the judgement has resulted in many
of the awards that had been classified historically as IFRS 9 being re classified as IFRS 2. The
change to IFRS 2 has had a positive impact on reserves, however, it has also had the impact on
additional finance costs (IFRS 9) of £2.2m in the 2018 income statement,

In some cases where there was an IFRS 9 scheme directly funded by loans to equity holders, with
the equal investment value in NCI reserve, on reclassification to IFRS 2 the two values have been
netted off removing the debit, disclosed in trade and other receivables, from our consalidated
accounts.

Additional charge for non-market conditions — Each scheme has performance conditions attached
to it. The final autturn of these performance conditions impacts the final value of a scheme at the
point of exercise. Where a scheme is accounted for as a share-based payment (IFRS 2,
management are required to identify whether these performance conditions are market based or
no market based conditions.

Where a scheme is comprised of only market-based performance conditions then the fair value
of the award is defined at inception of the agreement and not revisited. Where, however, a
scheme is considered to have performance conditions which are nct market based then there is
arequirement for the quantum of the share-based payment to be revisited each pericd end.

We have now concluded that the correct application of IFRS 2 means that certain of the Group’s
schemas have performance conditions which are not market based. We had previously
concluded that application of IFRS 2 meant that these performance conditions were market
based.

As a result, the Group has identified put option schemes accounted for as share-based payments

which require reassessment of the expected future award value at the end of each reporting
period.

92

Unrecorded cash-settied share-based payments — Tha Group’s South African operations have in
the past acquired the shares from its departing employee’s, despite there being no agreement to
do so. On review, this practice has now been interpreted as an unwritten put option (IFRS 2.

The accounting for such schemes requires that the future expected reward value is held as a
liability at the end of each reporting peried. Any movement in the fair value of these awards is
recognised within staff costs.

Change in accounting practice — The accounting for certain dividend payments made in line with
the terms of members agreements of some of the Group’s Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs)
has been changed. This change in accounting resulted from a change in judgement that arose
subseguent to recent discussions at the Censultative Committee for Accountancy Bodies. (n past
unallocated profits has been treated as non-controiling interests. The new judgement states that
were where there is no discretion the profits on consolidation are treated as allocated in the
year they are made otherwise they are treated as non controlling interests. All our LLP’s are
affected by this change.

2(f) Other restatement matters

The prior year Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2018 stated that total operating
lease commitments were £42.0m as at 31 December 2018. During the course of the Group’s

app ication of IFRS 16 (note 4) it was identified that in fact these commitments totatled £60.2m.
This incorrect disclosure arose as a result of weaknesses in the financial controls in the reporting
of cartain overseas Group entities.

In tre prior year put option liabilities which pay a variable number of equity instruments or a
variable amount of cash at & point in time in the future (note 27} were considered to be derivative
instruments and consequently described as being held at fair value through profit or loss. These
items have now been identified as representing financial liabilities held at amortised cost. Whilst
this has no impact upen the quantum of liabilities due to be held at the end of each reporting
period the notes to the accounts have had the 2018 comparatives descriptions amended to
reflect this fact. This is in contrast to the IFRS 2 schemes whose recognition within the financial
statements continues to be based on the fair value of the award at the date of inception, and, for
a subset of schemes, reassessed at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES

4, Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards and interpretations
The Group has applied IFRS 16 Leases for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes
arising through the adoption of this new accounting standard are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2019, but do not impact
preparation of the consolidated financial staterments of the Group. The Group has not early
adopted any accounting standards, interpretations or amendments which have been issued, but
are not yet effective.

The new and revised standards effective 1 January 2019 with no impact on the Annual Report are
as follows:

Amenaments to IFRS 9
Amendments to |AS 28

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
Long-term Interests in Associates and Jaint Ventures
Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations, [FRS 11 Jeint

Annual Improvements to [FRS Arrangements, IAS 12 Income taxes and IAS 23 Borrowing

Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle costs
Amendments ta IAS 19 Employee
Benefits Plan Amendment, Curtaiiment or Settlement

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial

Statements and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
(amendments) Associate or Joint Venture

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRS 16 Leases

IFAS 16 supersedes |AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for most
leases under a single on-balance sheet model.

Adoption method

The Group has adopted (FRS 16 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the
date of initial application being 1 January 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognised within
equity at the date of initial application. Accordingly, there is no restatement of the comparative
period financiai information. On adoption of IFRS 16 the Group has elected to grandfather the
assessment of which arrangements are leases. Contracts not identified as leases under Legacy
IFRS were not reassessed for whether there is a lease under IFRS 16, The Group also elected to
use the recognition exernptions for lease contracts that, at the application date of IFRS 16, have &
lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option (“short-term leases'), and
lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (‘low-valug assets’),

94

Approach to transition
As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on an
assessment of whether the lease transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the underlying asset to the Group. Any prepaid rent and accrued rent were
recagnised under Prepayments and Trade and other payables, respectively, Under IFRS 16, the
Group recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases (unless exempt from
applying IFRS 16} on its balance shegt. The Group used the following practical expedients when
muuzsm IFRS 16 1o ieases previously classified as operating leases:
applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases of
low value or for which the lgase term ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application, on a lease-by lease basis;
= relied on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous for impairment of
right-of-use assets;
= excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date
of initial application;
= used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease;
= applied the exemption not to separate non-lease components such as service charges
from lease rental charges;
*  used a single discount rate to a pertfotio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics.

Leases previously accounted for as operating leases

Under the transition rules for leases classified as operating leases, lease liabilities were
measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the relevant (i.e.
specific to each member of the Group) incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019, Right-of-
use assets are measurad at cost. In the majority of instances this comprised the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the adoption date and less
any lease incentives received at or before the adoption date. For a selection of material long-
term leases, the Group has, however, assessed the cost of the Right-of-use asset as if IFRS 16
had always been applied from the ariginal inception date of the lease using the incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. Under this methed, the difference between the
right-of-use asset and lease liability is taken to retained earnings as at 1 January 2019.

L6ases previously classified as finance feases

The Group did not change the initial carrying amounts of recognised assets and liabilities at the
date of initial application for leases previously classified as finance leases. The reguirements of
IFRS 16 were applied to the leases from 1 January 2019.

Subleases

Where a head lease has been sublet such that the Group acts as an intermediate lessor then the
two legal contracts are accounted for separately. The liability relating to the head lease is
retained whilst the portion of the Right-of-use asset sublet is derecognised and replaced with a
lease raceivable where the sublease is considered to be a finance lease. Upon transition to IFRS
16 the difference in the carrying amounts of the Right-of-use asset relating to a sublease and the
corresponding finance lease receivable is recognised within reserves,

The acceunting for recognition of a sublease at transition is the same as that described in
note 19.
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NOTES

UK Europe zhmm_n%m_ﬁ pﬂﬂ.ﬂ%m Americas  Head office Total
Year ended 31 December 2019 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Billings (unaudited)® 266,488 52,714 36,126 144,980 61,118 - 561,426
Revenug* 158,786 45,924 33,906 90,160 52,249 - 381,025
Net revenue 103,221 30,510 16,563 84,533 41,608 - 256,435
Staff costs (81,378) (22,273) (11,337 (45,083) (28,752) (4,503) (173,334)
Depreciation — nen lease™ {1,357) (334) (349) 811) (539 - (3,390}
Depreciation —lease™ {2,705) {1,087) (601) (2,808) (2,060) - (8,059)
Amortisation (201) 22 (52) (119} - - (394)
Other operating charges (22,928) (3,7768) (2,718) (10,244) (7,402) (2,868) (49,936)
Other gains/losses - - - - 250 - 250
Operating profit / (loss) 14,654 3,018 1,506 5,660 3,105 (7,371) 20,572
Share of results of associates and JV - @ - (124} 357 - 230
Financial income and cost (excluding leases)™ (89) (712) 17 186 (695) {121) {714
Financial income and cost (relating to leases)*™ (595) (148) (458) (383) (183) - (1,746)
Profit / (loss) before taxatlon 13,970 2,797 1,064 5,339 2,604 (7.,492) 18,282
Taxation (2,576) (1,139) (219} (1,855) (1,008) 1,382 (5,302)
Profit / (Joss) for the year 11,394 1,662 845 3,684 1,505 (6,110) 12,980
Non-controlling interests (2,821) (259) (338) (1,284) (205) - (4,807)
Profit / (loss) attributable to equity shareholders of the Group 8,573 1,403 507 2,400 1,300 (8,110) 8,073
Headline basic EPS 8.85p

* These items were not regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in the year.
** The adoption of IFRS 16 has led to the recognition of depreciation and finance charges in 2019 which have no 2018 comparative. In the current year Annual Report these amounts have conseguently been shown separately. Full details
of the Group's transition to IFRS 18 can be found at note 4.

No Revenues were derived from an individual customer with a Net revenue contribution of greater than 10% o° the total recognised during either 2019 or 2018.
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NOTES

2019 Segmental Income Statement translated at 2018 average exchange rates

It is normal practice in our industry to provide constant currency results.

Had our 2019 results been translated at 2018 average exchange rates then our constant currency results would have been:

UK Europe zhnm_m%www >._”._M._N.Nnm Americas Head office Total

Year ended 31 December 2019 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Billings (unaudlted) 266,488 52,161 35,472 142,289 62,749 - 559,159
Revenue 158,786 45,386 33,252 88,420 54,108 - 379,953
Net revenue 103,221 30,187 16,269 63,385 42976 - 256,048
Staff costs (61,376) (22,044) (11,187) (44,318) (29,690} (4,503) {173,126)
Depreciation — non lease (1,367) (331) (337) (804) (557) - (3,3886)
Depreciation — lease (2,705) (1,078) (574) (2,560) (2,129) - (9,044)
Amortisation of software intangibles (201) (21) (50) 17 - - (389)
Other operating charges (22,928) (3,729) (2,849) (10,107 (7,628) (2,887} (49,908)
Other gains/losses - - - 2 239 - 211
Operating profit 14,6564 2,998 1,462 5,483 3,211 (7,370) 20,436
Share of results of associates and JV - {3) - (125) 555 - 227
Financial income and cost (excluding leases) {89) (72) 15 185 (721) (123) (B05)
Financiaf income and cost {relating to leases) (585) (145) (438) (376) (173) - (1,727)
Proflt befare taxatlon 13,870 2,178 1,038 5,167 2,672 (7,483) 18,131
Taxation (2,576} (1,127 (208) (1,808) (1,117 1,382 (5,254)
Profit for the year 11,394 1,648 831 3,559 1,555 (6,111) 12,877
Decrease in 2019 results caused by translation differences - (13) (14) (125) 50 (1 (103)
The key currencies that affect the Group and the average exchange rates used were: 2018 2018
18 dallar 1277 13350
Malaysian ringgit 5.2891 5.384
Australian dollar 1.8365 1.786
South African rand 18.4403 17.6326
Brazilian real 5.0331 4.8669
Eura 1.1408 113056
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NOTES

Summarised cash flows

Bohemla
2019 2018

£000s £000s

From operating activities 2,239 (1,339)
From investing activities - -
From financing activities (1,687) (1,960}
Net increase / (decrease) In cash and cash

equivalents 552 (3,299)

6. Revenue from contracts with customers

Billings comprise ali gross amounits billed, or billable to clients and is stated exclusive of VAT and
sales taxes. Billings is a non-GAAP measure and is included as it influences the quantum of trade
and other receivables due to be recognised at a peint in time. The balancing figure between
Billings and Revenus is represented by costs incurred on behalf of clients with whom we operate
as an agent.

Net revenue is a non-GAAP measure and is reviewed by the CODM and other stakeholders as a
key metric of business performance (note b).

B(a) Revenue recognition palicles

Revenue is stated exclusive of VAT and sales taxes. Net revenue is exclusive of third-party costs
recharged to our clients where we are acting as pringipal.

Performance obligations

At the inception of a new contractual arrangement with a customer the Group identifies the
performance cbligations inherent in the agreement. Typically, the terms of the contracts are such
that the services to be rendered are considered to be either integrated (see significant
judgement on page 68) or to represent a series of services that are substantially the same with
the same pattern of transfer to the customer. Accordingly, this amalgam of services is accounted
for as a single performance obligation.

100

Where there are contracts with services which are distinct within the contract then they are
accounted for as separate obligations. in these instances, the consideration due to be earned
from the contract is allocated to each of the performance obligations in proportien to their stand-
alone selling price.

Further discussion of performance obligations arising in terms of the main types of services
p-ovided by the group in addition to their typical pattern of satisfaction is provided in note 6(d).

Measurement of revenue

Based on the terms of the contractual arrangements entered into with customers, revenue is
typically recognised over time. This is based on either the fact that (i) the assets generated under
the terms of the contracts have no alternative use to the Group and there being an enforceable
right to payment or (i) the client exerts editorial oversight during the course of the assignment

s .1ch that they control the service as it is provided.

Frincipal vs agent

When a third-party supplier is involved in fulfiling the terms of a contract then, for each
performance obligation identified, the Graup assesses whether the Group is acting as principal or
agent. The primary indicater used in this assessment is whether the Group is judged to gontrol
the specified services prier to the transfer of those serviges to the customer. In this instance it is
typically concluded the Group is acting as principal. Details surrounding this significant judgement
can be found on page 67.

When we act as an agent, the revenue recorded is the net amount retained. Costs incurred with
external suppliers are excluded from revenue. When the Group acts as principal the revenue
rzcorded is the gross amount billed and when allowable by the terms of the contract out-of-
pocket costs, such as travel, are also recognised as the gross amount billed with a corresponding
amount recorded as an expense.

rreatment of costs
Costs incurred in relation to the fulfilment of a contract are generally expensed as incurred.
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NOTES

When services provided are considered separable, and not integrated, then multiple
performance obligations are recognised. It is typical that the terms of the customer agreements
in these instances again permit revenue to be recognised over time as each performance
obligation is being satisfied.

Multiple performance obligations are most common in proiects where there are ciearly
separable conceptual preparatory ebligations culminating in a customer deliverable, such as an
event. In these scenarios the canceptual preparation element and the deliverable are concluded
as forming separate perfermance cbligations with the revenue and corresponding cost of sales
(typically third party pass through costs) assigned to the obligation to which they relate.

Whilst it is uncommon for projects to be such that revenue is not allowable to be recognised over
time, examples can occur. In these instanges, the element of the transaction price assigned to
each performance obligation (in proportion to stand-alone selling prices) is recognised as
revenue once an obligation has been fully satisfied.

The Group enters into Retainer fees relate to “retainer” arrangements whereby the nature of the
Group's contractual promise is to agree to 'stand-ready’ to deliver services to the customer for a
period of time rather than to deliver the goods or services underlying that promise, Revenue
relating to retainer fees is recognised over the period of the relevant assignments or
arrangements, typical ine with the 'stand-ready’ incurred ¢osts. The primary input of all wark
performed under these arrangements is labour.

Where fees are remunerated to the agency in excess of the services rendered then a contract
liability is recognised. Conversely where the services rendered are in excess of the actual fees
paid then a contract asset is recognised when there Is a right to consideration.

Certain of these arrangements have contractual terms relating to the agency meeting specific
customer identified KPls. Such KPls are considered a separate performance obligation of the
contract and can relate to qualitative factors (such as the client’s perception of delivery and
relationship performance) or to quantitative KPls (examples include overall increase in websiie
traffic or conversion rate of website visits). The overall level of consideration can vary by
increasing or decreasing as a result of performance against these metrics. To reflect this
variability in the overall level of consideration, management estimate the most likely outcome and
then reflect that outcome in the revenue recognised as the performance obligation(s) of the
contract are satisfied. When determining the likely outturn position the estimated consideration is
such that it is highly probable there will be significant reversal of the revenue in the future. The
estimated portion of the variable element is recalculated at the earlier of the completion of the
contract or the next reporting period and revenue is adjusted accordingly. These estimates are
bhased on historical award experience, anticipated performance and best judgement at the time.

Commission based income in refation 10 media spend

The Group arranges for third parties to provide the related goods and services to its customers
in the capacity of an agent. Revenug is recognised in relation to the amount of commission the
Group is entitled to. Often additional integrated services are provided at the same time with
regards to the development and deployment of an overarching media strategy. Due to the
integration of the services provided under the terms of the contract, management judgement {as
explained on page 68) is applied to assess whether there is a single combined performance
obligation.
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Although there may be variability in the total quantum of media spend {on which the Group earns
commission} as the Group is entitled to invoice as spend is made, and as this drives the
recognition of revenue arising from the contract, there is no need to estimate the amount of
variable revenue due to be earned over the life of the contract. Often the commissien earned is
refiective of the value to the customer and in those instances therefore the Group measures
revenue to be recognised as the amount to which they hold the 'right-to-invoice’.

The performance obligation for media buys is considered to have been satisfied when the
associated advert has been purchased. Where a contract is comprised of a large number of
separate media purchases then, as the contract is for the provision of a number of services
which are substantially the same, fewer performance obligations are recognised. Dependent on
the arecise terms of the contract as noted above, this can result in a single combined
performance obligation being identified.

In tr & majority of instances where the Group purchases media for clients, the Group is acting as
agent.

Commission based income in relation 1o talent performance

Revenue in relation to talent performanse involves the Group acting as agent. Typically, such
arrangements have a single, or a sequence, of specific performance obligations refating to the
talent (or other third party) providing services. The performance obligations are generally
satisfied at a point in time once the service has been provided. In these instances, revenue is
recognised at the point in time which the performance obligation is satisfied. The consideration
for the services is normally for a fixed amount (as a percentage of the talent's fee} with no
degree of variability.

M&C Saatchi plc
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NOTES

8. Auditors' remuneration 9. Net finance Income / (expense)
The Group paid the following amounts to its auditors in respect of the audit of the financial
statements and for other services provided to the Group: Botiry
Financial incoeme and horrowing costs
2019 2018 Interest snoam. and borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the period in
Year ended 31 December £000 £000 whic they are incurred.
Audit services
Audit of the Company and its consolidated accounts 2,918 418 2019 208
Audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 181 290 Yezr ended 31 December £000 £000
3,159 768 )
: Bark interest receivahle 285 272
Other services provided by the Auditors ) .
Taxation compliance services 32 99 Othar interest receivable 287 1
Finance due ditigence - 38 Sutiease finance income a1 -
Remuneration w®003 services 29 - Finzncial income 813 973
Forensics services 710 - . bi 1305 1175
Other advice - 3 Bark interest payable (1,325) (1,175}
71 70 Other interest payable (250) {182}
Total 3,930 838 Interest on iease liabilities (1,837} -

Other advice provided by the auditors for the year ended 31 December 2019 related principally w@mwﬁﬂmﬁs minority sharefolder put option lial @.821)  (3.115)

to the forensic review which is detailed on page 11 of the Finance Direstor's review.

Financial expense (6,233) (4.472)
Ne: finance expense (5,620} (4,199)

# 2013 restated by increasing expense by £2.%

n, note 2(e).

104 M&C Saatehi plc
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NOTES

Looking forward, there remains some uncertainty over how Brexit may impact tax legislation, and
there is a likelihood that Governments may raise taxes to recover their expenditures spent
dealing with the social and economic effects of Covid-19 pandemic.

The key differences between actual and standard tax rates:

=  Option charges not deductible for tax, our share-based payment schemes mostly
relate to equity held in subsidiary companies. The Group receives in most part ng tax
benefit on exercise of such put options.

« Different tax rates applicable in overseas jurisdictions, the Group operates in multiple
locations round the world where tax rates are higher than the UK, e.g. Australia 30%
and USA 21% to 28%.

+  Niltax on disposal of associates, in the year we disposed of our remaining 24.9%
interest in Walker Media, we expect to receive substantial sharehoiding exempticn on
this disposal.

+ Impairment with no tax credit, on most of our acquisitions we received ng tax banefit
from the acquisition of Goodwill. During the periods some of our Goodwill was
impaired with no future tax benefit of such impairments.

Tax on headline profits

As can be seen in our headling tax reconciliation, the largest drivers of headline tax charge are
our local entities’ profitability with central costs being in lower tax UK, and profits being made in
higher tax countries such as Australia and USA.

Our headline tax rate has reduced from 35.4% (prior to restatements, 31.7%) to 29.0% due to our
restated 2018 profits having a large proportion of disallowable expenditure items which included
significant impairments. This has been somewhat offset by a reduction in low tax UK profits, and
an increase in income from higher tax locations.
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Ysar ended 31 December 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 % £000 %
Headline profit before taxation (note 1} 18,282 23,470
Taxation at UK corporation tax rate of 19.00%
Tax 2ffect of associates 1 - 537 -2.3%
Non-controlling interest share of partnership income 377 -2.1% 284 -1.2%
Expenses not deductible for tax (424) 23%  (2,291) 9.8%
Different tax rates applicable in overseas
jurisdictions (1,455) 8.1%  (1,605) 6.7%
Effest of changes in tax rates on deferred tax (5) - - -
Witt holding taxes payable (39) 0.2% - -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses - - 25 -0.1%
Adjustment for current tax under provision in prior
periods 538 -3.0% 447 -1.9%
Adjustment for deferred tax (under) provision
in p-ior periods B370) 2.0% {399) 1.7%
Impairment with no tax credit - - (53T) 2.3%
Tax losses for which no oeferred tax asset
was recognised (451} 2.5% 317 1.4%
Headling taxatlon (hote 1) (5,302) 29.0%  (8315) 35.4%
Hezdline effective tax rate 29.0% 35.4%

M&.C Saatchi plc
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NOTES

Within the lacal entities £2,382k (2018: £723k} of deferred tax has been naturally offset; ignoring 12. Divldends
such an offset the split of deferred tax is as follows:

working Equlty dividends

Intanglbles Gapital Tax capital Equity dividends on ordinary share capital are recognised as a liability in the period in which they
allowances losses differsnces Total are %o_m_.ma..;m interim di amsn is recognised when it has been approved by the Board and the
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 @:M% mam_a is recognised when it has been approved by the shargholders at the Annual General
At 31 December 2018 -
Deferrad tax assets 2,353 117 1,662 2,459 6,591 Year anded 31 December 2018 2018
Deferred tax liabilities (940) (34} - (1,193)  (2,167) £000 £000
Net deferred tax 1413 83 1,662 1,266 4424 2018 final dividend paid 8.51p on 5 July 2019 {2017: 7.40p) 7,566 6,761
At 31 December 2018 2019 interim dividend paid 2.45p on 8 November 2018 (2018: 2.45p) 2247 2,117
Deferred tax assets 2,031 68 1,039 4,139 1,837 9,813 8,378
Deferred tax li (1,793} (19) (16} (1,085) {2,923
Net deferred tax 298 49 1,523 3,044 4,914 The 2018 dividend has been restated to reflect the number of shares in issue when the dividend

was paid, as opposed to the number of shares in existence at 31 December 2018.
Unrecognised deferred tax asset in respect of carried forward tax losses:

Deferrad The Board is not proposing to pay a final 2019 dividend.
tax
Loss impact The dividends relate to the profit of the following years:
£000 £000
At 31 December 2018 1,085 449 Year ended 31 December 2019 2018
Exchange differences (59) 20 £000 £000
Expired losses 1)) (21 Interim dividend paid 2.45p on 8 November 2018 (2018: 2.45p) 2,247 2,117
Losses in year 2,004 476 No Final dividends payable (2018: 8.51p) - 1,566
At 31 December 2019 4,159 882 2247 9,683
Statutory dividend cover loss loss
Expiry date of losses: Headline dividend cover 3.8 1.2
2019 2018 . . . i i
2000 £000 Dividend cover is calculated by taking profit after tax attribytable to equity shareholders and
dividing it by the total dividend that relates to that year's profits. The Group in the past has aimed
One to five years 181 263 to maintain a long-term headline dividend cover of between 2 and 3. This poticy will be reviewed
Five to ten years o8 - depending on the needs of our Strategic Review, and the outcome to Covid-18 pandemic.
T 593 196 Retained profits are used to reinvest in the long-term growth of the Group through funding
€N years or more working capital and investing activities; and to repay bank debt.
Total 882 449

A deferred tax asset in respect of certain losses in overseas territories has not been recognised
as there is insufficient certainty of future taxable profits against which these would reverse.

108 M&C Saatchi plc
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NOTES

15. Deferred and contingent consideration

Certain acquisitions made by the Group include contingent consideration, the quantum of which is
dependent on the future performance of the acguired entity. Such contingent consideration is
recognised as a fiability and recorded at fair value in line with IFRS 13 (note 27).

The liability arising Is remeasured at the earfier of the end of each reporting period or
crystallisation of the consideration payment. The movements in the fair value are recognised in
profit or 0ss.

Detail surrounding the fair value measurement of the contingent consideration recognised at year
end is provided in note 30.

16. Intanglble assets

2019 2018
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
- Contingent consideration** (368) (273)
- Contingent consideration™* (79) (367)
- Deferred consideration® - {(112)

Total due in < 1 year (445) (152}

Amounts falling due more than cne year but not more than five years
- Contingent™ (313) (514)

(758)  (1,266)

* This relates to a net asset true up payment on M&C Saatchi Secial Ltd which was paid subsequent to the
completion of the 2018 audit.

** This relates to contingent consideration for Levergy Marketing Agency (Pty) Ltd, which will be paid in M&C
Saatchi plc shares. The contingent consigeration is payable over the next three years, and is dependent on
profitability and profitability growth rates of Levergy Marketing Agency (Pty) Ltd. The amaunt payable is
uncapped. The fair value of contingent consideration is measured in fine with IFRS 13 (see note 30).

*** Relates to the 2018 acquisttion of Scarecrow Communications Ltd call option valuation that is payable in the
event of shareholder departure.

2018 2018

2000 £000
At 1 January (1,288) (1,210)
Exchange difference - 1
Acquisition - (479)
Charged to income statement (127 (3N
Consideration paid in equity - 459
Censideration paid in cash B35 -
At 31 December (758) (1,266}

All contingant consideration is payable from the parent company and held as a liability in the
company’s own baiance sheet.

110

intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Cost

Goodwlll

Under the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations, goodwill is the fair value
of consideration transferred, lass the net of the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities subsumed.

Other Intangibles acguired as part of a business combination

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination (which inciudes brand names and
customer refationships) are capitalised at fair value if they are either separable or arise from
contractual or other legal rights and their fair value is able to be reliably measured.

Software & film

Purghased software is recorded at cost, internally created software as well as film rights are
rasorded at cost. in case of internally created software and film rights these are created s¢ that
they can be directly used to generate future client income.

Amartisation

Goodwill is not amartised. Amortisation of other classes of intangible assets is charged {o the
income statement on a straight-ling basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Software ~three years

Customer relationships - one to five years

Brand name - one to three years

The Group has no indefinite-life intangibles other than gooawill.

Impairment

impairment reviews are performed as needed and as detailed within this note (for Goodwill) and
nate 17 {for associates). Impairment losses arise when the carrying amount of an asset or CGU is
in excess of the recoverable amount and are recognised in the income statement.

Goodwill's accumulated amortisation and impairment entirely relate to impairments; brand name
and customer relationships and software relate to amortisation and impairments.

M&.C Saatchi ple
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NOTES

Goodwiil and other intangibles are reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the assets may be impaired. Ali recoverable amounts
are from future trading and not from the sale of unrecognised assets or other intangibles {i.e.
their value in use).

The Group has recognised a total impairment charge of £5,874k in the year (2018, £4,167k). Of
this amount £5,874k relates to intangibles (2018: £1,878k) and ENi (2018; £2,289k) relates fo
plant and equipment {note 18).

The 2019 review of Goodwill was undertaken in the last quarter of the year in conjunction with our
annual business planning process, the reviews were repeated during the audit, and aff
assumptions checked and reflected in light of subsequence perfermance. Due to client losses

g in management changes and reqrganisations Clear Ifeas [ td was partially impaired ana
the folowing were fully impaired M&C Saatchi Madrid S.L., M&C Saatchi (UK) Lid and M&C
Saatchi GAD SAS. Cumulatively this has resulted in total Goodwill impairments during the year of
£5,874Kk (2018: £1,268Kk).

With the exception of Clear Ideas Ltd for which a partial impairment of Goodwill has been
recognised management have analysed in the table on the right the impact of a reduction in profit
and /or an increase in discount rates..

All CGU impairment reviews have been performed such that the recoverable amounts have been
calculated based on Value in use calculations that, this year, included tha effect of IFRS 16. The
Yalue in use calculations have been based on future forecast profitability of each CGU for a
period of one year, with resigdual growth rates applied thereafter to form the basis of discounted
future cash flows (DGFs). Where the OCF of a CGU is not in excess of its carrying amount (that
includes the value of its fixed assets (nate 18) and ROU Assets (note 19)) then an impairment loss
i recognised.

Management have approved the forecasts for 2020 and have prepared additional projections
based on the 2020 numbers for the next four years using a 1.5% expected growth rate and
anticipated replacement costs net of depreciation for fixed assets and ROU Assets. These were
used as the basis for determining the recoverable ameunt of each CGU. In making the forecasts,
management have reflected on past performance and present business and econromic prospects.

In conducting the review, a residual growth rate of 1.5% has been usad for all countries. Market

betas of 1.0 for UK, 1.09 for Europe, 1.0 for Americas and 1.2 for rest of the world have been
utilised.

12

Pre-tax discount rates are based on the Group’s nominal weighted average cost of capital
adjustad for the specific risks relating to the country and market in which the CGU operates.

Pra-tax

gt e

rates 2018 rates 2018 2019 rates 2018

Key assumptions % % L %
uK 1.5 3 12-15 11-12
Asia and Australia 1.5 3 1417 1317
Middle East 1.5 3 12 1013
ndia 15 3 17 20
South Africa 1.5 3 23-24 23-24
Europe 1.5 3 11-13 12-16
Americas 15 3 12-13 12-13

The key inputs to the Goadwil impairment reviews are the annual profit forecasts and the
discount rates applied to measure the present value of the future forecast cash flows. The
sensitivity of the CGUs held as at 31 December 2012 subsequent to the impairments described

abovz are presented below.

Annual profit forecast reduced by

Discount rates increased by 0% 10% 20% 30%

0% - - - 87
1% - - - 77
3% - 442 1,186 2,196
5% T84 1,528 2,392 3,826

CGUs showing the above sensitivity, due to th

eoretical significant long-term client losses, are

Bohemia Group Pty Ltd, LIDA NY LLP (MCD), Levergy Marketing Agency (Pty) Ltd, M&C Saatchi
Social Ltd, M&C Saatchi Advertising GmbH and Searecrow Communications Ltd.

2020 revenue reduced by

Discount rates Increased by

0% 10% 20% 30%

%

M&C Saatchi ple
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NOTES

All shares In associates are held by subsidiary companies and have no specia! rights. Where an
associate has the right to use our brand name we hold the right to withdraw such use to prevent
it being Jost and protect it from damage.

Asia and
e ae UK Europe  Australia* Americas 2019 2618
Split of income statement 2018 2018 2000 £000 £000 £000 5000 £000
Note £000 £000 Income
Profit net of cost of disposal 35 12,980 - statement
Share of profit after taxation 230 2,825 Nm<m=_mmm - 316 7,888 8704 18818 41812
peratin
At 31 December 13210 282 {l0ss) / profi - (s (258) 2318 2010 12,786
(Loss) / praofit
h - (108) (273) 2,125 1,744 12,149
we a0t pefort taafion
2000 £000 A it - (88) (223) 1933 1828 9,392
At1 January 22,568 1972 Group's share - 3 128 357 230 2,825
Exchange movements (617} 237
>Bc_a;_o= of mmmon__amm - 904 mmM_M_MMMm (2,822) B (108) - (2828 (428)
Impairment of associate (5,210) (674) * Comprised principally of a singla agscciata, being AEIOU.
Dividends (2,928) (428) The Group holds neither associates nor joint ventures in the Middle East & Africa.
Disposal (10,284) -
. Middle
Share of profit after taxation 230 2,805 fastand  Asiaand
At 31 December 3,780 22 589 UK  Eurcpe Afrlca  Australla  Americas 2019 2018
* Roquisition of Technology, Humans and Taste LLC. £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
*" In 2018, due to a significant reduction in economic activity in China, an impalrment review was carried out Balance
and £5,210k of the carrying vaie of M&C Saatchi (Hong Kong) Ltd (trading in China as AEIOU). sheet
Total assets - 136 - 8,719 4,421 11,276 124911
o - @ - @725 (383)  (8,150) (113,748)
Net current
assets / - 74 ~ 3,904 (942) 3,926 11,163
{liabilities)
Qur share - 3 ~ 1,486 (235) 1,264 4,460
ol - - - - W ! 1410
Goodwi - 1 ~ 978 1,302 2,281 16,659
- - - 2484 1302 3780 2258

114

M&C Saatchi plc
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NOTES

As described in note 2, during the course of 2019, senlor management of the Group identified a
number of accounting arrors relating to financial years prior to the year endad 31 December
2019. Remedial action required has included the restatement of fixed assets held both as at 1
January 2018 and those held as at 31 December 2018. The specific line items and fixed asset
categories effected have been separated out in the tables above for the purposes of providing
clarity to the adjustments required.

With the adoption of the new leasing standard, IFRS 16, the Group’s depreciation expense has
increased significantly when compared to the previous period. The effect of the new accounting
standard on depreciation is as shown below.

Depreciation is broken down as follows:

19, Leases

The Group leases various assets, comprising properties, equipment and motor vehicles, The
determination whether an arrangement is, or containg, a lease is based on whether the contract
conveys a right ta control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

EAR FIFR

2019 2018

Note £000 5000

From plant and equipment 3,380 3,037
From right-of-use assets 19 9,059 -
12,448 3,037

116

The following sets out the Group’s lease accounting policy for all leases with the exception of
leases with a term of 12 months or less and those of low value assets. In both these instances the
Group applies the exemptions permissible by IFRS 16 Leases. These are typically expensed to the
income statement as incurred.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilitles

At the inception of a lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The
value of the lease liability is determined by reference to the present value of the future lease
payments as determined at the Inception of the lease. A corresponding right-of-use fixed asset is
also recognised at an equivalent amount adjusted for any initial direct costs, payments made
before the commencement date {net of lease incentives) and the estimated cost for any
restoration costs the Group is obligated to at lease ingeption. Right-of-use assets are
subsequently depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the
assets’ estimated life.

Under IFRS 16 right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with (AS 36
'Impairment of Assets’ when there is an indication of impairment. This replaces the previcus
requirements relating to onerous leases.

Lease liabilities are disciosed separately on the Balange Sheet. These are measurad at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Lease payments are apportioned between a finance
charge and a reduction of the lease iiability based on a constant interest rate applied to the
remaining balance of the liability. Interest expense is included within the line item net finance
costs in the consolidated income statement.

The interest rate applied to a lease is typically the incremental borrowing rate of the entity
entering into the lease. This is as a result of the interest rates implicit in our leases not being
readily determined. The incremental borrowing rate applied by each relevant entity is determined
based on the interest rate adjudged to be required ta be paid by that entity to borrow a similar
amount over a similar term for a similar asset in a similar economic environment.

Lease term

The lease term determined comprises the non-canceliable period of the leass cantract. Periods
covered by an option to extend the lease are included if the Group has reasonable certainty that
the option will be exercised and periods covered by the option to terminate are included if it is
reasonably certain that this will not be exercised.

M&C Saatchi plc
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NOTES

Following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

20. Other non-current assets

LN

Loans to employees
Represent financial assets at amortised cost and subsequently measured using the effective
interest rate method.

£000 31 December 2019
Depreciation of right of use assets (9,059)
Short-term lease expense (134)
Low-value lease expense (831}
Short-term sublease income 70
Charge to operating profit (9,860)
Sublease finance income a1
Lease liability interest expense (1,837)
Lease charge to profit befare tax (11,406)

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities and manages
them in line with its approach to other month-to-menth liquidity matters as described in note 31.
The cash payment maturity of the lease liabilities held as at 31 December 2019 net of sublease
receipts is as follows:

2019 2018
At 31 December £000 £000
Other debtors including rent deposits 1,422 1,956
Loans to employees® 2,501 2,238
Call option provision - 54
Total cther non-current assets 3,023 4248

£000s 31 December 2018
Period ending 31 December:

2020 10,770
2021 7,971
2022 8,000
2023 8,181
2024 5,064
Later years 33,887
Gross future liability before discounting 70,063

Of future lease payments post 2024 £31m relates to a single office lease which expires in 2034.
This lease agreement was entered into during December 2018,

118

* Relates to Australian and South African loans heid at amortised cost. The Australian loans
relate to AUD3.3m (2018: AUD3.2m) loans (£1,788k, 2018: £1,803k) that the Group lent local
management of M&C Saatchi Agency Pty Ltd in 2015 to enable them to acquire 20% of that
business. The full recourse loan is repayable in {ull if the purchasers no longer have a beneficial
interest in the shares of the Australian Group, ¢r are no longer employed {though the equity can
be held when not employed). The loan is unsecured and charged interest at 0.1% above the five-
year Australian interbank rate at the date the loan was advanced. The carrying value of the loan
approximately equates to fair value. The South African loans retate to £713k {2018: £435k) icans
that the Group lent local management and blagk equity trust of its South African companies to
enable them to acquire equity in the South African Group businass. The full recourse loans are
repayable in full if the purchasers no longer have a beneficial interest in the shares of the South
African Group, or, are no longer employed. The loan is unsecured and charged interest at 2%
above LIBOR. The carrying vaiue of the loans approximately equate to fair value.

M&C Saatchi plc
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NOTES

22, Trade and other payables

Trade and other Jiahilities are non-interest bearing and are stated at their amortised cost
subseguent to initial recognition at their fair value, which is considered to be equivalent to their
carrying amount due to their short-term nature.

2018 20188

£000 E000
Trade receivables 768,030 114,594
Loss allowance (1,621) (873)
Net trade receivables 76,409 113,721
Prepayments 4,386 1,182
VAT and sales tax recoverable 1,900 2,065
Contract assets 10,148 4,364
Other receivables 19,570 24,076
Total trade and other receivables 113,163 151,987

# Restated, see note 2 and the following commentary. As a result of the misstatements identified in 2019 (see
note 2) the following financial statement line items relating to trade and other receivables have bean adjusted
as follows: Contract assets (commonly referred to as accrued income) decreased by £6.6m, Other receivables

increased by £8.7m, Prepayments reduced by £0.5m and Trade receivables reduced by £0.6m.

* Included within Other receivables are transactions relating to outiays incurred on behalf of clients not yet
invoiced for services not yet rendered to the client. As the underlying service is yet to be performed by the

third-party suppfier these amaounts cannot be held as contract assets.

Set out below is the movement in the loss allowance (which includes provision for expected credit

losses) of trade receivables and contract assets.

2019 2018#

2000 £000
Trace creditors (51,188) (71,076)
Con-ract liabilities {20,960) (25,129)
Sales taxation and social security payables (6,648) (8,247)
Employment benefit accruals (2,124) {2,636)
Accruals (49,957) {45,410)
Cther payables (9,148) (7,769

(140,035) {161,267)

2019 2018
£000 £000
As at 1 January 873) (2,741}
Adonption of IFRS & {expected credit loss) - (276)
(Provision) / Release for expected credit l0sses during the
year 88 12
Movement in forward looking provision for spesific bad debis: ”
- Charge during the year (1,444) (509}
- Released during the year 632 2,492
- Utilisation of provision 30 91
Foreign exchange movement 84) (2)
Year-end E.o<_m_mP (1,621) (873)

* Included within the specific bad debt loss allowance at the start of 2018 was one item relating to a specific

debt with one customer totaliing £1,890k. This amount was subsaquently remitted during 2018 and as such was

released from the specific bad debt provision in 2018.

The information about credit exposures is disclosed in note 31.

120

# Restated, see note 2 in addition to the following commentary. As a resylt of the cirgumstances identified
during the course of 2013 {cross refer to note 2 in the first instance) the following financial statement ling items
relating to trade and other payables have been adjusted upwards {i.e. increased liability); Accruals by £21.5m
and Other payables by £3.8m. £7.7m of contract liabilities have been adjusted downwards. In addition, £1.1m of
share option liabilities relating to cash-settled share-based payments have been included within Employee
benefit accruals as at 31 December 2018 (note 2) which were not previously required to be included.

Settlement of trade and other payables is in accordance with the terms of trade established with
the Group's Jogal suppliers.

Interest payable related to borrowings of £106k (2018: £147) is included within Accruals.

M&C Saatchi plc
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NOTES

Amounts due after one year

At 31 December

Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts which were due at the end of the
prior year (the accounting for these items has changed with the application of IFRS 16, note 4)

Obligations under finance [eases
Local bank loans
Secured bank loans

Secured bank loans

At the year end, the Group had a banking facility of up to £36m (2018: £38m) plus a £5.0m (2018:
£5.0m) overdraft facility. The facility has a floating rate of interest set at 1,756% above LIBOR and

2019 2018 were as follows:
00 Mﬁ”w 2019 2018
162 ﬁ (18) At 51 December £000 £000
(162) In 01e year or less, or on demand - (7)
- (3887 In miore than one year but not more than two years - (151)
(182)  (38,541) - (158)

Total bank loans and borrowings used to calculate net cash are as follows, IFRS 16 Leases is
excluded from the calgulation of net cash in agcordance with our bank covenants:

the overdraft has floating rates of interest set at 1.75% above the Bank of England base rate. The

banking facilities were set to mature on 30 April 2020; it has subsequently been exiended to Gross
30 June 2021, with the interest margins increasing to 3.00% above LIBOR for banking facility and secured Logal Total
the cverdraft interest margin set at 3.25% above the Bank of England base rate. in return for the bank bank Involce bank Lease
facility the Group gave the bank guarantees over key UK, US, Dutch and Australian companies. foans loans discounting™  loans® flabilities Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2018 018 At January 2018 BTE8 (017 (2815)  (41,680) - (41,500
At 31 December £000 £000 Cash 1t (329) 690 914
Gross secured bank loans {35,877) (38,502) ash movements 1,278 h 1,215
Capitalised finance costs 37 130 Non-cash movements
Net secured bank loans (35,840) (38,372) - Fareign exchange (515) 1 - (504) - (504)
Future interest payable on secured bank loans at balance sheet @87 (1.588) chenges
date ! At 31 December 2018 (38,502) (316) (2001 (40,818) -
Total secured bank loans and future interest (35,907 (39,960)
At 1 January 2019 - - - - (43,739)  (43,739)
Cash movements 2,501 {313) 2,001 4,189 10,638 14,827
Total secured bank loans and future interest are due as foliows:
Ng1-cash movements
2018 2018 -~ L=ase additions - - - - (22,474} (22,419
At 31 December £000 4000 - Foreign exchange
324 127 - 451 805 1,358
In one year or less, or on demand (35,907) (1,188) changes
In more than one year but not more than five years - (38,77h) At 31 December 2019 (35,6T7) {602) -~ (36,179) (54,770)  (90,849)
(35,907) (39,960} * The borrowing used to caloulate net cash,
** Tha2 pet movement of £2,001k (2078: £914k) is inclusive of tota! drawdowns during the year of ENIL {2018:
£44.4m) and repayments of £2,0m (2018: £45.3m).
129 M&C Saatchi plg



£el

‘020¢ 40 JepulewaJ ayy Ut pansst aq o1 anp aJam 1eyl suoido 1nd ayz Jo uorJodo.d Juenijiugis Kaa
B 1BU3 JInsa. 8y) yiim suondo 1nd Jo SJ8P|I0Y UIBLIBD ULM SLUIS]1 mal Pajelogau A[1Lanad saey am

‘0307 J0 JOPUIBWIB BY] Ul paNss| aq 01 SABY PINOM S3JBYS ¥94Z'G| Jayln)

& ‘dgg 18 saueys Juinssi Ag pailas &g 03 sJam gz0zZ Jo) suonedgo uoido 1nd Suluews. ay) e
410707 Joy suoirediigo uoido jnd (B 811388 03 (0pZ| JO 8014d 8NSS| UB U PBSEQ) (707 JO JapuleLa.
L U1 panss| aq 0} paJdinbad |[11s S8JBYS X366 s JAUNN B U1 NSAU PINOM YIIUM ‘PaNss) Laaq

BABY P|NOM S3JBYS ¥ZGa'G AlUO ‘dpz| J0 aauud aJeys pua-Jeak ay) Je panss| usaq suoldo 1nd asayl
peH 'dgge Jo a01d aueyS 33e.J9AR LIE 18 PSNSS| 519M S3.JBYS 8Sal] '(Suclido 1nd) salwayss uoido
Ind § SH4| PUB 7 SH 141N} O} Panss| uaaq 3ABY $3.18YS 403823 40 (2101 B 0707 Arenuer | aouig
0202 vl panss| dJeyg

9/d 1yoyees O

%E % %8 % %31 {%06+) d9g| W
%5 %W %Ll % %9l {parsnipeun) dygl Wy
%6 %. %81 %9 %63 (%08-) 979 W
ve0z €302  ZTOT 1202 0202 sJap|oya.eys

810z J8Gwa08( Lg JO UoiNIQ
062 §I6T  G0SL  6vET  GhY'LL (%05+) dog| 1y
SOv'v  GGLT  08'6  109'C  BYE'GL (paisnipeun) dyg| 1y
£92'8  6iF9  1B6'9L  08G'G  I6'GE (%05-) dz9
000, 000 000, 000, 000, Jeaf Ag [e10} sauRyg
vZ0Z €20z  %30% 1202 0202

20lJd aJdeys u) agueya e Jo 108143

:mMo|jag

81q.} 8y} U) pE3LSSSId SI UCITRUWIOIL ay] "$801Jd 8JeysS UAIHIp 858Y) I8 Sa.JBYS By Juinss! uo
Paseq $aNss] AJeYS JO 195448 SAIN[IP BUI P31USSAId 0SB aaBY 8p% *SaoiJd BIBYS JUBJBYP JO 83uel
€ 1B 8BS FUINSS! L0 PBSEq NG SA0QR S|Q.L Y1 Ul UO{IBWIOJUI BLIES aU} PasA|BUE OS[e SABY aM

086'0¢ sdeaf jje - [ejoy
Jmﬂ SuOIISINDo’ 31RI00SSE PALIWWOD
131G SaLU2UDs § SH4! [E101
926'GZ §3W3Y0s 7 SH4| 1oL

cov'y gol'e 0186 Lo9'e ave'st Jeaf Aq - [e101
- - - - b Inboe 91eINOSSE PAIIIWWOY
- vrl 806’1 - Gra'e $8layds G SHA
Gov'y L1a'e 296') 10g'e 18g'g S3Wsyas g Sy4l
000. 000 000 000, 000, saJeys
¥é0¢ 2300 (441 150G 0zoz
Jeak Aq sanss| aJdeys pajoadxe auniny Jo 8||cdd

986'9¢

189'18 0207 +8ie 8|qenss] salisyos

! 0207 Ul 8jges|odaxa Alleuslod $aLUayos

anss| 0} SaJeyg
§10Z 42qwWad8(] L¢ 18 SB Sanss| aJeys pa1oadxa sdniny [e30]

:sueld Jeak-any JuiNseJ 8yl DUB mMalAB. D|F8]R1S

Jno Jo 1ied se pa1epdn aq (|t S1S29310) USNS ‘PALIUBND JO UMOUY SJam Jiuapued | -pIAon) 8y Jo

510818 Y] 2J0J50 PAILSID D.JaMm $ISBIS.I0) 9S9L] 'GRSIDIaXS BLLDDA] 1Sl SaWayds uondo ind
auyy yaym 1e 1nod ay) 01 YSnoJyl Jun SSaUISNg YIBe Jo) 99UBWLI0LIed SSBLISNG BUnIN) PaTRILISE

pua-Jeak §107 8y) pue dpg | 40 ao1d aJeys pua-Jeak §L0Z Ay} U0 Paseq $awWayos uondo ind
10} aJniny auE Ul panss! ag 0] pal0aaxa SaJBYS J0 JOQWINY [210] 8L3 uasaJd am mo|aq a|qel ay] u|

"9z PUB 7 $910U Ul Pas0|35Ip SOWaLDS aJRYS (B 03 SUlE|9.) UOIIBWJO
SSSIJBLUWNS 1] JuSWaJinbaJ £10IN181S © 10U S| PUB JBAK Y] Ul M3U S| 310U 3INS0[9SIP SIYL

S$aJeYs 3|qenss| A|[euslod 9z

*s8Wayos uoisuad 03 SUDIINQLIUOD PA.ISSP PUB ‘SUCIIED0| BLI0S Ul BABS| 3J1AJSS WJS1-BU0| 01 S318jad SIyf ,

(v¥6'L) (ogL'Ly

(196) (602) 810
(£86) (1z8) LSUOIS1A0Jd yBUSq uaWwAoldw]
0003 0003 Jequiajeq Lg
8102 8102

S3((1GBY| JUBIINI-UCU JAYIQ 5T

‘S11ON



will now be deferred to and issued in later years, thereby reducing the immediate requirement to
issue further shares in 2020.

27. Minority shareholder put option liabilities

- See below but also Basis of Preparation note on page 69

vs option liabilities provide a variable return of eguity or cash to an awardee at a point in time in
the future. These instruments are recognised at amortised cost of the underlying award on the
date of inception. Both a liability on the balance sheet and a corresponding amount within the
minority interest put option reserve are recognised. Subsequent movements in the amortised
cost are accounted for as amortisaticn charges within finance gains/expense.

Upon exercise of an award by a holder the liability is extinguished, and the associated minority
interest put option reserve is transferred to the non-controlling interest acquired reserve.

Some of our subsidiaries' local entrepreneurs (minarities) have the right to a put option. The put
options give the minorities a right to exchange their minerity holdings in the subsidiary into shares
in M&C Saatchi plc or cash (as per the agreement).

These derivative instruments were previously accounted for as financiai liabilities at fair vaiue
with future changes in value being taken through profit or loss. As explained in note 2 these
instruments are now accounted for at amortised cost and not fair value. This change is solely
classificational, there has been no change in either the valuation methodclogy nor the value of the
instruments, neither at the end of 2019 (if presented as previously} nor the comparative
reporting period.

The critical judgement as to when a share award scheme is accounted for as a put option liability
is provided in detail on page 69. Such schemes should be considered as rewards for future
bhusiness performance which are not conditional on the holder being an employee of the business.
This judgement was re-examined during this audit, the resulting tables reflect all awards that
remain following this restatement. All remaining schemes are payable in equity, the number of
future shares tc issue is variable and will depend on the share price and future performance of
the business. These are accounted for as a liability under IFRS 9 and held on the balance shest at
amortised cost.

20189 20184
As at 31 Degember £000 £000
Ameunts falling due within ane year (3,183) (9,947)

Ameunts falling due after one year, but less than three years (3,918) (3,811

(7,101) (13,764)

# Restated

124

2018 20184

£000 £000
At 1 January (restated) (13,784) (13,181)
Exchange difference (188) (2
Additions - (174}
Exercises 9,872 2,708
Income statement charge due to:
- Change in profit estimates (2,512) (3,545)
- Change in share price (2371 419
~ Amartisation of discount (72) 1
Total income statement charge (2,821) {3,118)
At 31 December (7,101) (13,764)
Put options exercised in year .Mm“_w Mw%w
Paid in equity 8,665 2,708
Paid in cash 3,285 -
Exchange difference (258) -
Total 8,872 2,108

# Restated

The estimated number of M&C Saatchi plc shares that will be issued to fulfil these options at 124p
is 5,727,000 shares (2018: 289.0p is 4,763,000 shares).

At each pericd end, the amortised cost of the put option liability is calculated in accordance with
the put option agreement to determine a best estimate of the future value of the expected award.
Resultant mavements in the amortised cost of these instruments is charged to the income
statement. Where the agreement gives a right to convert to a variable number of shares (rather
than a valug), the number of shares is converted to a value by using the period end share price
(2019: 124.0p; 2018: 289.0p).

The put option liability will vary with both our share price and the subsidiary enterprises’
performance. Current Yiabilities are determined by our year-end share price and the 2019 results
of the companies who can exercise in 2020. Non-current liabilities are determined by our year-
end share price and the projected results of the companigs who can exercise after 2020. The
projected results use management's best estimate of the growth rates and margin of the
companies who can exercise after 2020.

M&C Saatchi ple
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NOTES

The inputs to Monte Carlo models used to calculate the fair value of share awards granted during
the year are as follows:

2019 2018
Share price at grant £0.90- £1.92 £2.88 - £3.90
Expected volatility 3% —-87% 20% - 34%
Risk free rate 052%-070%  0.72%-1.11%
Dividend yield 0%-3.33% 2.44%-3.31%
Fair value of award per share £0.90-£1.92 £1.54-£3.73

The total fair value of each award, expense recognised in the year plus grant and vesting dates
can be seen on pages 127 to 129. The weighted average share price of options exercised during
the period was £3.05 (2018, £3.67).

Expense recognised in the year:

2019 2018#

£000 2000

Equity settled* 10,266 16,864

Cash settled - 81

Cash settled SA™ 342 233

Total 10,808 17,178
# Restated

* As explained in note 2 these instruments were previously considered to be composed entirely of market-
based performance cenditions. The recognition that these items have non-market based performance
conditions means their cost to the business requires reassessment at each period end. As at the end of 2018
the 2019 expense related to these schemes was expected to be £4,168k (2018: £6,104k). Reassessment of the
cost to the business has consequently resulted in an increase of staff costs of £6,008k (2018: £10,760k prior
year adjustment).

** As explained in note 2 somé of our South African subsidiaries have unwritten cash-based awards that are
paid out on an employee’s departure.

Share option activity included LTIP awards made to the Directors of the Group are discussed in
terms of the wark of the Remuneration Committee {commences on page 50).

126

Gash settled share-based payments
Trese schemes relate in their entirety to the South African business. The movement in the liability
raquired to be recognised at the end of each reporting period is as detailed below.

2019 2018#

£000 £000
1 January total (1,086) (867}
Revaluations (342} (233}
Settled 864 14
Foreign exchange ) -
At 31 Decembear (571) (1,086)

Fully vested - re-classified put cption liability

As part of the re-examination of the judgement if an award is a put option liabiiity (IFRS 9) or a
s1are-based payment (IFRS 2, note 27), the following awards were redefined as share-based
payments. All such awards had vested before the comparative period, apart from reversing the
put option liability and asset (note 2), no additional charge was incurred as a share-based
payment in these accounts.

M&C Saatchi Marketing Arts Lid

M&C Saatchi (M) SDN BHD

FCING SAS

Cometis SARL

M&C Saatchi Sport & Entertainment NY LLP
M&C Saatchi Sport & Entertainment Pty LTD
M&C Saatchi Talk Ltd

M&C Saatchi Brasil Comunicagdo Ltda
M&C Saatchi European Holdings Ltd

M&GC Saatchi PR UK LLP

The Source (W1) LLP

M&C Saatchi Agency Pty Ltd

influence Communications Ltd

FE Team Pty Ltd

Fully vested - other fully vested schemes

There are no other fully vested, unexercised schemes other than those that have an accounting
charge in either of the comparative periods.

M&C Saatchi plc
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NOTES

Total charge over Charge for Charge for

vesting period 2018 2018

Grant date Vesting date Ml shareholding £000 £000 £000

M&C Saatchi Mobile Singapore 24/06/2015 15/04/2020 5.0% 84 (24) (58)
M&C Saatchi Mobile USA 28/10/2016 15/04/2020 0.0% 4,225 1,330 1,330
M&C Saatchi Network Ltd 06/06/2016 15/04/2019 5.0% 5,275 384 3,151
M&C Saatchi PR International Ltd 20/11/2017 15/04/2022 11.3% 63 (7} ]
M&C Saatchi PR International Ltd 29/11/72017 15/04/2023 11.3% 56 (6) b
M&C Saatchi PR International Ltd 28/11/2017 15/04/2024 11.3% 49 (3) 4
Send Me A Sample Ltd 02/07/2018 16/04/2023 12.0% B9 (6) 95
Send Me A Sample Ltd 02/07/2018 15/04/2024 14.0% 114 (7 121
Send Me A Sample Ltd 02/07/2018 18/04/2025 14.0% 118 (6) 124
M&C Saatchi Singapore 01/09/213 15/04/2019 20.0% 123 (231) (36)
M&C Saatchi Social Ltd 20/06/2018 50/06/2021 24.5% 1,642 - 1,642
M&C Saatchi Social Ltd 29/06/2018 30/06/2023 24.5% 1,341 - 1,341
M&C Saatchi SpA 08/12/2015 15/04/2019 10.0% 2,590 222 750
M&C Saatchi Sport & Entertainment Ltd 311072017 16/04/2022 25.0% 357 (121) 112
M&C Saatchi Sport & Entertainment LA LLC 01/01/2018 24/04/2022 35.0% 396 303 93
M&C Saatchi Sport & Entertainment NY LLP n/1/2018 15/04/2018 3.0% 62 37 7
M&C Saatchi Sport & Entertainment NY LLP 01/11/2018 15/04/2024 12.5% 48 38 -
M&C Saatchi Sport & Entertainment NY LLP 01/11/2619 15/0b/2025 5.0% - - -
M&C Saatchi (UK) Ltd 06/07/2018 16/04/2023 30.0% 397 27 424
M&C Saatchi World Services LLP 0571272018 15/06/2020 8.0% 1,117 142 -
M&C Saatchi World Services LLP 056/12/2019 15/05/2021 6.0% 1,256 178 -
M&.C Saatehi World Services LLP 05/12/2019 15/05/2022 6.0% g75 87 -
M&C Saatchi Worldwide Ltd 01/06/2016 01/01/2019 0.0% 877 1 378
M&C Saatchi Worldwide Ltd 18/07/2016 01/01/2019 0.0% b7 - 23
M&C Saatchi, S.A. DE.C.V 01/0772017 15/04/2023 41.0% 97 17 b3
Majority LLC 07/11/72018 15/04/2024 50.0% 37 34 3
RE Worldwide UK Ltd 01/01/2018 31/12/2022 49.9% m 78 633
Scarecrow M&C Saatchi Ltd 01/05/2018 20/01/2020 24.5% 220 89 132
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29, Issued share capltal
>__on$n called up and fully pald

oa__._mé shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs attributable to the issuance of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from proceeds.

Where the Group reacguires its own equity instruments (treasury shares}, the consideration paid
is deducted from equity attributable to owners of the Group and recognised within the treasury
reserve.

uo _nm_1 value measurement
— See also basis of preparation page 70

1p Ordinary
sharas
N hares £000
At 31 December 2017 81,332,802 813
Exercise of Mobile USA share options 1,979,782 20
Acquisition of 51% of Scarecrow Communications Ltd 450,639 5
Acquisition of 20% M&C Saatchi Merlin Ltd 250,760 3
Acquisition of 40.3% M&C Saatchi PR UK LLP 1,221,879 12
Acguisition 53% of Red Hare Ltd 1,320,324 13
Contingent consideration Levergy Marketing Agency Pty Ltd 17,733 1
Acquisition 24.5% LIDA NY LLP 315,681 3
Acauisition 10% M&C Saatchi Advertising GmbH 514,947 5
>E=.._m:._8 of small percentages of US and Swedish 98.906 1
subsidiaries ’
At 31 December 2018 87,603,553 876
Exercise of M&C Saatchi Mobile share options 1,785,527 18
Acquisition of 10% of M&C Saatchi SPA 825,755 8
Agquisition of 10% of M&C Saatchi Merlin Ltd 131,501 1
Acquisition of 33% of Shepardson Stern & Kaminsky LLP* 1,048,747 1
Acquisition 10% M&C Saatchi (M) SDN. BHD 408,115 4
Acquisition 17% of Bohemia Group Pty Ltd 1,397,613 14
Acquisition of M&C Saatchi Sports & Entertainment smaller 395,949 1
sharehoiders '
At 31 December 2018 93,596,760 936

* Shares were issued by M&C Saatchi plc to enable the acquisition by M&C Saatchi Agency Inc. of
this equity.

The Group holds 485,370 (2018: 700,000) of the above M&G Saatchi plc shares in treasury.
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Omnm_z of the Group's financial assets and liabilities, in addition to ¢ertain non-financial assets
and liabilities, are held at fair value.

The fair value of an asset or liability is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the balance sheet
date.

Financial and non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the Balance Sheet are
grouped inta three lavels of a fair value hierarchy. The three ievels are defined based on the
observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

—Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that arg observable for the
asset or liability, efther directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group holds both assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
and those which are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. ltems measured at fair
value on a non-recurring basis typically relate to non-financial assets arising as a result of
business cembinations as accounted for under the acquisition method. In this regard, during the
<mmﬁ Em Group has recognised additions to intangible assets (brand names and customer lists)
g SNl (2018: £2,859Kkk).

ion, the Group also calculates the fair value of certain non-financial assets when there is
the need to conduct an impairment review. These calculations also fall within Level 3 of the iFRS
13 hierarchy and where applicable are described in note 16.

M&C Saatchi ple
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NOTES

Valuation and sensitivity to valuation

The Group's finance team performs valuations of financial items for financial reporting purposes,
including Level 3 fair values. Where appropriate such valuations are performed in gonsultation
with third-party valuation specialists for complex calculations.

The valuation approaches adopted for each category of financial instrument held at fair value
detailed above, in addition to the calculation’s sensitivity to salient inputs, are as detailed below.

(1) Equity instruments at FVTPL — These assets relate to corporate venturing unlisted equity
investments as detailed in note 20a. Management use the most recent market prices as the basis
for establishing the fair value of the equity investments as at year end. Fluctuations in these
purchase prices would therefore change the fair value of the investments recognised at year end,
as follows assuming a 10% uplift or downwards movement in the price:

Increase / (decrease)
in fair value of asset

Adjusted purchase price £000
+10% 1,485
-10% {1,485)

In addition, management consider there to be a risk that the most recent purchase prices are
sensitive to a decision to sell the investments to an unwilling market. if such a market existed,
then discounting the investments to reflect such risk could impact the value as shown below:

Decrease in fair value

of asset
Risk adjusted sales price £000
-30% sales discount due to illiquid nature " (4,455)
-12% risk discount for unwilling market place ** (1,247)
Value after discounts 9,149

* If these illiquid securities were to be sold then such a sale is expected 1o yield between a 10% and 50%
discount, so sensitivity based on 30%.

** Risk that if cash supply dries up some of the investments with future growth prospects
requiring a fire sale, reflected by additional risk discount of 12%.

run out of cash

(i) Contingent consideration — Contingent consideration relates to one acquisition made in 2017
(Levergy) and the 2018 acquisition of Scarecrow Communications Ltd

The Levergy consideration is payable in a variable number of M&C Saatchi plc shares which is
dependent on the future profitability and growth of profit of the acquired entity, The fair vatue of
the contingent consideration outstanding at year end is calculated based on forward-looking
forecasts of the business applied to the terms of the acquisition (which defines the number of plc

132

shares to be earned into). The resultant cash equivalent amount of the shares which would have
been issued is discounted to present value using a discount rate based on a country spe
WACC.

The key inputs for calculation of the fair value of the deferred consideration at year end relate to
(1} the risk adjusted discount rates used, and (ii) the future forecast profitability of the acquired
business over the period of the deferred consideraticn. Differences in either of these inputs
would change the fair value of the liability:

increase / (decrease) In
fair value of liability

Forecast PBT £000
10% 130
-10% (130)

Increase / (decrease) In
fair value of liability

Adjusted WACC £000
+5% (20)
-5% 22

The Scarecrow Communication Ltd contingent consideration is payable in a variable number of
plc shares. The formula used to derive the number of plc shares is based on historic results of
th=2 company. As such the calculation does not involve any estimates and no disclosures
regarding the sensitivity of the inputs made are relevant.

M&C Saatchi ple
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NOTES

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for
financial instruments held at the balance sheet date. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of borrowings outstanding at the balance sheet date were outstanding for the whole year.
A b0-hasis peint increase or decrease is used when reporting interast rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible
changes in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis peints higher/lower and all ather variables were held constant,
the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 would (decrease)/increase by £(192)k /
£19% (2018; £(204)k 7 £204Kk). This is principally attributable to the Group's exposure to interest
rates on its floating rate loan.

31.5 - Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk arises from the Group's management of working capital and the finance charges
and, when appropriate, principal repayments on its debt instruments, It is the risk that the Group
will encounter difficulty in mesting its financial obligations as and when they fall due. The Group's
debt instruments carry interest at LIBOR + 1.75% (on 30 April 2020 this increased to LIBOR +
3.00%).

The Group's policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its
liabilities when they come due. To achieve this aim, the Group has a planning and budgeting
process in place to determine the funds required to meet its normal operating requirements on
an ongoing basis. The Group and Company ensures that there are sufficient funds to meet its
short-term business requirements, taking into account its anticipated cash flows from operations,
its holdings of cash and cash equivalent and proposed strategic investments.

The Board receives rolling 12-month cash flow projections on a monthly basis as well as
information regarding cash balances. At the end of the financial year, these projections indicated
that the Group had sufficient liquid resources to meet its obligations under all reasonably
expected circumstances.

The following tabie sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted contractual
cash flows) of financial liabilities:

Uptod 3te12 1102 2105 over §
Group months months years years years
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 31 December 2019

Trads and other (83,340) (49,95T)  (1,130) - -

payables*

Loans and borrowings - (35,979) (182) - -
Qverdrafts (16,232) - - - -
TOTAL (99,572) (85,838) (1,292) - -

* excludes taxes as these are not considered financial instruments
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Upto3 31012 1t02 2tob  overd
Company months months years years  years

£000 £000 £000  £000 £000

At 31 December 2019

Trade and other payables (229) (43,542) - - -
Loars and borrowings - (27,562) - - -
TOTAL (229) (71,104) - - -

Tre maturity profile for leases aceounted for under IFRS 16 is disclosed in nate 19.
The Group breached no banking covenants during the year.

31.6 - Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
irstrument fails to mest s contractual obligations.

T1e Group monitors credit risk at both a local and Group level. Credit terms are set and
monitored at a local level according to local business practices and commercial trading

ns. The age of debt, and the level of accrued and deferred income is reported regularly.
Age profiling is monitored, both at local customer level and at consolidated entity level. There is
only local expasure to debt from our significant global clients. The Group continues to review its
dzbt exposure to foreign currency movements and will review efficient strategies to mitigate risk
a3 the Group’s overseas debt increases.

hanagement determines concentrations of credit risk by reviewing amounts due from customers
rronthly. The only significant concentrations of credit risk which are accepted are with

trultinational blue chip (or their equivalent) organisations where credit risk is not considered an
issue.

Impairment

The group has two types of financial asset that are subject to the expected credit loss model:
- Trade receivables

- Contract assets

T1e group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets,

Ty measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been
g-ouped based on shared credt risk characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets
r2late to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same risk characteristics as the
trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The group has therefore concluded that the
e<pected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for
the contract assets.

T1e expected loss rates for each business are based on the payment profiles of sales at least

over a periad of 24 months before 31 December 2019 or 31 December 2018 respectively and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates

M&C Saatchiple
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NOTES

32. Group companies

Key
*All those entities included in the below list in which the Group holds less than 50% of the share capital are accounted for as Associates (note 17).

All subsidiary companies which the Group centrol in ling with the requirements of IFRS 10 have been incfuded in the consclidated accounts.

** This subsidiary undertaking is exempt from Companies Act 2006 requirement relating to audit of their individeal accounts by virtue of Section 479A of the Act as M&C Saatchi plc has guaranteed the
subsidiary company under Section 479G of the Act.

*** With the exception of M&C Saatchi Network Ltd, our South African subsidiaries, Scarecrow Communication Ltd, M&C Saatchi Social Lid where all our equity is directly held by M&C Saatchi plc, all other
subsidiary companies’ equity is either in part or wholly held via subsidiaries of M&C Saatchi ple.

As at 31 December 2019 Country Effective % ownarship Activities
UK

Alive & Kicking Global Ltd** United Kingdom 100 Dormant
Audience Communications Ltd** United Kingdom 100 Marketing
Black & White Strategy Ltd United Kingdom 100 Dormant
Clear Ideas Consultancy LLP™* United Kingdom 85 Marketing
Clear Ideas Ltd** United Kingdom 85 Marketing
FYND Media Ltd** United Kingdom 100 Media Buying
H2R Research Ltd United Kingdom 80 Research
Hurman Digital Ltd™* United Kingdom 60 Research
Influence Communications Ltd** United Kingdorm 95 Dormant
Lean Mean Fighting Machine Ltd** United Kingdom 10 Advertising
LIDA (UK) LLP** United Kingdom 100 Direct Marketing
LIDA Ltd™* & ™= United Kingdom 100 Direct Marketing
M&C Saatchi (UK) Ltd™ & **~ United Kingdom 70 Adverting
M&C Saatchi Accelerator Ltd™ United Kingdom 56 Advertising
M&C Saatchi European Holdings Ltd** united Kingdom 96 Holding Company
M&C Saatchi Export Ltd™ & ™" United Kingdom 70 Advertising
M&C Saatchi German Holdings Ltd** United Kingdom 100 Holding Company
M&C Saatchi International Ltd™* United Kingdom 100 Holding Company
M&GC Saatchi Marketing Arts Ltd™ United Kingdom 50 Advertising
M&C Saatchi Merlin Ltd** United Kingdom 80 Talent Management
M&C Saatchi Middle East Holdco Ltd™ United Kingdom 80 Holding Company
M&C Saatchi Mobile Lta™ United Kingdom 89 Mobile Marketing
M&C Saatchi Network Ltd™ & *** United Kingdom 100 Holding Company
M&C Saatchi PR International Ltd** United Kingdom 66 PR Agency
M&QC Saatchi PR Ltd** United Kingdom 100 PR Agency
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NOTES

As at 31 December 2018 Country Effective % ownership Activities
Europe ¢ i

M&C Saatchi SpA [taly 80 Advertising
M&C Saatchi PR srl [taly 84 Dormant
M&C Saatchi B.V. Netherlands 50 Advertising
M&C Saatchi Internationa! Holdings BV Netherlands 100 Holding Company
M&C Saatchi Sport & Entertainment Benelux BV Netheriands 100 Sport Sponsorship & Entertainment PR Agency
M&C Saatchi Madrid SL Spain 91 Advertising
M&C Saatchi Sponsorship SL Spain b1 Advertising
M&C Saatchi AB Sweden 10 Advertising and Marketing
M&C Saatchi Gol AB Sweden 0 Advertising
M&C Saatchi PR AB Sweden 84 Dormant
M&C Saatchi (Switzerland) SA Switzerland 76 Advertising
Middle East and Africa

M&C Saatchi Bahrain WEL Bahrain 100 Dormant
M&C Saatchi Tel Aviv Ltd Israel 80 Advertising
M&C Saatchi SAL* Lebanon 10 Advertising {Associate)
Creative Spark Interactive (Pty) Ltd*** South Africa 56 Advertising
Dalmation Communications (Pty) Ltd™* South Africa 50 Advertising
M&C Saatchi Abel (Pty) Ltd South Africa 51 Advertising
M&C Saatchi Africa (Pty} Ltd™* South Africa 50 Advertising
M&.C Saatchi Connect {Pty) Ltd*** South Africa 50 Advertising
Levergy Marketing Agency (Pty) Ltd*** South Africa 50 Sport Sponsorship & Entertainment PR Agency
Razor Media (Pty) Ltd South Africa 50 Dormant
M&.C Saatchi Istanbul* Turkey 25 Advertising {Associate)
M&.C Saatchi Middle East FZ LLG United Arab Emirates 80 Advertising
M&C Saatchi FZ LLC United Arab Emirates 80 Advertising
Asia and Australla

1440 Agency Pty Ltd Australia 80 Dormant
Bellwether Global Pty Ltd Australia 80 Dormant
Bohemia Group Pty Ltd Australia 59 Media Agency W
Brands in Spagce Pty Ltd Australia 80 Design
Clear Australia Pty Ltd Australia 15 Marketing Strategy
Go Studios Pty Ltd Australia 80 Finished Art & Production Management Studio
Greenhouse Australia Pty Ltd Australia 64 Advertising
Hidden Characters Pty Ltd Australia 76 Branding and Digital Marketing
LIDA Australia Pty Ltd Australia 80 Digital Marketing
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NOTES

As at 31 December 2019 Country Effective % ownership Actlvities
Asia and Australia ¢.2: :

M&C Saatchi Mobile Asia Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore 88 Mobile Marketing
Love Frankie Ltd* Thailand 20 Marketing (associate)
Americas

Lily Participacoes Ltda Brazil 100 Holding Company
M&C Saatchi Brasil Comunicagdo Ltda Brazil 60 Advertising
M&C Saatchi Brasil Participacoes Lida Brazil 100 Holding Company
Santa Clara Participacoes Ltda” Brazil 25 Advertising (associate}
M&C Saatchi/Insight Pesquisa & Plangjamento Ltda Brazil 100 Dormant
M&C Saatchi, S.A. DE. GV Mexico 59 Advertising
Clear LALLC UsA 45 Marketing
Clear USALLC UsA 85 Marketing
Clear NY LLP USA 85 Halding Company
LIDA NY LLP (MCD) usa 76 Direct Marketing
LIDAUSALLP usa 100 Marketing
M&C Saatchi Agency Inc. USA 100 Holding Company
M&C Saatchi LA Inc. USA 53 Advertising
M&C Saatchi Mabile LLC USA 100 Mabile Marketing
M&C Saatchi PR LLP USA 100 PR
M&C Saatchi Share In¢. UsA 53 Dormant
M&C Saatchi Sport & Entertainment NY LLP usa 80 Spert Sponsorship & Entertainment PR Agency
M&C Saatchi Sport & Entertainment LA LLG USA G Sport Sponsorship & Entertainment PR Agency
M&C Saatchi NY LLP USA 90 Dormant
Majority LLG USA 50 Production
Shepardson Stern + Kaminsky LLP UsAa 100 Marketing Consultant
Technology, Humans and Taste LLC* USA 30 Marketing (associate)
World Services US Inc. USA 80 Dormant

Within the above list the following companies are associates, Technology, Humans and Taste LLC; Santa Clara Participacoes Ltda; Love Frankie Ltd; M&C Saatchi Ltd, M&C Saatchi (Hong Kong) Ltd; M&C

Saatchi Advertising (Shanghai) Ltd; M&GC Saatchi kstanbul; and M&C Saatchi SAL.
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NOTES

On 1 February 2019 the Company announced that terms had been agreed for Publicis Groupe to
acquire this equity investment for £25.0m The consideration was payable in cash on 31 January
2019. Due to the sale £1.7m was paid in fees.

Prior to completion of the sale of the equity interest held, a dividend was declared to the Group
for a total of £2.8m. As a result of this dividend being declared, a gain of £13.0m arose
subsequent to completion of the transaction.

The gain arising on the disposal is as detailed below:

2018 2018

£000 £000

Consideration received in cash 25,000 -

Carrying amount of investments held-for-sale (10,284) -
Legal costs (1,736}

Gain on sale hefore income tax 12,880 -

Income tax credit 281 -

Gain on sale after income tax 13,261 -

36. Post balance sheet events

On 30 April 2020, the term of the £36m revolving credit facility agreement and the £5m overdraft
facility agreement with Naticnal Westminster Bank pic was extended to 30 June 2021, The interest
margin on the revolving facility agreement was increased to 3.00% above LIBOR from 1.76%
above LIBOR. The overdraft facility has a floating rate of interest set at 3.25% above the Bank of
England base rate. Additicnal Group companies in the US and Australia were brought into the
facility as guarantors.

Following the announcement of the accounting misstatements, the Financial Conduct Autharity
opened an investigation inte the circumstances surrounding how this matter cccurred with which
the Company s assisting.

Following the year end, the Board appointed four Non-Executive Directors who the Board

considered independent and reconstituted its committees (further details are in the Governance
and Directors’ Report).
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I part due to the accounting misstatements and the Covid-1% pandemic, the Company’s annual
audit lasted seven months longer than originally planned and went over budget.

The Company’s shares were temporarily suspended from trading at 7.30am on 1 October 2020 as
the Company did not publish the Annual Report and Accounts by 30 September 2020 which was
the last day permitted for publication of the audited results under the AIM Rules (as modified by
the three month extension granted in connection with the Covid-19 pandemic pursuant to the
Inside AIM Guidance of 26 March 2020). Upon publication of the Annual Report and Accounts, we
expect the suspension to be lifted and the Company’s shares reinstated to trading.

We have undertaken a restructuring programme across the entire Group which will resuit in the
closure of a number of businesses in 2020.

As part of our restructuring programme in the second quarter of 2020 the Group closed its Los
Angeies subsidiary due to a deterioration in that subsidiary’s business in 2018 which worsened in
2020. The estimated Group revenue deriving from the Los Angsles subsidiary declined from 2.8%
i 2018 to 1.9% in 2019 whitst the share of Group net revenue deriving from the Los Angeles
subsidiary declined from 2.4% in 2018 to 1.4% in 2019. During this same period, there was
substantial turnover of finance staff based in such subsidiary which resulted in poor record
keeping and a lack of financial information for 2019. The Group finance team has adequate
information to confirm the 2019 closing balance sheet for the Los Angeles subsidiary, including
revenue cut-off between 2019 and 2020, but is unable to confirm the opening balance sheet for
2019 given the lack of financial records.

“he economic downturn caused by the Covid-19 pandemic has affected the revenue of most
Group companies. However, the Group’s business continuation plans worked and we cantinue to
service clients and win clients. We have cut costs to reduce the long-term economic effects of
Covid-19 pandemic; however, the effects on our associates and cash generating units are
different. This along with our strategic plan and other local opportunities and threats will result in
the carrying values of our Investments and Goodwill potentially being different at 2020 year-end
than at 2019. If economic effects of Covid-19 pandemic continue into the long term then most of
our Goodwill CGUs {except M&C Saatchi Mobile Ltd and M&C Saatchi Agency Pty Ltd), or
investments in associates may be at risk of impairment, We will do a full reassessment at the
2020 year-end.

M&.C Saatchi ple
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GOMPANY BALANGE SHEET

2019 2018%
At 31 December Note £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments* 40 127,094 123,959
Deferred tax 87 -
Amaunts due from subsidiary undertakings 44 89,832 70,534
Other non-current assets 41 2,071 2,238
219,984 196,731
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 42 2,948 3,402
Cash and cash equivalents 10,879 2,438
13,625 5,840
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 43 (43,771) (22,324)
Pravisions 43 (1,225) -
Bank loans (27,562) -
Contingent consideration 15 {444) (752)
(73,002) (23,076)
Net current llabilities (58,317) (17,236)
Total assets less current llabllities 180,607 179,485
Non-current liabilities
Contingent consideration 15 {313) (514)
Employment benefit provision {459) -
Bank loans - (29,970)
772 (30,484)
Total net assets 159,835 149,011
Gapital and reserves
Share capital 936 876
Share premium®* 44,607 41,734
Merger reserve 66,962 83,197
Treasury reserve (550} {792)
Share based payment reserve® 36,912 33,343
Profit and loss account 10,968 10,653
Shareholders' funds 159,835 149,011
144

* Due to a change in judgement, that has changed the accounting of many of our IFRS put options
to IFRS2 conditional shares along with a revision to IFRS 2 valuations investments, share premium
and share based payment reserve has been restated. Further details in note 2 and note 40.

These financial statements on pages 144 to 151 were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board on 7 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

. \AR_ @
Mickey Kalifa §

Finance Director
M&C Saatchi plc
Company Number 05114893

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own
profit and loss account. Included within the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2019 is a profit after tax of £3,431k (2018: loss £(1,978)k).

The notes on pages 146 to 151 form part of these financial statements.

M&C Saatchi plc
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COMPANY NOTES

39. General Information and Accounting policies

M&:C Saatchi plc acts as the holding company for of the M&C Saatchi plc group. The Company Is
publicly domiciled, quated on London’s AIM stock exchange and incorporated in England and
Wales (registered number 05114893). The addrass of its registered office is 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F SEE.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost
convention in accordance with the reduced disclosure framework of FRS101.

In adepting the reduced disciosure framework of FRS$101, the Company has made the foliowing
exemptions from disclosure:

the cash flow statement and related notes;

disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries;

disclosures in respect of capital management; and

the effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs.

. s @

Accounting policles applied
The fallowing principal accounting policies have been applied:

a) Valuation of investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost, less any provision for impairment.

b} Pensions
Cantributions to personal pension plans are charged to the profit and loss account in the period
in which they are due,

¢} Group palicies (preparation page 66, and the following policies)
For current tax (note 10), deferred tax (note 11), share-based payments (note 28) and
borrowings (note 24).

d} Share-based payments in Company

The cost of awards to employees of subsidiary entities classified as conditional shares awards is
accounted for as an additional investment in the employing subsidiary, When such awards are
recharged to employing or acquiring entities, the investment in the Company’s books is reduced
by the value of equity awarded. In the event that the investment in subsidiary created from
conditional share awards is impaired then there is an equal and opposite release from share-
based payment reserve.

e) Dividends

Interim dividends are recorded when they are paid and the final dividends are recorded when
they become legally payable. Disclosure of dividend activity can be found at note 12,

146

f) Treasury shares

When the Company reacquires its own equity instruments, those instruments {treasury shares)
are deducted from egquity. NO gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Company’s treasury shares. Such treasury shares may be acquired
and held by the Company or by other members of the Group. Consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity.

g) Expected credit losses

Amounts owed by subsidiaries are recorded at amortised cost and are reduced by expected
credit losses. Under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the expescted credit losses are measured as
the difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

Key judgements & estimates

Judgement on debt with other group companies

a) A judgement has been made if debt with other group companigs are guasi investments under
IAS 27 or intercompany receivables under IFRS 9. Based on that assessment, which in the most
part has treated the debt

b} In the event that debt with other group companies is accountad for under IFRS9 a judgment if
such balances are prepayable on demand or if they are payable over one year.

Tha following judgements on the value are made:

a) Recoverability of intercompany debtors

Judgements are made on the future recoverability of debt and provisions are made where
necessary. Such judgements made are based on the substance of the underiying agreements in
place which may typicalty rely on subsequent asset sales held by the debt holder to be used for
the clearance of the amounts due to the parent.

b) Valuation of investments

Judgements are made on the future value of investments based an the higher of value in use and
net realisable value. This assessment is performed after any debt from entities have been
recovered. Impairments are made where necessary,

Reserves

Share-based payment reserve

Represents equity-settled share-based employee remuneration until such share options are
exercised.

M&C Saatchi plc
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COMPANY NOTES ...

et

41, Other non-current assets 42, Trade and other receivables
2018 2018 2019 2018
4000 £000 Amounts due less than one year £000 £000
Loans to subsidiary employees* 1,788 1,803 Prepayments and accrued income 126 90
Loans to assist equity purchase** 283 435 Corporation tax receivable 2,464 2,970
Total 2,071 2,238 Other receivables 356 342
* This related to the AUD3.6m (current halance AUD3.3m) loans that the Group lent local management of M&C Total 2,848 3,402

Saatchi Agency Pty Ltd, in 2015, 10 enable them t0 acquire 20% of that business. The full recourse loan is

repayable in full if the purchasers no longer have a beneficial interest in the shares of the Australian Group or L3 Trade and other payables
are ng longer emplayed. The loan is unsecured and charged interest at 0.1% above the five-year Australian

interbank rate at date lcan advanced. The carrying value of the loan appreximated to fair value.

** Loan to South African indigencus equity holders to enable them to acquire equity in South African 2019 2018
subsidiaries in accordance with local laws. £000 £000
Trade creditors (229) (324)
Amounts due to subsidiaries” (40,518) (21,573)
Agcruals and deferred income (3,024) (427)
Total {43,771} (22,324}

* Repayable on demand. .
The increase in accruals is due to higher audit fees and contractual bonus provision.

Provision of £1,225k (2018: £Nil) are made up of £1,033k legal and other fees relating to accounting
errors, and £192k of reorganisation costs. Further details are of these costs are in note 3.

148 M&C Saatchi pic
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COMPANY NOTES

47, List of registered addresses

Country Entity Registered Address
Australia Bohemia Group Pty Ltd 99 Macquarie Street, Sydney NSW 2000
Greenhouse Australia Pty Lid
M&C Saatchi Spart & Entertainment Pty
Ltd
Park Avenue PR Pty Ltd
Saatchi Ventures Pty Ltd
Tricky Jigsaw Pty Ltd
Resolution Design Pty Ltd
This Film Studio Pty Ltd
Ugly Sydney Pty Ltd
Bellwether Global Pty Ltd Level 12, 131 Macquarie Street, Sydney
Brands in Space Pty Ltd NSW 2000
Lida Australia Pty Ltd
1440 Agency Pty Ltd Level 6 131 Macquarie Street, Sydney
Go Stuaios Pty Ltd NSW 2000
M&C Saatchi Direct Pty Ltd
eMCSaatchi Pty Ltd Level 19, 2 Market Street, Sydney NSW
M&C Saatchi Agency Pty Ltd 2000
Re Team Pty Ltd
M&C Saatchi Asia Pac Hofdings Pty Ltd  Level 12, 131 Lucouarei Street, Sydney
NSW 2000
Hidden Characters Pty Ltd Unit 18, 285A Crown Street, Surry Hills
NSW 2010
M&C Saatchi Melbourne Pty Ltd Levef 1, 129 York Street, South
Melbourne VIC 3205
World Services (Australia) Pty Ltd Suite 11,01, Level 11,80 Castlereagh
Street, Sydney NSW 2000
Yes Agency Pty Ltd wmmm‘ 17, 383 Kent Street, Sydney NSW
Bahrain M&C Saatchi Bahrain WLL 51,122,1609,316 Manama Center
Brazil Lily Participacoes Lida Avenida Brigadeiro Faria Lima, 1355

Jardim Paulistano 16 Andar, Sal Sdo
Paulo

01452-919
M&C Saatchi Brasit Comunicagéio Ltda  Rua Girassol, 925/927, 1st Floor, Vila
M&C Saatchi Brasil Participacoes Ltda ~ Madalena, 05433-002

M+C Saatchi/Insight Pesquisa &
Plangjamento Ltda

150

Gountry Entity Registered Address
Santa Clara Participacoes Ltda Rua Wisard, 305, Vila Madalena,
3 Andar-Con, Sdo Paolo
China M&C Saatchi Advertising (Shanghai}Ltd  Room 227, Guichang Road, Pudong,
Shanghai
France FCING SAS 32 Rue Notre Dame des Victoires, 75002,
M&C Saatchi Gad SAS Paris
M&C Saatchi Little Stories SAS
M&.C Saatchi One SAS
M&C Saatchi The Loop SARL
Moonlike M&C Saatchi SARL
Paris Gad Holding SAS
Cometis 14 Rue Meslay, 75003, Paris
Tataprod SARL
Germany Clear Deutschland GmbH Taunusanlage 8, Frankfurt am Main, 60329
M&C Saatchi Advertising GmbH Munzstrasse 21-23, 10178, Berlin
M&C Saatchi Digital GmbH
M&C Saatchi PR UG
(haftungsbeschrankt)
M&C Saatchi Sports & Entertainment
GmbH
HongKong  Clear Asia Ltd 29/F Cambridge House, Takoo Place 979
M&C Saatchi (Hong Kong) Ltd King's Road, Quarry Bay
Re HK Limited
M&C Saatchi Asia Ltd 6/F Alexandra House, 18 Chater Road,
Central
India M&C Saatchi Communications Pvt Ltd 2 Palam Mang, Vasant Vihar New Delhi,
110057
February Communications Pvt Ltd 1418 Shahpur Jat New Delhi
M&C Saatchi Mobile India LLP
Scarecrow M&C Saatchi Ltd 42 Ramjibhai Kamani Marg, Mumbai
[ndonesia PT. MCS Saatchi Indonesia E.V. Hive, Plaza Kungan, Lantai 11, Jakarta
Selatan 12920
Isragi M&C Saatchi Tel Aviv Ltd 1 Abba Even, Boulevard, Herzliya 4672519
Italy M&.C Saatchi PR srl Viale Monte Nero, 27 20135, Milan
M&C Saatchi SpA
Japan M&C Saatchi Ltd 26-1 Ebisy-Nishi 1-Chome, Shibuya- Ku,
Tokyo
Lebanon M&.C Saatchi SAL Quantum Tower, Charles Malek Avenue,

M&C Saatchi plc
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF M&G SAATCHI PLC

REPORT 0% THE AUDIT OF THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Disclaimer of opinion on the loss and cash flows for the year as a result of the inability to obtain sufficient audit evidence over the 2018 year-end balances
and qualified opinion In respect of the comparabliity of the state of affairs with the 2018 year-end

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the “Basis for disclaimer of opinion/qualified opinion” section below:

¢ M&C Saatchi pic's Group financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2019;

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union; and

» the Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008.
In our opinion:

 M&C Saatchi ple’s Company financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019;

« the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and appiicable law); and

+ the Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Because of the significance of the possible impact of our inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence over the opening balances, as described in the “Basis for disclaimer
of opinion/qualified opinion” section below, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the Group’s loss and
cash flows. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion en the Group’s lass and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2019.

We were engaged to audit M&C Saatchi plc's Group financial statements and we have audited the Company financial statements. The Group financial statements and Company
financial statements (the "financial statements") included within the Annual Report {the “Annual Report”), which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31
December 2019; the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated cash flow statement and analysis of net debt, and the
consolidated and Company statements of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2019; and the preparation section, which include a description of the significant
accounting policies, and the notes to the financial statements.

Basis for disclaimer of opinlon/qualified opinion

As explained in note 2 to the financial statements, prior period restatements were identified by the Directors during the year. We were appointed auditors on 4 November 2019 and
it was not possible for us to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence in a reasonable timeframe regarding the amounts, including the restated amounts, in the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, forming the comparative figures and the opening balances for the current year as at 1 January 2019 because of an absence of underlying
documentation and an inability to obtain explanations from Group finance team members who are no longer employed by the Group. This impacts on the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2019, and also impacts the individual line items reported in cash generated from operations in the consolidated cash flow statement
and the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As noted above, the Directors identified a number of prior period restatements. Management subsequently engaged a PwC forensics team to perform a detailed review of these
restatements as well as help identify other areas of risk. This resulted in additional restatements being identified and a recommendation for Management to further investigate
other out of scope areas.

As aresult of these reviews, Management identified £14.4m of prior period restatements prior to the start of the 2019 audit ang further areas were identified that required follow
up which resulted in an additional £16.1m being identified during the audit.

152 M&C Saatchi ple
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ..

However due to the lack of records and changes in management, set out above, we could not obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence over the opening balance sheet entries
including those relating to revenue and therefore over the revenue for the year. However, we we~e able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence in relation to the balance
sheet entries relating to revenue of contract liabilities (deferred revenue; £21.0million) and contrzct assets (accrued income - £10.1million) as at 31 December 2019,

We concluded that the impact of our inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence relating to the amounts, including the completeness and accuracy of prior period
restatements and amounts related to revenue, included within the opening statement of financial position at 1 January 2018 had a pervasive impact on the consolidated income
statement and individual line items reported in cash generated from operations in the consolidéted cash flow statement and the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
resulting in our disclaimer of opinion on the Group’s loss and cash flows referred to above.

Due to us not being able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence over the 2018 year-end balances, our opinion on the state of affairs of the Group included in the Group
financial statements is qualified, only in respect of the possible effect of this matter on the comparability between the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019 and
the comparative statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018.

This matter only impacted the Company’s subsidiaries, and therefore our opinion on the Company finangial statements is unqualified.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK1") and applicable law except that there was a limitation in respect of our work
relating to the consolidated income statement and cash flow statement as explained in our Basis for disclaimer of opinion/qualified opinion section above. Cur responsibilities
under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsihilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion, but as explained above we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence in respect
of the group’s loss and cash flows for the year and have issued a disclaimer on those elements of the financial statements.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s
Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Material uncertainty related to going concern - Group and Company

Without further modifying our opinion on the financial statements, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosure made in the Going concern note in the Preparation section to
the financial statements concerning the Group’s and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Group and Company meet their day-to-day working capital requirements through their bank facilities and available cash resources. The Group’s current bank facilities include
a secured bank loan of £36.0million, which is committed to 30 June 2021 and an uncommitted ove-draft facility of £5.0million. The bank facilities are subject to financial covenants,
comprising a total interest cover covenant and a debt to earnings covenant. These cavenants are subject to testing on a quarterly basis through to the end of the term of the facility,

Management's cash flow forecast used for its going concern assessment inherently involves a level of uncertainty due to external market conditions and the impact on the demand
for the Group's services. Management’s forecasts show that the Group and the Company can continue as a going concern but when severe but plausible downside sensitivities are
applied these show a potential breach of covenants. These downside sensitivities include a material reduction in revenue from Management’s forecast. Should a covenant breach
occur, and no mitigating action is taken, the facilities may be cancelled and amounts accrued or oJtstanding would be immediately due and payable.

The forecast for the Group for the going concern assessment period also includes an assumptior that the Group will be able to replace the existing facilities with appropriate new
facilities on or before 30 June 2021. Discussions relating to the specific details of this refinancing zre ongoing and will involve reaching an agreement on the overall size and term of
the fagilities and the covenant restrigtions to be appiied. There is alse a default clause in the banking agreement around the filing of financial statements with a qualified augitors’
opinion. Although the bank has indicated it does not expect to call on this clause it has reserved its rights in this respect if other matters arise.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Our audit approach

Context

This is our first year as statutory auditors of the Group and the Company, having been appointed in late 2019. At the time of our appointment, Management had identified a
number of prior period misstatements requiring adjustments and as such our risk assessment and audit approach took this into account. The scope of our audit, as set out later
in this report, included those components that we considered higher risk either due to the significance of the balances, or due to issues identified relating to prior years. The
extent of our testing and the resulting sample sizes were also reflective of the associated risk.

Overview

e Overall Group materiality; £1.1 million, based on professional judgement having considered toth a loss before tax basis and a revenue basis.
e Overall Company materiality: £1.6 million, based on 1% of net assets.

Muoleriaity ) . .
e  Full scope audits across 21 reporting units

« Specified procedures over large or higher risk balances at certain out of scope components to give appropriate coverage of all material or
higher risk balances at the Group level

Audit scope e Central procedures performed over unlisted investments, management incentive schemes, goodwill and other intangibles, taxation and going
concern
+ Going concern (Group and Gompany) - see Material uncertainty related to going concern section above
Koy audit * Prior period restatements/Revenue recognition (Group) - see Basis for disclaimer of opinion/qualified opinion section above
matters » Carrying value of goodwill and investments in associates and joint ventures {Group) and recoverability of investments in subsidiaries and

intercompany receivables (Company)
« Accounting for management incentive schemes and non-controlling interests in subsidiaries (Group and Company)
+ Valuation of unlisted investments (Group)
«  Consideration of the impacts of COVID-19 (Group and Company)

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements. In particular, we looked at where the Directors
made subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain.
As in all of our audits we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controlg, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors that
represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current peried and include
the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall
audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement :eam. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT .. -

Accounting for management incentive schemes and non-
controlling interests in subsidiaries (Group and Company)

Refer to the Accounting policies on page 67 and notes 27 and 28 of the
Financial Statements.

There are various share award schemes across the Group, including
minority interest put and call options and equity and cash settied
management incentive schemes. There is considerable judgement in.

158

Based on the procedures performed over goodwill and other non menetary assets,
adjustments were identified which Management reflected in the financial statements.

To address the risk relating to the carrying value of investments in associates and joint
ventures we challenged Management assumptions used in their model for the discount rate and
growth rate. Based on our challenge, Management updated their model and recorded further
impairment to one of the investments.

To address the risk over recoverability of investments in subsidiaries and intercompany
receivables, we performed the following procedures:

- Assessed and evaluated the Management’s assessment of classification of intercompany
Ioans within the scope of IFRS 9 or 1AS 27.

- Evaluated Management’s assessment whether any indicators of impairment existed by
comparing the carrying values of investments {including IFRS 2 capital contributions) and
intercompany loans in subsidiaries with their recoverable amounts at 31 December 2019.

- Verified the assumptions used to calculate the recoverable values of investments were
consistent with those used for goodwill impairment purposes in the Group.

- Assessed Management’s calculation of the Expected Credit Losses (ECL) under IFRS 9 in
relation to the intercompany lcans.

- Evaluated the difference between the investment carrying values and the Group’s market
capitalisation to understand the key reasons.

- Evaluated whether the classification of these loans is appropriate in the Parent Company
balance sheat.

Based on the procedures performed and foliowing adjustments made by Management, we
noted no material issues arising from our work on the recoverability of investments in
subsidiaries and intercompany receivables.

‘ In order to address the identified risk we performed the following procedures: .

- Obtained underlying agreements for the put/call options including service agreements
and acquisition documents to understand the nature of each of the arrangements;

- Discussed and challenged the Group’s accounting policy and judgements previously made
in assessing whether the incentive schemes are cash or equity settled share-based
payments (IFRS 2) or financial instruments (IFRS 9), including assessing whether thers
are service conditions or business continuity clauses in the underlying agreements or any
other indicators that these awards were issued as compensation for employment; and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT . ...

Valuation of uniisted investments (Group)

Refer to the Accounting policies in note 20a of the Financial Statements.

The Group holds shares in unlisted investments, which are held at fair
value, with fair value gains and losses recognised in the income statement.
At the balance sheet date, these were valued at £14.9m {2018: £14.0m)

The investments are generally for a small minority, equity stake in unlisted
early stage businesses. There is judgement applied in the consideration of
the valuation of the equity, with most being basad on a recent funding round
or sale of shares, however, some valuations are made based on the fund
manager’s expertise with less supporting evidence presented by
Management. As such, we included this as a key audit matter due to the
high level of judgement applied and the value of the overall investments.

 Consideration of the impact of COVID- 19 (Group and Company)

Refer to the Going Concern note in the Preparation section on page 66 and
note 36 of the Financial Statements.

Management and the Board have considered the potential impact of the
non-adjusting post balance sheet events that have been caused by the
global pandemic of COVID-19 on the current and future operations of the
business. In doing 30, Management has had particular focus on the Group’s
and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

As a result of the impact of COVID-19 on the sector and the wider
economy, Management and the Board have spent a large amount of time to
fully consider the implications for the Group. COVID-19 is a non-adjusting
post balance sheet event and as such, we determined that Management’s
consideration of the potential impact of COVID-19 on going concern was the
only key audit matter.

We agree with Management's wmewmamzﬁ of COVID-19 as a non-adjusting post balance shee

Obtain ng a full list of investments from Management and testing this for
completeness based on review of documentation including board minutes and
discussions with Management;

Agreeing the initial cost of investments back to share certificates and cash paid;
Obtain ng Management's valuations for these investments, except for those that were
immaterial, both individually and in aggregate, and assessing its suitability and
reliability (e.g. proximity to latest funding round, class of share issued and whether
the issJe included third parties) for inclusion in the valuation model;

Verifying the inputs into these valuations to external sources where available, e.g.
information on funding rounds, investor calls and cther available information {from
the Company or other publicly available information), and considered whether there
WETE any circumsiances or events that had arisen since the dates of these inputs
that would impact the valuations;

Searching for ancillary evidence at Companies House, on the internet and from other
sources to corroborate or contradict Management's estimates;

Considering the impact on valuations of different share classes of the investment
held compared to any funding round; and

For those that were considered to be highly judgemental, we engaged PwG valuations
specia ists to assist with the assessment of the valuations;

Our work identified a number of judgemental adjustments, which have been reflected by
Management in the financial statements.

The procedures we have performed over going concern, and our conclusions are set out in
the ‘Material uncertainty related to going concern — Group and Company’ section above and
the ‘Going concarn section’ below.

160

M&C Saatchi plc



191 oId 1yd1e’S 07PN

‘Wea] Jpne dno.gy ay Ag pew.oylad
SBM YJOM ||y "S910U 3.nSO|0SIP PaIe|2] PUB SWa) BUI JUBWISIELS |RIDUBLY JRIISIBW (|8 PaJarod pue Auedwo?) syl jo AljeleIew 8y uo paseq sem Auedwod ayl jo Buidoss ang

‘Juswadeue [e00] Yuam SEUBSLL ASY Ul JUSLWSAJOAUI PUR ‘usye] siualuagpnl pue Suiside
S9NSS| JO UOISSNISIP "fJOMp|aY JIayl Jo SsaJgcd Byl uo §|[ed slepdn ‘PaWI0Jad ¥JOM BUI MBIAS] PUR B1BNBAS 0] SWeS) Yun Juilodad SBaSJaA0 BU] LIiM SUCISSNISIP Shodsiunu
Play am 'sanpanoJtd pua Jeak Ino Jo Lied B Sy "3joum B SB SIUBLISIEIS [BIOUBUY PSIBPIOSUOD BUL U0 UoIdo Jno J0jf SISBQ B SB PAUBIGO USR] PeY SOUBPIAS 1PNE JUJDIINS Jaylaym
8PN{oUGI 03 B|. 3q 01 HJOM NPNE JI3y] Ul 8ABY O] POPaSU am JUSLISAIDAUI JO [9A3] BY} PBUILLISIP aM ‘Wea) JIpne Nun Fuiliodal SB9S.I9A0 UB AQ pawLIoped Sem JJom ayl aJsym

"SISBq Jjun uilodad e uo saunpasoud maiaad dopysap powJoad wea) ypne dnoJg ay) ‘saunpan0ad JIPNe Loy 9dods Ul 8g 0} PaJapISUOD 10U S1aM JBY] SHUN
uiniodad (|8 404 "xe19.0494 550| dN0JD) 8IN|0SYE JO %6, PUB SENUBAS ANOJE) JO %8 JO} PAIUNOATE SUIISa) PASIRIILAT pue $aunpasoJd upne o0} 19804ns sun SunJodad ayy “Jayisde]

'SW3) PalE|a] SNUSAR. 0} SIUNOJDE 138YS SIUBIBY BU) SUMBIASI PUE S10B.IUOT SNLUSAS. J0) UClIRIUSINGOP
dunoddns Suiurelgo Suipnjou) seouB(Eg BNUBABJ JUBILIURIS YIM Senius 8doDs JO 1IN0 3yl JBA0 Sul1S8] PA|IEI3P [EUCHIDPR PALIIOLAd 0SB am ‘saillus 5d00s [Ny Ayl Jo) anuaAa.
guipne uj pa.alunooua am sajnxajdwon sy 03 anq "AB.0uad weal 1pne dnoJn sy A paw.lo)ad 8.Jam UJgaueD Fui0d pUB UoiEXE) ‘S8|QIGURI JBUI0 PUB JIMPOOT ‘SaWaYDS SAITUAIUI
Juawageuel ‘sjuawWlseAul palsiun Sulpnoul ‘uawadpal JueoyugIs JO SBAJR PUB SUDIIZUN [BJIUSD JIAC SaJnpadoJd Jpne oioads “Jsyldnd “K|jeaol Sunsa) pue sysiA Fuillload
Wwea} Jpre dnoJs syl Jo SUBGLUBL 0 ‘SWES) HJOMIBU DMd [BI0| JO 85N §O UOITBUIGWOD B 4SN0Jyl $311Un00 1419 Ul JJoM Pa1anpuo am os guiop u| ‘jaas] dnoJs syl 18 saoukfeq ysi
Jay3y Jo [eualew fle o a8eJaa00 aleldosdde ang 0] ‘susuodwos adoos Jo N0 JO JaQLUNU B 1B pawJoad aJam SUOHOBSUE] PUR S30UB|E] UIBLISD JBAO Sa.npasold upne oyoadg

‘$9]1814910B.1RYT ¥S1 .10 8718 U181} 01 8NP ‘UDITBULIOUI [BIDUBUY 318]|dLU0D 413U} JO JPNE UB paJinbad ‘Mmala Jno Ul “Teyl sJiun guidodad |7 paynuapl am
pue 8zis Ul Apueopugs Aden sainus Juiped) s,dnoug ayy "saIIUA JUBLLIOP PUB sajuedw oo Fuipjoy ‘saiius Suiprdl Suipmoul suun Suiliodad g1 Sesldwod UoIep||osuo §,dnoJr) sy

“§J0M Jng JO 5d00S SUI UO SUONBIILI| 8J8Mm B.8Y] '8A0QR UOIUIdD
pauienb/uoudo Jo JawIBDSIp Joj SISBQ, 8yl Ul pauie|dxa st ‘JanamoH -aledado Aoyl yoiym Ul AJISHpUl SY) PUB ‘S|0JIL0D puB $855a004d Suijunoooe sy ‘Auedwos ay; pue dno.g ayj jo
2JN10N.3S 8Y] JuUN0I2. 01Ul AUIYE] “3|0UM B SB SJUIWRIRIS [BIDUBUY AU} UO uouido ue A 0 8Ig. 84 01 ¥4om ygnoua pawwaoad am 1eyl sansua 01 IpNE Jno Jo 2doos sUl PeJojiBl oM

8dods 1pne ay] paJo|iel am MOH

> 140434 SHOLIONY INIANIJIANI




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ...

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These, together with gualitative considerations, helped
us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit precedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating
the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole,

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

L

Group financial statements

Company financiol stotements

Overall materiality

£1.1 million.

£1.6 million.

How we determined it

Use of professional judgement having applied ‘rule of thumb’ percentages to
a number of potential benchmarks and considering the overall scale of the
business.

1% of net assets

Rationale for benchmark We considered materiality in a number of different ways, including;

applied

e application of a % statutory loss before tax would result in an indicative
overall materiality of £0.4 million; and

e our standard rule of thumb of 1% applied to revenue would result in an
indicative overall materiality of £3.9 million.

In our professional judgement, we concluded that the higher end of the
range (£3.9m million) would encompass amounts which, if impacting
reported losses, could influence decisions made by the Group’s members
as a body, and which therefaore would be considered material. We also
concluded, in our professional judgement, that amounts at the lower end of
the range (£0.4 million) would not influence such decisions, given the scale
of M&C Saatchi’s operations, We therefore determined that an appropriate
level of materiality for performing the 2019 audit would be within this range,
whilst at neither the upper nor lower end. Based on our professional
judgement, we selected an overall materiality of £1.1 million.

We believe that as a non-trading entity, net assets is the key measure
used by members in assessing the performance of the Company for the
year.

For each reporting unit in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall Group materiality. The range of materiality allocated across raporting
units was between £39,000 and £728,000. Certain reporting units were audited to a local statutory audit materiality that was also less than our overall Group materiality.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £85,000 (Group audit) and £80,000 (Company audit) as well as
misstatements below those amounts that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ...

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December
2019 is consistent with the financial statements and except for the possible effects of the matters referred to in the “Basis for disclaimer of opinion/qualified opinfon” section
above, has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. (GAGE)

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, except for the possible effects of the matters
referred to in the “Basis for disclaimer of opinion/qualified opinicn” section above, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’
Report. (CAO6)

The Directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Group and of the principal risks that would threaten the solvency ar liquidity of the Group

As a result of the Directors’ reporting on how they have appfied the UK Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”), we are required to report to you if we have anything
material to add or draw attention to regarding:

* The Directors’ confirmation on page 20 of the Annual Report that they have carried cut a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, including
those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liguidity.

¢ The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated.

s The Directors’ explanation on page 58 of the Annual Repart as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period they have done so
and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as 1o whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to
continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment, inciuding any related disclosures drawing attention to any
necessary qualifications or assumptions.

Other than drawing attention to the material uncertainty we have described in the material uncertainty related to going concern section above, we have nothing to report in
respect of this responsibility.

Cther Code Provisions
As a result of the Directors’ reporting on how they have applied the Code, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
+ The statement given by the Directors, on page 63, that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whale to be fair, balanced and understandable, and

provides the information necessary for the members to assess the Group’s and Company’s position and performance, business model and strategy is
materially inconsistent with cur knowledge of the Group and Gompany obtained in the course of performing cur audit.

¢ The section of the Annual Report on pages 40 to 49 describing the work of the Audit Committee doss not appropriately address matters communicated by
us to the Audit Committee.

We have nothing to report in respect of this responsibility.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT .

Other voluntary reporting

Going concern

The Directors have requested that we review the statement on pages 56 and 57 in relation te going concern as if the Company were a premium listed Gompany. Other than drawing
attention to the material uncertainty we have described in the material uncertainty related to going concern section ahove, we have nothing to report having performed our
review.

The Directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Group and of the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or liquidity of the Group

The Cirectors have requested that we perform a review of the Directors’ statements on page 58 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the
Group and in relation to the longer-term viability of the Greup, as if the Company were a premium listed company. Qur review was substantially less in scope than an audit and only
consisted of making inquiries and considering the Directors' process supporting their statements; checking that the statements are in alignment with the relevant provisions of the
Code; and considering whether the statements are consistent with the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of
the audit. Other than drawing attention to the material uncertainty we have described in the material uncertainty related to going concern section above, we have nothing to report
having performed this review.

Other Gode pravisions

The Directors have prepared a corporate governance statement and requested that we review it as if the Company were a premium listed company. We have nothing to report in
respect of the requirement for the auditors of premium listed companies to report when the Directors’ statement relating to the Company’s compliance with the Code does not
properly disclose a departure from a relevant provision of the Code specified, under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditors.

Directors' remuneration

The Company voluntarily prepares a Directors’ Remuneration Report in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. The Directors requested that we audit the part
of the Directors’ Remuneraticn Report specified by the Companies Act 2006 to be audited as if the Company were a quoted company.

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

D

Nigel Reynolds (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

7 Decembar 2020
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